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POVERTY AND HUNGER IN HISPANIC AMERICA:
THE INADEQUACY OF DATA FOR POLICY
PLANNING

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 30, 1988

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SeLect CommITTEE ON HUNGER,
Washington, DC.
The committee met, pursuant to call, at 2 p.m., in room 2359A,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Mickey Leland [chairman of
the committee] presiding.
Members present: Representatives Carr, Penny, and Gilman.
Also present: Representatives Richardson and Bustamante.
Chairman LeLanp. We are going to start our hearing, and be-
cause of the tardiness of the Chair I am going to defer now to my
good friend and colleague, Mr. Gilman, for his opening statement.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. BENJAMIN A. GILMAN, A REPRE-
SENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NEW YORK

Mr. Gitman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I want to welcome
our colleagues before us today.

I thank the gentleman for yielding, and, Mr. Chairman, I want to
express my appreciation for your arranging this important hearing
on poverty and hunger in the Hispanic community and the inad-
equacy of data for proper policy planning for the health needs of
that community. It is, indeed, an important issue, a vital issue,
that does require our committee’s full attention.

Throughout our Nation, Hispanics and particularly Hispanic mi-
grant workers are amongst the vulnerable of all Americans. They
have low and unstable family incomes, difficult working conditions,
poor to fairly poor living conditions. The transient nature of their
lives and their families’ lives, limited health and social services,
have led to a great deal of health problems, lower life expectancy,
and sometimes a lack of education leads to other problems through-
out their lives.

Seasonal farm workers are sometimes better off but still are un-
employed for a major portion of the year and have relatively little
job security and often have difficulty in gaining access to maany of
our social programs.

The lack of health data amongst the Hispanic community makes
it extremely difficult to develop helpful health planning. What are
the consequences? That, I think, is an important issue for us to ex-
amine today, and I am particularly interested in learning from our
colleagues: the gentleman from New Mexico, Mr. Richardson; the
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gentleman from Texas, Mr. Bustamante; the family that will be
with us; and from the service providers who have traveled here
today to tell us about the accessibility of existing programs and the
effectiveness of any Federal and private programs that have been
designed to try to improve the living conditions of this vulnerable
and often hidden population.

We welcome all of the witnesses who have been willing to share
with us their research, their thoughds, and their suggestions, and
we look forward to their testimony.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. MICKEY LELAND, A
REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

Chairman LeLAND. I thank the gentleman from New York.

Let me just proceed by saying that the Select Committee on
Hunger has convened this hearing to assess the need for expanded
data collection on the income, health, and nutritior.al status of His-
panics in the United States. Hispanics are currently the second
largest minority group in this country. According to a March 1987
report issued by the Census Bureau last year, the Hispanic popula-
tion reached about 18.8 million people, an increase of 30 percent
since 1980.

In addressing the income status of the Hispanic population, the
report indicates that they are disproportionately disadvantaged
when compared to other Americans. In 1986, Hispanic families had
an median income of $19,995, compared with $30,231 for non-His-
panic families. Of the Hispanic families 25 percent had incomes
below the poverty level while 10 percent of non-Hispanic families
lived in poverty.

Despite the growing populaticn and the increasing number of
Hispanics living in poverty, little is known about their health and
nutritional status and their participation in public assistance pro-
grams. I remember very vividly when Mr. Califano was Secretary
of the Department of Health, Education, and Welfare some time
ago under the Carter administration, I had asked at a hearing at
that time of the Health and Environment Subcommittee what was
the infant mortality rate amongst Hispanics in this country, and
he said that they do not collect data on the Hispanic community
dealing with that issue, and I was really shocked to find out how
insensitive that was, not necessarily on the personality of the Sec-
retary but at least in terms of the lack of wisdom and sensitivity
on the part of the administration during that time, and things
have not gotten much better; as a matter of fact, there is one
school of thought that would suggest that they have gotten worse.

Recently, I was joined by Congressmen Albert Bustamante and
Tony Coelho in commissioning the GAO, the General Accounting
Office, to conduct an exaniination of the methods through which
data collection on the nutrition and health status of Hispanics
could be improved and expanded. The GAO report, which we re-
ceived on Monday, concludes that modest improvements have been
made in the collection of data on Hispanics. Let us hope that is the
case indeed. The study notes, however, that budget constraints
have prevented the existing data collection systems from gathering
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a large enough sampling of information to provide an overall as-
sessment of -the health and nutritional status of this select group
that we deal with today.

If we are to be successful in implementing and maintaining a
public assistance network which is responsive to low-income, at-
risk Hispanics, we must know what their specific needs are. We
have an impressive list of witnesses who will be able to provide us
with the guidance as to what stéps we can take to improve the
availability of data on Hispanics and how we could utilize this in-
formation to more effectively provide them with services.

Let me- apologize to my colleagues for my tardiness. Let me
assure you that I had a very compelling issue to Jdeal with for those
30 minutes that I.was absent here, but I appreciate their patience
and their understanding.

We have with us the Honorable Al Bustamante, a fellow Texan,
and my good friend Bill Richardson from New Mexico.

Bienvenido, mis companeros.

Mr. GiumaN. Mr. Chairman, would you yield for just a moment
before the witnesses proceed?

Chairman Leranp. I would be happy to yield to the gentleman
from New York.

Mr. Gizman. I would like to submit for the record an opening
statement by the ranking minority member, Congressman Bill Em-
erson.

Chairman Leranp. Without objection, that opening statement
will be placed in the appropriate section of this hearing.

Mr. GiLmaN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Emerson appears «t the conclu-
sion of the hearing, see p. 58.]

Mr. BustTaAMANTE. Mr. Chairman, let me yield to my friend and
colleague, Mr. Richardson, because he has another appointment.

Chairman LeLanDd. The chairman is most delighted to learn that
he does have a friend.

The gentleman from New Mexico.

STATEMENT OF HON. BILL RICHARDSON, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE CF REW MEXICO

Mr. RicHARDSON. Thank you very mich, Mr. Chairman.

Let me first of all commend you and your select committee for
holding this hearing which I believe is long overdue and commend
you for your leadership in doing it. It is your committee, after all,
that is doing this.

Let me commend Albert Bustamante for his chairmanship of the
Hispanic Caucus and for, under his tenure, making this an impor-
tant issue in the Hispanic Caucus legislative agenda.

One of the biggest problems, Mr. Chairman, is that this is an
issue that is critical not just to southwestern States with large His-
panic populations but I think for the entire country. That is, what
you and Mr. Gilman stated in your opening statement, a lack of
health data on the Hispanic community specifically as it relates to
Hispanics in the health professions. The quality of Hispanic health
data in general is abysmal. We don’t know the health status of the
Hispanic community either in comparison to other segments of the
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Eopulation or for different time frames. Without such information,
ealth planning becomes impossible. Furthermore, we do a great
disservice to this community.

The sample in the Health and Nut-ition Examination Survey of
1982 provided us with a first picture of the health of the Hispanic
community. Ilowever, for a number of reasons this sample only
gave us a limited view of the health of the community. First, the
sample did not compare Hispanics to other groups in the popula-
tion. Second, because it was a one-time sample it did not and
cannet provide a time continuum. Therefore, we cannot determine
whether the Hispanic community’s health is improving or wersen-

ing.

%am particularly concerned with the lack of data on the health
needs. We don’t know the extent or nature of our own health prob-
lems. We do not know the number of Hispanic doctors, nurses, or
other allied health professionals or whether they are serving the
Hispanic community or other communities. We frankly don’t know
what the Hispanic community needs nor who is filling that need.

As a result, I am introducing legislation in the Commerce Com-
mittee to address the need for health professionals to deliver appro-
priate care to the Hispanic community. One of the major limita-
tions in preparing this legislation has been the lack of data con-
cerning the health professional needs of the community. It has
been especially difficult to determine the extent of the need for
health professionals delivering culturally and linguistically appro-
priate care to the Hispanic community. The legislation not only
seeks to increase the number of Hispanic physicians practicing in
medically underserved community but also provides for an analysis
of the health professional needs of the community.

It is my firm belief that the report to the President and the Con-
gress on the status of health personnel in the United States, as
mandated by section 708 of the Public Health Service Act, should
contain this type of information so that health planners can evalu-
ate the Hispanic comn.uanity’s current and projected need for
health professionals and more effectively allocate existing health
professional resources among Hispanic communities.

Such is not the case. The latest report issued in 1986 contains no
information on the need for health professionals in the Hispanic
communities by specialty or geographic location. The only informa-
tion about Hispanics in this report is a minor inclusion on Hispanic
enrollment in medical schools and schools of osteopathy and den-
tistry. My legislation would assure that critical information by
both specialty and gecgraphic location 'be included for Hispanics
and for other minority groups.

Mr. Chairman, in closing, I am confident that this hearing will
shed light on a very serious problem. For the record, Mr. Chair-
man, I want to give you some specific statistics when I talk about
the lack of health profession practitioners in the Hispanic commu-
nity and when I talk about population parity in terms of health
professionals.

Despite the fact that Hispanics represent 7.9 percent of the
American mainland population, they account for only about 4 per-
cent of physicians and 2 percent of registered nurses. They are also
underrepresented in allied or traditional health professions. His-
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panics comprise 3.4 dercent of health diaguosing practitioners, 2.4
percent of health assessment and treating practitioners, 3.8 percent
of health technologists and technicians, 5.3 percent of health serv-
ice occupations, and 4 percent of health technologists and assist-
ants.

We also have a problem, Mr. Chairman, in terms of Hispanics in
medical schools. In 1985, one-fifth of all medical schools in the
United States had no Hispanics in their 1985 graduating class. Ad-
ditionally, the percentage of Mexican American and mainland
Puerto Ricans in medical schools’ graduating classes has remained
fairly constant at 1.5 and 0.6 percent. This is not occurring because
Hispanics are not qualified. The acceptance rate of Hispanic medi-
cal school applicants is slightly higher thah is the acceptance rate
for all aﬁplicants: 56 and 55 percent, respectively.

Mr. Chairman, I want to submit for the record a number of sta-
tistics relating tc my testimony, not just dealing with what I just
discussed. I think it is important that we also look toward the
future, at a policy in this country that deals with financing this as
a pogitive investment for the Hispanic community. One key is to
set up medical student scholarship programs but also, like the
black -community which has been a leader in many areas, because
of its historically black colleges, that universities with significant
numbers of Hispanics in their population be given access.

I know there have been some conflicts lately between the black
and Hispanic communities. I think this should not be the case be-
cause we are all in this together. Through the leadership of Con-
gressman Bustamante, my community is trying first of all, to do
the most elemental of tasks; that is, to collect the data that we
don’t have. We don’t know how big a problem it is. We have a seri-
ous problem, and then we need an initiative to correct the problem.

) Unfortunately, it takes money and in these days of budget con-
; straints, that is not easy to ask for.

But if we are looking to addressing the needs of, as you said, the
largest minority in this country by the year 2000, we have got to do
a better job, and I am confident with your leadership, Mr. Gilman,
Mr. Carr, and your excellent committee that we will make some
major strides.

I thank you, and I thank the chairman for his courtesy in letting
me testify. :

[The prepared statement of Mr. Richardson appears at the con-
clusion of the hearing, see 1;1 60.]

Chairman LeLanD. For the record, we will include for your pur-
poses the extraneous material that you brought with you; we ap-
preciate it.

[The material referred to above retained in committee files.ﬂ

Chairman LeLanD. By the way, if I can make an editorial com-
ment before the genileman leaves, I certainly appreciate his leader-
ship in this matter and also his support -for not only the Hispanic
community in his efforts to try to enhance the quality of life for
Hispanic people but for all the people whoni he has alluded to.

Mr. RicHARDsoN. Thank you, Mr. Chairmar.
Chairman LeLAND. Thank you.
The chairman of the Congressional Hispanic Caucus, Mr. Busta-
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STATEMENT OF HON. ALBERT G. BUSTAMANTE, A
REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE .STATE OF TEXAS

Mr. BusTaAMANTE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and Mr. Gilman,
Mr. Carr, thank you so much for allowing me to appear before this
committee on the health and nutrition of Hispanics.

Let me first take a brief moment to recognize several individuals
and thank them for their contribution to this hearing. I would like
to thank my constituents, the Cortez family of San Antonio, TX,
for agreeing to share their life experiences with this committee. I
wish to express my appreciation for Dr. Urby’s submission of writ-
ten testimony on Hispanic health and poverty. Dr. Urby is the di-
rector of El Carmen Clinic just outside the city of San Antonio. He
took time out of his busy schedule to put into words his insights on
the health problems of low-income Hispanic patients he treats
daily in the San Antonio area. Also, I would like to thank Rose
Valdez for her input into the overall situation of the Cortez family
as their dedicated and knowledgeable social worker. Each of these
individuals’ testimony will assist this committee in gauging the se-
verity of the problems we are here to address.

Let me start this discussion with a brief social profile of Hispanic
Americans then proceed to explore prevalent health problems that
exist in this environment. Most of the statistical information I will
provide has been retrieved from two sources: one, the Task Force
Report on Black and Minority Health of the Secretary of Health
and Human Services; and, two, the Aging Society Project, Hispan-
ics in an Aging Society.

In 1987, there were approximately 18.79 million Hispanics in the
United States. Since 1970, the Hispanic population has grown by
ovar 60 percent, contributing to 23 percent of the total growth of
the U.S. population from 1970 to 1980. The Hispanic population is
expected to continue this high rate of growth well into the end of
this century.

Despite their increasing numbers, Hispanics have not benefited
fully from medical advances made in the last 50 years. Today, mi-
norities in the United States continue to experience a greater inci-
dence of many diseases. According to the report on minority
health, four social characteristics are believed to significantly influ-
ence minority health status in the United States today: one, demo-
graphic profiles; two, nutritional standards and dietary practices;
three, environmental and occupational exposures; and, four, stress
and coping patterns.

I would like to emphasize that there is a severe lacx of data ox
rainority health which may be due to several combined factors. The
first factor is that there are no standard sractices used by all the
States for including ethnicity identifiers in reported data. Further-
more, Federal identifiers that are required by OMB were {0 genex-
al to permit delineation within subgroups. Even when a more spe-
cific breakdown of race and ethnicity is used, the information may
eventually be lumped together as “other.” This has minimal, if
any, value to health researchers.

Another concern is that data collected from national surveys
usually measure minorities in proportion to their presence in the
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U.S. population. Therefore, the less numerous a minority group is,
the less information there will be available on them.

There "also_exists an obvious lack of documentation on illegal
workers resulting in a demographic barrier to a substantial pertion
of the Hispanic population. The aggregate result of this lack of in-
formation means greater difficulty in truly portraying the health
status of the Hispanic population.

Hispanics experience a unique work situation and are exposed to
more hazards in the work place than non-Hispanics. Generally,
Hispanics work in operative and manufacturing occupations. His-
panics are overrepresented in these positions as well as farmin
and ‘metal mining. These industries report the first and secon
greatest number of work-related injuries. Farming and metal
mining are two additional high-risk employment areas Data from
the Social Security Administration reveal that severe disability re-
sulting from work-related injuries was twice as high among His-
panics as among non-minority workers in 1980.

There may be questions as to why large numbers of Hispanics
are concentrated in these jobs. One contributing factor may be the
typical level of education a Hispanic receives. On the average,
Mexican Americans complete only 9.8 school years. The National
Center for Education Statistics reports a high drop-out rate of 18
percent for Hispanics, and in the large urban centers the drop-out
rate is often found to be in the range between 50 and 70 percent.

Why is there such x disparity in education levels? One reason
may be due to the typical size and income of Hicnanic families.
Mexican American families were found among the largest families,
averaging 4.09 percent; 30 percent of all Hispanics were living
below the official poverty level in 1982; and 13.8 percent were un-
employed. Due to these tyyical large families and the small amount
Jf income coming into the houseﬁold for essentials, many young-
sters decided that it is better tor the family if they dropped out of
school to help out financially.

Let me say to you, Mr. Chairman and my colleagues, that my ex-
perience as one who came from a migrant family that used to go to
the Willamette Valley of Oregon every year in the 1950’s, around
1950 we started out in my class in Asherton, TX, a small migrant
community of South Texes, with a number of about 28 youngsters.
When I finished high school, there were 13 of us. From 28 we
dropped to 13. Many of us came from large families. I was the
oldest of 11 children in my family. I don’t think we, many of us,
ever saw a doctor, much less a dentist, and the education that we
received in many of these areas was substandard. It was not the
teachery’ fault; they did the best they could, and it was the best
that we could afford in some of those small communities. So we
had to strugFIe, and many of our brothers and sisters had to drop
out of scliool. The need was too great to survive from day to day.

But it hasn’t changed since 1950. We still have the same problem
in many of these areas. In the San Antonio area as well as the
rural areas of South Texas, or whether it be New Mexico, Arizona,
or California, we still continue to experience almost the same con-
ditions of 50-some-odd percent schoc! drop-out rate in many areas,
or of the area that I represent. So it is a real concern, and I share
this experience with you because it was something that I had to

1




8

live on a daily basis. We weren’t looking to the future, we weie
looking for survival on a day-to-day basis, and many of these fami-
lies are experiencing the same type of experience that we experi-
enced when I was in school.

It is generally accepted that without a high school diploma it is
" nearly impossible to obtain work which offers job ¢3curity and
earnings above minimum wage. This, in turn, fosters another gen-
eration of undereducated, underemployed Hispanics. A trely diffi-
cult life situation is being creaied here, one of stress and anger.
This unique pattern of exposure to stress and the ways of dealing
Kit'll] hst:ress may play a crucial role in Hispanic and minority

ealth.

It is suggested that the ways an individual copes with stress and
the resources available to resclve stressful situations play an im-
portant role in health outcome. In response to this stress and from
what statistics are available, there is an indicaticn that young His-
panics are turning to unhealthy means of coping. That is, there is
an alarmingly high incidence of drug and alcohol abuse among
young Hispanics.

It is suggested that not only stress prompts such behavior but
also that Hispanics’ unique socioeconomic situation plays a n.ajor
role in this behavior. Most alarming is the use of intravenous drugs
which has prompted yet auother health concern. One recent and
alarming health problem that stems from intravenous drug use by
Hispanics is AIDS. Mr. Gilman, of course, is certain)] aware of
what is happening in areas like New York City wher: .he Puerto
Rican family and the Puerto Rican community have experienced a
high incidence of these problems.

So Hispanics account for 14 percent of all reported cases of AIDS.
Tliis is largely because Hispanics constitute 10.8 percent of inner
city populations. Urban aicas have recorded a concentrated drug
abuse problem indicating that Hispanics may be at a somewhat
greater risk of drug abuse and its consequences, according to FIHS
reports.

The 1984 Drug Abuse Warning Network data also show that 42
percent of Hispanics, as compared with 40 percent of whites, ad-
minister cocaine by injection. This data is suggestive of the gensral
tendency of Hispanic drug addicts toward intravenous drug abuse.
Intravenous drug abuse through the sharing of dirty needles is one
of the major forms of exposure to AIDS, which explains the high
incidence of the disease among Hispanics.

Hispanics have a high incidence of diabetes. Although the dis-
ease is also prevalent among black Americans, Native Ar:zericans,
and Pacific Asian Islanders, the most common form of diabetes
among Hispanics is non-insulin-dependent diabetes, which repre-
sents 95 percent of all reported cases of the disease nationwide.

For that reason, when I mention the word “diabetes,” I am spe-
cifically referring to non-insulin-dependeat diabetes. Of all Hispan-
ics, Mexican Americans are the most susceptible to diabetes with a
rate three to five times higher than the general population. Among
the complications arising from diabetes are amputations, blindness,
kidney failure, heart disease, anc stroke. By avoiding obesity, most
Hispanics can prevent their contracting the disease. This, in turn,
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will prevent them:from sufféring those other more severe complica-
tions, such a$ heart strokes.

In. response to this problem, I.have introduced H.R. 3259, the Di-
abetes Prevention Act of 1987. This bill'is intended to reduce the
prevalerde. of diabetes among. minority populations at special risk.

I would like to conclude-my remarks with a few recommenda-
tions.-My first recommendation is for acquiring more data on His-
panic health. Without such additional information any health pro-
grains we design ‘will be as.effectivé as throwing darts into a dark
room that-may not even contain the bull’s éye. That is why I be
lieve it‘is.essential for State and Federal health-agencies to include
more specific Hispanic identifiers on reported Government docu-
ments that are the primary source of demographic data for health
researchers. o )

Second, we need. to design community-based- health education
programs that are both bilingual and bicultural. Such programs
need. to ‘be ‘sensitive to the special needs and cultural values of the:
Hispanic community. To acccmplish this end, we raust increase re-
cruitment cf minority health professionals as, of course, my col-
league Bill Richardson stated, who can depend on their own per-
sonal ezgpriencg to. formulate and implement culturally sensitive
health education programs.

Such programs should utilize multi-media approaches.to convey
preventive education messages. This type of apgroach could be used
successfully to combat diseases such as AIDS and diabetes whose
high rate of incidence can be reduced through preventive educa-
tion.

These types of programs could be modeled after the successful
public service announcements that nonprofit organizations have
utilized to combat heart disease and hypertension. This multi-
media approach would be especially helpful to Federal health agen-
cies to publicize the wealth of ini)rmation they already have oi
‘many chronic diseases. :

But woe is me in suggesting that the Federal bureaucracy
become innovative. That is like asking a roving elephant to tiptoe
through the tulips, and yet that is cxactly what we must do to close
the gap between the health status of Hispanics and the general
'poXulation.

nother important elrment to bear in mind in health education
is the role that culturai conflict plays as a contributing factor on
Hispanic health. There is strong evidence to suggest that the con-
flict betweer: Anglo American society and Hispanic cultural values
has a devastating effect on the ability of Hispanics to cope with
stress. In fact, studies have shown that the difficulty which Hispan-
ics experience in resolving the cultural clash of their Hispanic her-
itage contributes heavily-to the number of Hispanics engaged in al-
cohol and drug-abuse.

Health education programs targeting the Hispanic population
should include interviews with doctors, dietitians and other health
care professionals. It would also be helpful to have testimonials
from role models and community leaders who have taken the rec-
ommended steps to safeguard their health. Such programs shouvld
inform Hispanics of what chronic diseases they are at special risk
to contract or what diagnostic tests they can request their doctor to
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perform and of what steps to take in case they are diagnosed with
a particular chronic disease. But I must emphasize again that all. of
X these efforts are.for naught if we do not endeavor to increase the
: data base on'the. Hispanic .population.

i I believe-you have assisted .us in realizing that goal, Mr. Chair-
: man, by requesting the General Accounting Office to survey avail-
able dateon Hispanic nutrition and health. I hope to contirue
work;xrxllg'kwith you in the future to address these concerns.

Thi you very much.

[The-vrepared statement of Mr. Bustamante appears at the con-
clusion-of the hearing, see p. 61.]

Chairman LELANT. I thank the chairman of the Hispanic Con-
-gressional Caucus. Thank you for your leadership on this issue. I,.
for one, will certainly work as closely as you would like on this
issue. I have for years been very interested in trying to find out
why is it that Hispanics-have been so invisible in g:g country..Cer-
tainly, in the area of health it is unforgivable that we have not
looked into this problem to-the extent that we should have.

Mr. BusTAMANTE. I thank the chairman, and of course I know of
‘ your record at the State level when you were at the State legisla-
? ture, and you certainly have always ex)ressed your concerns in
many of these areas, and for that we are very grateful.

Chairman LeLaND. Thank you.

Any comments or questions from-my colleagues here?

Mr. Gilman. .

Mr. GitmaN. Mr. Chairman, I wanted to thank the gentleman
from Texas for his comprehensive statement. He certainly has out-
lined all of the problems involved in this.

Do you have any recommendations for improving outreach? That
seems to be one of the major problems in all of .our health pro-
grams.

Mr. BuSTAMANTE. I guess one of the recommendations that I
have made would be .. trying to bring informational programs,
you know, as a means of outreach on preventive health care in
many of these areas.

I go back to my own experience. It is a matter of economics. In
my district, for instance, aichough I have part of San Antonio,
when gou look at -iic rest of the district the average income is
around $5,000 per year. When you have to deal with that, you are °
dealing with_really tough economics. It is one of the poorest dis-
tricts in the United States, ana it is difficult.

We always used to go to Oregon in mid-March and come back in
September, and we worked the hops and. the strawberries and the
beans and what-have-you, but it would take away 5 months out of
the year to work and try to accumulate enough for us to try to live
the rest of the time in Texas. So it was just a constant vicious
cycle, and many of these families are still doing the same thing,
except that their work has diminished in many of these areas.
There is not.any work in many of these areas of South Texas.

Even in San Antonio, with a fast growing economic af,'enda that
we have in that arza, the average income per household is about
$15,000. A lot of the new jobs that are being created are fairly good
jobs, but they pay barely above the minimum wage. We-are trying
to diversify in the area of jobs so that we can attract better jobs for
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our people, but it is tough to do that, especially in the southern end
of my- district. But it is uot only true of my district; as.the chair-
man well kncws, it is true in Mr. de la Garza’s district, it is true in
El Paso, in Ron Coleman’s district, it is true in my friend Solomon
Ortiz’s district; all of tliese areas have the same problem.

Mr. GiLMAN. In our rural area of New York State, a part of
which I represent, we have a very heavy vegetable growing area,
and we have Hispanic migrant workers.come to that area to help
with the harvesting. There is a good regional farm workers' health
center there. One of the big problems, of course, is to niake infor-
mation available of what is available at these health centers and to
make the workers knowledgeable about what programs are avail-
able to them.

Mr. BustaAMANTE. We have some of those programs in the South
Texas area. I was on the COG, Council of Governments, and I was
chairman of the Alamo Area Council of Governments that included
a lot of our rural areas. It was an 11-c;';une? area. When 1 was
‘chairman of the COG, of course, we stressed those types of pro-

grams.

I will give you an example. In the Crystal City area we have a
clinic there that does a very, very good job. But they have re-
sources that they get from the Ford Foundation, from different
foundations: They have got to constantly be out there trying to find
money in order to keep that clinic running, and it is a real tough
thing to do, to try to get sufficient amounts of money to provide
information and to provide health care for the very, very poor of
our communities, the underserved, people that would never pe
served. As I said, in my family, if we saw a doctor five times, it was
just too many times, for the whole family.

But it is a way of life, and I think that people like you certainly
can change it; and Senator Bentsen has pledged his support to try
to do something about this in many of these-areas, so I am hopeful
that we will put together a program that will be helpful.

Mr. GiLMAN. Mr. Bustamante, have ycu reviewed the GAO
1eport on collection of vital statistical data on Hispanics? I believe
that that is dated March of 1988.

Mr. BustaMANTE. I have been briefed by staff.

I\:IIr.? GILMAN. Are you satisfied that there is some progress being
made?

Mr. BustaMANTE. There is some progress being made, but we
still have a long way to go.

Mr. GiiMAN. Do you have any recommendations about specific
things we can urge Congress——

Mr. BustaMANTE. Well, I hope that in the next census we can
accumulate a lot of these data.

Mr. Guman. I would urge that you make some of those recom-
mendations to the committee that both the chairman and I serve
on, the Post Office and Civil Service Committee that has a subcom-
mittee on the census. I think this would be an appropriate time
now for n:axing Lhis.

Mr. BustaAMANTE. We have been meeting with the representa-
lt)iges of the Census Office and with some of your committee mem-

rs.

Mr. GiMAN. Thank you.
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Chairtoan LELAND. I thank the gentleman from New York.

The gentleman from Michigan.

Mr: Carr. Thank you.

It is good to see you. I want to thank you for your statement.

I have just a couple of questions that are really based in, I guess,
ignorance on my part, and I would like maybe for you to help me
with them. If you are not the person to ask, maybe one of the other
witnesses can tell me.

I was reading the- sheet -that the committee had put out here
abou’ some demographics on Hispanic populations, and then I was
trying to reflect-on my own district in Pontiac, Michigan. What is
the U.S. Census Bureau definition of a Hispanic person?

Mr. BUSTAMANTE I think that we have increased the scope of
that, hopefully, in which they will identify the major groups,
‘whether it be the Mexican American, the Puerto Rican, the Cuban,
the Colombians, the’ Central Americans—you know, Central Amer-
ica includes the five countries in Central America—Mexico—and
get the definition of a Hispanic.

Let me tell'you the story. Of course, I have grown with that one.
In South Texas, in the 1930’s—and I was born in the 1930’s—we
were simply Mexicans. Then in the 1940’s, we got a new name,
Latin Americans. Then in the 1950’s, we became Mexican Ameri-
cans. Then in the 1960’s, we became Chicanos. Then in the 1970’s,
we became the Hispanics. So I have been through all these
changes, and I hope the Census finally puts us all together, he dif-
ferent groups that can be identified as Hispanice

So I don’t mind which group, as long as there is a count, Jecause
I think it serves a purpose, especially from such a group as this
group, a very mobile group, a group that, like I said, lives some-
times—a lot of the peopie in that community live from day to day.

Mr. Carr. On my staff, for example, I have a woman whose
father is a Hispanic, both of his parents were Hispanics, and her
mother is not a Hispanic. Under the Census Bureau definition,
what is she?

Mr. BusraAMANTE. A Hispanic.

Mr. Carr. She is a Hispanic.

Mr. BustamANTE. It is like asking me what my children are. 1
married an Anglo-Saxon woman, and my children are Busta-
mantes.

Chairman LeLanp. If the gentleman would yield, what about Bill
Richardson?

Mr. BusTaMANTE. He is a real Mexican, because his mother was
from Mexico, and his father was also from Mexico with the name
Richardson.

We will live it up to the discretion of those who count, hopefully
that there will not be an undercount. You know, there is informa-
tion to the fact that we were undercounted by about 5 percent. I
think that the Census Bureau, with all the preparation that they
have availed themselves to, they will do a lot better job this time
around than the last time.

Mr. Carr. Well, we would hope so, because we rely on the data
base that they supply.

186,
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.Coming back to my question, suppose an individual has only one
of fqu"r grandparents who is a Hispanic, is that person then a His-
panic? ‘

"Mr. BusTAMANTE. Probably not.

Mr. Carr. Probably not.

Mr. BusTaAMANTE. It depends on the individual, like I said. I don’t
know whom that individual identifies with. Suppose it is a Marti-
nez, you know. Well, is Billy Martinez Tauzin a Hispanic or a
Cajun from Louisiana?

Chairman LerLanp. Or is he black?

Mr. BusTAMANTE. Yes.

) Chl;grman LEeLAND. Because if he is Cajun, he has got black blood
in .

Mr. BustaAMANTE. We don’t count Billy as a Tauzin. His name is
Billy Martinez Tauzin. So it shouidn’t be that difficult a problem.

Mr. Carr. I don’t know that it is a problem. I am just trying to
educate myself here.

Mr. -BustamanTE. I understand. Well, next time you see Billy,
tell him, “I didn’t know you were Hispanic.”

Mr. Carr. Yes, you never know.

I guess my question goes to the fact that we do get Census data
that says there are so many Hispanics, and I want to know in my
own mind what are we talking about. Are we talking about people
who are. commonly regarded to be 100 percent Hispanic, or are
they 10 percent Hispanic but the Hispanic surname seems to have
1s)tln"vli{\‘;ed, or are they from Spanish-speaking countries and maybe

ack?

Mr. BustaMANTE. It depends on what that individual wants to
identify with. They are the ones that are going to be filling in the
form or answeving the question. Either he wants to or she wants
to, or they are going to say, you know, “I'm not.”

Mr. Carr. But isn’t it a little more than just that? because the
Census Bureau begins to make then some assumptions, and then
they do estimates.

Mr. BustaMANTE. I can assure that there won’t be that many
problems in the Hispanic area.

hChairman LerLanDd. If the gentleman will yield, let me pursue
this.

Mr. Carg. Yes.

Chairman LeLAND. I think I realize the dilemma that the gentle-
man from Michigan has, and he has created it for me now; I
thought it was very simple. Is it not true that, for tke most part, an
Hispanic is a person considered by the agencies of the Government
a person who ﬁas an Hispanic surname, first and foremost?

Mr. BustamaNTE. Y2s. The Bureau does not classify. They do not
want to determine who an individual identifies with. They just col-
lect the information; they ask the questions. If that individual says
he or she is a Hispanic, they put them down as such.

Chairman LeLanDp. Let me ask you something, if I can ask the
gentleman to yield further. If I decided—and maybe you are the
wrong person to ask, Albert, but I guess am I asking it rhetorical-
ly—if I decide that, because of the color of my eyes and the color of
my skin, that I am a white boy——

Mr. BustamanTe. Well, I wouldn’t say a white boy.
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Chairman LeLanp. Well, I mean, but I might decide I want to be
a white boy.

MF. BUsTAMANTE. OK.

Chairman LeLanp. It is obviously better in America to be a
Khlge boy Pardon that trite—not you, Bob, because I realize how

ard it is.

Are you speaking for Richard Gephardt? Al Gore? He said,

“Unless you are running for President.” Dukakis is not doing so-

bad, but maybe you have to be ethnic.

Mr. BustAMANTE. He told me he was a Mexican in South Texas.
[Laughter.]:

Chairman LeLanD. Es importante.

Mr. BusrAMANTE. You too, you see, you could pass for a Hispan-
ic.

Chairman LeLanND. Maybe I should run for President, like Billy
Tauzin, who is a little bit of everything; so am I. Maybe we should
enter a new category called Calico.

The concern that I express at this time, is there a standard es-
tablished where one is considered to be an Hispanic at some point,
or is not, for that matter? I remember a court case in Louisiana
where a Iauy had a one-sixteenth something black blood in her,
and she challenged that she should not be considered black. I think
she lost the case. Can- you imagine walkmg about being white all
your life, and somebody tells you you're black? Trouble in America.

Mr. BusTAMANTE. Mr. Mendoza was—the health statistics—will
also give testimony in relation to this.

Chairman LeLaND. I yield back to the gentleman.

Mr. Care. I don’t ask the questions to try to be vexatlous to the
hearing. ]

Mr. BustaMANTE. I understand.

Mr. Carr. It’s only when the committee gets presented with sta-
tistics about so many percent of Hispanics this and so many per-
cent of Hispanics that, it seems to- me then when you ask the
follow-up question in the context of that statistic, who are you talk-
ing about?

Then to say that well, it’s whatever anybody thinks of them-
selves, I mean, either the statistics have some reliability or we’re
talking about something else.

Mr. BustamanTe. No, they will. If I was taking a census in New
Mexico and you have Bill Rlchard.,on, what would my first
thoughts be? You know, “Bill Richardson”. Hispanic? You klddmg

me? You know, I always thought “Rodnquez, Martinez, Jimenez,’
those were the ones that—you know, but Bill Richardson, a real
Mexican-American? And his line comes out of Mexico, about second
generation. So you have to make that determination there accord-
ing to what he gives you as information, and then it’s what he be-
lieves he is.

Chairman LELAND. Except when you look at it.

Mr. BusTAMANTE. That’s right.

Mr. Carr. Well, maybe some of the other witnesses can help my
education as to'when we look at these statistics.

Mr. BustaMANTE. Those of us in the South have a greater south-
ern accent.
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Mr. Cagrr. I might say that I think,-to some extent, in the south,
it is possible -that you have an idea of what an Hlspamc is, that
may not transport to a place- like Michigan. If there are problems
in my. own district in Hispanic commumtles, the problems. there
may be further hidden because Hispanics in Michigan may.be fur-
ther hidden than they are.

I think it is purposeful to get something- on the record som¢-
where, as long as we're talking sbout these statistics.

Mr. BustaMANTE. I don’t know about the .numbers in your dis-
trict. What are the numbers in your district, 1 percent, less than 1
percent?

Mr..Cagrr. Well, the. Census says therc are about 3 percent, but it
would seem to me that in the Michigan experience, where people
have—I:think the history: fairly is that we have a large fruit grow-
ing industry there, ‘and a lot of Hispanics have migrated to Michi- L

_ gan as migrant workers—— T

Mr. BUSTAMANTE. And stayed. ;

Mr. Carr [continuing]. And stayed as automobile workers.

Mr. BUSTAMANTE. Some of my family members stayed thexe.

Mr. Carr. And we're now into third and fourth generations i
where there has been a good deal of transplantation and mar- !
riage— -

Mr. BusraMANTE. Culturation and all this good stuff. -

Mr. Carr. Yeah. Now, the Hispanics in my community retain .
thelr cultural heritage and do it very well. Nonetheless, I think o
we’re beginning to see that there is some dilution there— <

Mr. BUusTAMANTE. Very little.

Mr. Cagr. There might be a dilution of some Hispanic ancestry,
but some of the probléms still remain.

Mr. BustaAMANTE. You know, I was surprised the other day when
we were going over some of the statistics, I always thought San An-
tonio had a tremendous Hispanic population. But the city of Chica-
go has more Hispanics thar San Antonio. That was surprising to
me.

Mr. Carr. Well, I don’t mean to delay the hearing. I just wanted
to see if I could learn something.

Mr. BusTAMANTE. I appreciate it.

Mr. Chairman, thank you so much.

Chairman LeLanp. Thank you very much. Let’s work closer to-
gether on these issues.

Mr. BustAMANTE. We will.

Chairman LeranpD. I thank the gentleman from Texas.

The second panel we will as®z to come forward is the Honorable
John Bode, who is Assistant Secretary for Food and Consumer
Services, U.S. Department of Agriculture, and Dr. Manning Fein-
leib, Director of the National Center for Health Statistics, Centers
for Disease Control. Mayke you can help us with these definitions
and we certainly appreciate your presence here and your contribu-
tion.

Mr. Secretary, will you proceed first, if you don’t mind. And let
me thank you for your continued collaboration and contributions to
this committee.

’ -
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STATEMENT OF-JOHN W. BODE, ASSISTANT SECRETARY, FOOD
AND CONSUMER SERVICES, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Mr. BopE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It’s a pleasure to work
with this committee and it’s a pleasure to be here today.

With your' permission, I will summarize my testimony so that I
;:lan more quickly move to try to answer any questions that you

ave.

Chairman LerLanNp. Not only with my permission, but with my

.great delight..

‘Mr. Booe. In my testimony there is a discussion of our budget
pproposals for this year. I believe it’s fair to summarize that the
President’s budget submissions for food assistance programs are
consistent with the-bipartisan budget agreement and, as a result,.
it’s the highest funding request in history for the food assistance
programs of the Department of Agriculture.

The fact that the Food Stamp Program is our first line of defense
against hunger inthis country makes food stamps an especially im-
portant issue. food stamp benefit amounts are based on household
size, income, and- assets. Benefits received vary according to income
and household -size. Our most current data, 1985, show that almost
11 percent of all households- participating in the Food Stamp Pro-
gram are Hispanic. Moreover, low-income Hispanics appear to
make the saine use of the Food Stamp Program as other low-
income groups. Although poverty status -is certainly not synony-
mous with food stamp eligibility, in 1985 households of Spanish ori-
gins comprised 11.4 percent of all poor households and were 14 per-
cent of the poor households who reported food stamp receipt.

There are a number of aspects of the Food Stamp Program that
assist non-English speaking individuals to participate in the Food
Stamp Program. I will simply defer to the itemization of those in
my testimony and move on to the Child Nutrition Programs.

In general, funding for Hispanics in the Child Nutrition Pro-
grams has increased steadily since fiscal year 1980, from 18.6 to
21.3 percent of all funding in these programs. In particular, fund-
ing to Hispanics in the National School Lunch Program and the
School Breakfast Program has increased from $645 million in 1980
to $884 miillion in 1987. It is significar! to note that although His-
panics comyprise approximately 8 percent of all children in schools
with these t.:0 programs, they receive approximately 21 percent of
all Fedezal funding-in these programs.

In the WIC Program, the §1.8 billion Special Supplemental Food
Program for Women, Infants and Children, overall Hispanic par-
ticipation has grown from 18.9 percent in fiscal year 1980 to 20.1
percent in fiscal year 1986 of all participation. This constitutes, of
course, a fairly large percentage or total WIC participation, indicat-
ing a good utilization of the WIC Program by Hispanics.

I should also note that I chare the concern expressed by you, Mr.
Chairman, and others that have spoken already about our adequa-
cy of data. I am pleased to report that improvements are being
made in the National Nutrition Monitoring System, although we
still have a ways to go. Improvements in particular are coming on
line with improved data on the nutritional intakes of Hispanics in
the United States, presently being gathered in the field, as part of
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the nationwide foad. consumption survey. We are gathering data on

food intakes, food consumption by Hispanics, and Hispanic data

will be yielded through another part of ‘the nutrition monitoring
system, in the continuing. survey.of the food-intakes of individuals,
though because of sample size, as GAO indicated, it will take a
while before that information will-be in and available. It will be
part of some of the data.available .from our rolling average ap-
proach to gathering data and analyzing it in the continuing survey
of the food intakes of individuals.

We have a commitment to provide assistance to all low-income
Americans, access-to food assistance programs, and I believe that
this commitment is generally being met. We can always make im-
pr(:ivements and are pleased to work with this committee in efforts
to do so.

Thank you, sir.

I'The prepared statement of Mr. Bode appears at the conclusion
of the hearing, see p. 102.]

Chairman Leranp. Thank you, Mr. Secretary.

Dr. Feinleib. - :

STATEMENT OF MANNING FEINLEIB, M.D., DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
CENTER FOR HEALTH STATISTICS, CENTERS FOR DISEASE
CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Dr. FeinNLE. It is a pleasure being here this afternoon. I really
appreciate this opportunity.

I have prepared some written comments for the record, and I un-
derstand the committee has also received a recent report from
GAO describing most of our system. I have some verbal comments I
would like to make, if you wish, but I would like to ask your direc-
tion on whether we should proceed with my prepared statement or
continue the interesting discussion we just had.

Chairman' LELAND. Let me promise you, Doctor, that the full text
of your comments, without objection, are entered into the record.
They will be reviewed by our committee and staff. We would appre-
ciate it, however, if you would just summarize and comment in any
fashicn that you so desire.

Dr. FeInLEIB. OK. T'll do it very briefly, then, to point out that
NCHS, which is part of the Centers for Disease Control, is the Na-
tion’s principal health statistical agency. We carry on a broad pro-
gram to collect statistical information on the health of the popula-
tion and try to focus on special subgroups that have special health
problems, including Hispanics.

To do this, we carry out a variety of programs, including the Na-
tional Health and Nutrition Examination Survey, the National
Health Interview Survey, and the Vital Statistics Cooperative Pro-
gram. Since we already have on record a description of these sys-
tems, I thought I would spend just a few minutes highlighting some
of the data to illustrate the scope of information that we are ob-
taining.

First of all, I would like to point out some of the health charac-

teristics relative to maternal and infant health, which are the most

sensitive and universally recognized indicators of health status.
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About 11.percent of-all births in the United States are to Hispanic
mothers. Fertility rates-of Hispanics are considerably higher than
; for either whites ¢ ~-blacks, making Hispanics the fastest growing
: ethnic group in the United States, even without considering the ef-
; fects'of immigratich.

Teenage births are relatively common among Hispanics, and sig-
-nificant proportions of births to Méxican-Americans and Puerto
Ricans.are to unmarr.ed women. These groups also receive consid-
erably less .arly preratal care than the rest of the population.

However, despite these disadvantages;, Mexican-Americans do not
: appear to differ significantly from whites in birth outcome. Low
E birth-weight and infant.mortality are’just about as common among
t the Hispariics as they are among the white population.

: Chairman LeLaND. Doctor, if you can, at that point, if you don’t
< gimil{ my interrupting, that is versus the probléms seen in
i ack——

: Dr. FEinLEIB. That’s correct. Of all the ethnic groups that we
identify, the blacks are the ones that show the most adverse effects
of low birth weight and infant mortality. That’s correct.

In 1982 to 1984, as part of the Hispanic health and nutrition ex-
amination survey, we performed direct physical examinations of
approximately 5,000 Hispanic children. Among our findings were
the following: i

The prevalénce of low height for age—stunting, if you will—and
low weight for height, wasting, these do not differ from that ob-
served for whites or blacks. This provides some reassurance that
there is no widespread problem of malnutrition among Hispanic
children.

Hispanic children, though, may have inadequate intakes of vita-
min A, but our research indicates that this is probably more attrib-
utable to poverty status rather than to any factors related to ethi-
city, per se.

Mexican-American children, like black children, were found to
be more likely to have impaired vision than white children, but
, their hearing ability was about the same.as white children.

Mexican-Americans had more decayed teeth and fewer filled
teeth than white children. The iinmunization levels were fairly
complete compared to any of the standards.

In the aggregate, Hispanics do not appear to differ dramatically
from non-Hispanics in self-reported levels of illness or disability. In
fact, when poverty status and age.are taken into account, Hispan-
ics are less likely to suffer from acute health conditions, they are
less likely to be injured, and they are less likely o be limited in
activity due to chronic health conditions.

A number of interesting observations can be made about the
health risk factors of Hispanics. About the same proportion of His-
panic men smoke as do non-Hispanic men, but the Hispanic men
tend to smoke fewer cigarettes. Hispanic women smoke less fre-
quently than do non-Hispanic women, and they also tend to smoke
less during pregnancy.

Obesity appears to be a major health problem among Mexican-
American and Puerto Rican women. Serum cholesterol levels of
Hispanics tend to be lower than for either whites or blacks.
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The clearest-difference -between Hispanics and non:Hispanics is
in the use of medical care and preventive services. Regardless of
age or poverty status, Hispanics are’less likely to see a physician or
dentist, or to be-hospitalized, than are whites. They are less likely
to receive routine preventive care. For example, they are less likely
to have breast examinations or Pap smears, or have their blood
pressure checked.'We find differences among Hispanic groups, with
Puerto Ricans and Cuban Americans tending to use health services
more,fre%uently than Mexican-Americans.

These findings present clear-challenges for health care providers.
Our survey data ‘indicates- that the main difference may be in
health:’insurance coverage, which may partially account for the
lower use of health services. .

Finally, the leading causes of death among Hispanics are heart
disease, cancer, accidents, stroke, and homicide. Since the Hispanic
ﬁopulatiop is comparatively younger, the chronic diseases like

eart disease and cancer account for a small proportion of their
death rates than for the general fpogulation. Even taking into ac-
count the younger average age of the Hispanic population, homi-
cide plays a far greater role as a leading cause of death among His-
panics than among whites, ranking as the fifth leading cause
among Hispanics, as it is among the black population.

Today’s hearing has provided us an opportunity to review our ac-
complishments in improving data on Hispanic health over the last
several years. I am encouraged by the progress we have been
making. We now include Hispanic identifiers in our.mortality data,
and these are being published regularly.

We have already released 10 public use data tapes from the His-
anic Health and Nutrition Examination Survey, and we have the
inal 8 tapes currently being produced.

We are working with the various States to make sure that His-
panic identifiers are f)ut on the birth certificate in the States
where it is not currently used. .

We are taking steps now to complete the design phase and the
fielding testing phase for the third National Health and Nutrition
Examination Survey which will update data on Mexican-Americans
obtained as part of this special study of Hispanics.

Finally, the National Center for Health Services Research is cur-
rently conducting the 1987 National Medical Expenditures Survey,
in which they are oversampling Hispanics, and this will allow fur-
ther investigation of differences between Hispanics and non-His-
panics in the use of health care services.

Obviously, there are still several gaps in our information about
Hislianics, but I am pleased that we are making progress in trying
to close these gaps, and we will work toward a complete coverage
of the Hispanic population.

b Thank you. I will be happy to respond fo any questions you may
ave,

.[The prepared statement of Dr. Feinleib appears at the conclu-
sicn of the hearing, see p. 113.]

Chairman LeLAND. Thank you, Dr. Feinleib. I appreciate your
contribution here.

Let me commend you for the way that you have portioned out
the data in regards to breaking down the different Hispanic catego-
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: ries. As a matter of fact, I was going to ask Mr. Bustamante, and
; I'm glad that you clarified to me that that is being done.

: I presume that’s a universal practice and not just for your
agency, but with agencies across the board; is that correct?

Dr.. FEINLEIB: It probably differs from a%fncy to agency, but
many of them ask first of the respondents if they are Hispanic and,
if so, how the identifE:hemselv% within the Hispanic community.

Chairman LeLaND. Let me pursue that just a little more.

Do you make determinations—and I presume you have to, given
e the problems that arise in gathering the kind of statistical data
that you need—that you do analyze the different categories or the
different groups within the Hispanic umbrella in accordance with
: socio-economic levels; is that correct?

. Dr. FEINLEIEB. Yes.
. Chairman LELAND. Is there an{1 given Hispanic group of people
that is “better off” economically than any other group?

Dr. FEINLEIB. Yes. The Cuban-Americans tend to be better off
than the other populations, probably with the Mexican-Americans
being at the low end of the economic spectrum.

Chairman LEeLAND. Mexican-Americans are at the low end.
That’s when you are considering primarily three different
groups——

Dr. FEINLEIB. That’s right.

Chairman LeLanp. Mexican-Americans, Puerto Ricans, and
Cubans?

Dr. FEINLEIB. That’s correct.

Chairman LELAND. I presume we don’t have a predominance of
other Hispanic Americans in this country. I know that there’s a

. great influx of Guatemalans and Hondurans and other folks from

Central and South America, but the predominant groups are

Puerto Rican, Mexican-Americans and Cubans.

Dr. FEINLEIB. That’s correct. And as you have in one of the press
releases here, 63 percent of the Hispanic population are Mexican-
Americans——

Chairman LeLAND. Sixty-three percent.

Dr. FeINLEIB. Sixty-three percent, and 12 percent are Puerto
Rican Americans, 5 percent Cuban, and the other 19 percent repre-
sent all the other nationalities of origin.

If T could just put this into perspective, the Hispanics represent
almost 8 percent of the population, and about 6 percent of the total

pulation are Mexican-Americans, with about 1 -percent being

uerto Ricans, and less than one-half of 1 percent Cubans.

Chairman LeLaND. Let me ask you something, then. The Cuban
{mpulation represents 5 percent of the Hispanic group. If I was
ooking at the category of Hispanics in the socioeconomic statistical
data, and I didn’t break the different groups down into Puerto
Rican, Mexican-American, and Cuban, to what extent does that 5
percent, being that it is better off economically than the other

oHpg, distort the reality of the problems within the Hispanic um-

rella?

Dr. FeINLEIB. That’s a very complex question to answer. It de-
pends, I think, a lot upon the condition {ou’re looking at, whether
or not economic level and also how well the sample has been de-
signed to reflect the different proportions of the population in the
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sample. I don’t think I could give you a simple rule as to how much
‘the effect might be. It would depend upon the conditions being——

Chairman LeLanD, Do you think there is a need to be that me-
ticulously analytical?

Dr. FeinLEIB. If the resources are avaijlable to get that kind of
data and analyze it appropriately, it could be——

b?l;airman LeLanp. What do you mean if the resources are avail-
able?

Dr. FeiNLEIB. Well, for examgle, to conduct a survey where you
get-adequate numbers from each of the subgroups you're interested
in, it requires getting a large enough sample from that subgroup.
That’s where the resource question comes in.

Chairman LELAND. As I indicated earlier, I was very disturbed
when I first got to Congress to find that there was no real knowl-
edge or information dealing with the problems of infant mortality
in the Hispanic community, even though we have recently found
out that it is now relatively the same as the white community. It
still represented somewhat of an insensitivity on the part of the
government or those who gather data on this information.

Don’t you think it’s necessary for us to pursue getting as rauch of
this information as possible?

Dr. FEINLEIB. Absolutely. When you’re dealing with records like
vital statistics records, which are under the purview of the State—
it's a State responsibility, not a Federal responsibility—the Federal
offices provide guidelines, recommendatiuns, or standards, if you
will, and this is what we’ve been very active in doing.

On the other hand, the States decide whether or not to include
items like that, and then it is the informants, the ones who fill out
these—~who provide the information and fill out this certificate, to
make sure tge information is put there and entered properly—that
has been, as the earlier discussion emphasized, a bit of a problem
in many cases.

Chairman LeLAND. But by strong implication, you need more
money for us to gather the kind of information that we need?

6 Dr. FeinLeiB. Well, I will just say that information doesn’t come
ree.

Chairman LELAND. I hear you loud and clear.

. Now, it is not your responsibility to answer why these prcblems
exist. It is your responsibility to gather the information.

Dr. FeinLEiB. That’s correct.

Chairman LeELAND. Mr. Bode, on the other hand, it is your re-
sponsibility to make sure that these people are served in various
and sundry ways; isn’t that correct?

Mr. Bopk. Yes, sir.

Chairman LeLAnD. Let me pursue a line of questioning with you,
Mr. Bode.

What is the Department’s position on creating outreach pro-
grams to encourege participation in food stamp assistance?

Mr. Bope. We feel that to require States to undertake food stamp
outreach activities is inaﬁpropriate because they have not been
shown to be effective. We have a very high level of participation in
the Food Stamp Program when one looks at the number of people
participating over the course of a year. About one out of every
seven Americans has been r»ceiving food stamps. The Food Stamp
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Program is well known and participation is proportionately at
levels that one would expect for the Hispanic population. There is
not, in our view, evidence of underutilization of the Food Stamp
Progran..among Hispanics or among other groups.

That is not, of course, intended to.reflect an animus toward out-
reach but an animus toward the requirement that States under-
take it. The Department of Agriculture do~s support States being
free to-encourage participation in the Food Stamp Program, even
thoutgh the program is paid for exclusively by the Federal Govern-
ment.

Chairman LzLAND. Mr. Bode, I hear you and I understand what
you're saying. I don’t necessarily agree with where you're coming
from. Obviously, I don’t agree, and you know that very well.

Mr. Bops. I understand, sir.

Chairman LeLaND. But one of the problems we have today is
that we have, especially in the Hispanic coinmunity, as was indi-
cated by Mr. Bustamante earlier, we have a migrant population, a
population that for purposes of employment moves from one piace
to another. Sometimes folks in that kind of mobile existrnce don’t
understand what resources are made available to them.

Do you not believe that we should inform them as to what those
resources are by some means?

Mr. Bobe. Sir, we have provided program information in materi-
als in several languages, including Spanish. I brought with me
today a display of Spanish language materials that we have.

As you may krow, the Department maintains bilingual require-
ments for certification for food stamps and the provision of public
information about the Food Stamp Program, so that in areas serv-
ing Hispanic Americans, there will be hilingual services provided,
and that includes a sensitivity to migrant influx where that occurs.

Chairman LeLanD. I understand. But, Mr. Bode, these posters
are all in Spanish or are bilingually written, if you will. But these
posters sitting here in this rcom, even if we were Hispanics and
could not read English, would not necessarilg' be effectively used if],
in fact, the migrant population doesn’t get these materials or don’t
see these materials. The point I'm making is, if we don’t use some
mesasure of outreach to get to these folks to let them read this in-
formation, that information being produced doesn’t mean a hill of
beans. It doesi’t mean anything. )

Mr. Bopk. I think the information is provided to States and it is
provided through various organizations to migrant groups, and
made available in that way.

I should also mention there are special provisions that apply to
migrants in the Food Stamp Program. Migrant heouseholds may
have little or no income at the time they apply for food stamps,
and they may be in need of immediate food assist: -ce even though
they expect to receive income later in the month from a new
grower, for example. They may therefore be considered destitute
and entitled to receive expedited service. There are also special
provisions concerning the manner of counting migrant income and
resources in order to take into consideration their special circum-
stances. This affords them flexibility in making deductions from
their income, which, of course, influences the benefit levels.
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Also, migrant : households may be exempt from some require-
mernts such..as the voluntary quit provision that you're fam111ar
with, Mr. ‘Chairman. There are.other special - factors for mi
that 1 might submit for: the record rather than going into -ad 1t10n-
al'detail on that point, if you would like.

Chairman: LELAND. What I would like to pursue right now is—
and I would appreciate the information—btt what I would iike to
pursue is.this question of outreach to sorae extent.

Let me ask you; then, do you know the numuer of ehglble His-
panics for food staraps?

Mr. :BopEe: I believe the answer to- that, M. Chairman, is we do
not because there-are a number of factors that complicate-the cal-
culationof the number of eligibles. In part, undocumented: aliens-is
a factor that very much corxplicates the calculation of the number
of Hispanics-that are eligible. As you are aware, there is-a sizable
number-of- undocumented Hispanic aliens present in the United
States who are not eligible for the Food Stamp Program.

Also, under URCA, we are phasing in-new eligibility for aliens,
including a sizable number of ‘Hispanics. So one would almost need
to refine the number each few months as that law’s provisions are
phasedin.

Chairman LELAND. Let’s set.aside the group of Hispanics, if you
will, and look at the overall eligibility of Americans for food
1s{tlzlalmps What is that number? There is some number out there, I

ow

Mr. Bope. 1 guess we are calculating today that approximately 60
to 65 percent of the eligible population is receiving food stamps.
Thnt is a percentage that has remained pretty much constant since
the elimination of the purchase requirement that was instituted be-
ginning in 1979. Prior to that time the percentage was below 50
percent, in the mid-forties, I-believe. So, the percentage of eligibles
participating in the Food Stamp Program has increased significant-
ly in the last 10 years. It is now.in the 60 to 65 percent range.

Chairman LELAND. Let me ask you further, then, if.65 percent of
the- eligible population is receiving food stamps, then what is hap-
pening with the other 35 percent who are not receiving them?

Mr. Bopk. I think there are a large number of things happening,
just as there are many reasons why people have low income, just as
there are-many reasons.acceunting for persons being in other eco-
nomic situations. A sizable number of the nonparticipating eligibles
in the Food Stamp Program have income above the poverty level
but would still be eligible for the Food Stamp Program. That is
where our highest levels of nonparticipation tend to be. There one
can get-into a situation where the amount of benefits that those
households would be eligible for would be relatively modest, 10, 15,
Z?f dollar benefit level, and they may feel that it is not worth the
effort.

I certainly don’t want to give you the impression, Mr. Chairman,
that I feel all eligible households fully undeistand all of the rules
for the Food Stamp Program. That most certainly is not the case.
What I was trying to emphasize is that I believe there is a wide-
spread knowledge of the Food Stamp Program being available to
assist those in need.
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T should also.note in response to your inquiry that we have a siz-
able level of nonparticipation among the elderly population. I be-
lieve that is due to some extent to the fact that some elderly indi-
viduals - would prefer not to receive assistance in the form of food
stamps. ] -

Chairman LeELaND. Mr. Bode, you bring another point to mind,
and-let me ask you for the record, if you will—and you can submit
this at some other point, as soon as you have the information avail-
able. I don’t suggest that you should have this available.

But I would like for you to quantify the number. of sénior citizens
who might be eligible for food stamps but who are not receiving
food stamps. By the same token, what I would like to have from
you is the number of children who are eligible to receive food
stamps and who do not receive food stamps. I would like to know
what the percentage is of that 35 -percent approximately, the per-
centage that would not receive food stamps, the eligibility of
those—Well, I'd like to know the number and the percentage of
those who are children who are not receiving food stamps.

The other thing is, let me.ask you. in your responsibility as As-
sistant Secretary—I don’t want to engage a question from you per-
sonally, unless you care to answer on a-personal level—is ‘it viola-
tive of the administration’s ideological principle to mandate States
to engage outreach progr.ms in a program like the Food Stamp
Program? .

Mr. Bope. Sir, we have generally been very reluctant to require
States to undertake outreach activities, not only food stamp out-
reac.: ‘but all across the board. That reflects this administration’s
broader view of federalism. You may be aware that in 1981, when
the administration first proposed elimination of the outreach re-
quirement, it was simply an elimination of the requirement. That
is what we find most troublesome, because it was our experience—
and there was considerable testimony provided to Congress prior to
1981—indicating that it caused a good deal of wasted effort, and
was a poor use of the precious Federal resources. That is certainly
the last thing I believe anyone wants.

Chairman Leranp. How did you reach that conclusion, that it
was a poor use?

Mr. Bobk. I believe the requirement for outreach activities was
viewed as leading to unnecessary efforts, efforts that were yielding
no effect. That is the basis for my characterization. We had these
broad, sweeping requirements and they often gave rise to a poor
use of resources, required activities that really had no significant
effect. That’s why we believe State discretion in these matters
makes more sense.

Chairman LeLanp. Mr. Bode, your administration came in here
in 1981, and that was the first year you came in here. You didn’t
have enough time to determine whether or not outreach was cost-
effective.

Mr. Bobe. Mr. Chairman, you may be aware there were a
number of us around reading records from hearings long before
that. There was a knowledge of testimony that had been provided
and a significant level of interest in the programs.

Chairman LeraND. Very simply, Mr. Bode, let me suggest that,
as we have discussed in the past, I am really concerned about the
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growing number of hungry people in this country and those who
are eligible and- who are not receiving food stamps, and a growing
number of those people happen to be children who have little or
nothing to do.with their own-fate or destiny. So I am really con-
cerned -about them. -

I believe that if, in fact, we had some kind of outreach program,
that, indeed—of course, we have a philosophical difference about
this—and that’s not to forgive you, by the way——{Laughter.]

But if we had these outreach--programs, certainly we would be
ableto find these children and feed them. I think it’s a white mark
on America’s history for us-to have hungry children.in our socie-
ty—white versus black mark, I might add.

Mr. Bobg. Mr. Chairman, I think I should note that we continue
to have a Food Stamp Program that is very responsive to changes
in. economic conditions. Our level of participation is higher now
than when we had these mandated outreach activities, though that
is largely because of the elimination of the purchase requirement.
We feel that our responsibility is to assure access to the programs
rather than t6 mandate State activities for mandatory efforts to
sign people up. As long as the program is there and available and
reasonable access is provided, that is the requirement we feel is im-
portant, and we do feel it is generally being met.

Chairman LerLanp. Under your federalism, you don’t think that
the government has a- responsibility to care for the people who are
suffering from hunger and malnutrition in this country?

Mr. Bope. Well, sir, I think I would like to note that we have got
some good news on that front.

Chairman LELAND. You've changed your mind.

Mr. Bope. As you may know, poverty rates, unemployment rates,
are on the decline; inflation remains low. We have seen some very
good information come out about the quality of diets in the low-
income population of the United States. Things are generally look-
ing good. You know that the number of people applying for food
stamps is down significantly. That, too, goes back to the responsive-
ness of these programs to the——

Chairman LeLanp. Mr. Bode, hold on just a second. Stick a pin
in that. I mean, I appreciate what you’re saying, but let me suggest
that there is also a school of thought that because of the morass of
redtape that one would have to go through to get food stamps, to
qualify—and by your own admission sometimes people find that too
cumbersome to deal with. They would rather, to some extent, not
get food stamps' than to go through what it takes to get food
stamps.

Could that decline not also be attributable, at least appreciably
so, to the fact that people just don’t want to go through the prob-
lem of going through the redtape to get food stamps?

Mr. Bopk. I think -that any time one asks that an applicant, for
any form of assistance, provide information, that there is some ap-
plicant burden associated with that request. I believe the applicant
burden in the Food Stamp Program is reasonable. I believe it has
not changed markedly from times in the past. It has not changed
markedly over the last 10 years, in my general experience. If there
are specific items that you would care to address, I would be very
pleased to talk with you about those items that you feel constitute
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an unreasonable butden. We simply have to strike a balance in ad-
dressing .the needs, between providing good access to address the
needs of low-income Americans, and assuring that assistance is pro-
vided.to those people who deserve and need-the assistance and not

‘to others, and that-the level of assistance be appropriate under the

law to the need that we are seeking to address.

Chairman Leranp. Well, we will pursue this whole issue of the
fundamental problems that I have with what your Department
does or -does not do in .these matters, and we should continue to
pursue those. But the purpose of this hearing, of course, is to refine
interest to what is happening in the Hispanic community.

In that light let me ask you, the research conducted by the GAO
indicates that three U.S. Department of Agriculture studies are in
progress, which will provide national information on Hispanic par-
ticipation. Is that not correct? You do have three studies going on?

Mr. Bopk. Yes, sir, at least three.

Chairman LELAND. At least three.

Mr. Bope. The Food Consumption Survey I reference is presently

in the field. A continuing survey on food intakes of individuals is

not_in the field at this time, eventually it will be. It is scheduled
and we are planning to receive farther out-information on Hispanic
food intakes there. And also presently I can call to mind an analy-
sis of targeting in the WIC Program where we are seeking to iden-
tify means of better targeting WIC assistance.

Chairman Leranp. We would like very much to have as much
information, as soon as you get at least near to a formal report in
these different ideas, as soon as possible.

Mr. Bope. Oh, yes, sir. We would be very pleased to do that. If I
may, I suspect we may have other activities that we would be
pleased to report to ysu on as well.

Chairman LeLanp. According to the recent GAO report, USDA
program-officials cite the lack of centrally compiled data about His-
panic participation, the absence of a demand for racial or ethnic
data and the burden of local agencies for compiling ethnic data as
the reasons for the lack of Hispanic participation information.

How difficult would it be to expand existing data collection sys-
tems to include specific information on Hispanics? -

Mr. Bopk. I guess it has been our experience, sir, that it would be
fairly difficult. It is difficult to quantify in response to that ques-
tion. An example would be in schools, school lunch applications.
We try to gather what information we can there, but one does also
get to an applicant burden issue the more questions that are asked.

. And believe it not, it is OMB who seeks to have us limit our appli-

cant burden.

Chairman LerLanD. Those are some bad people over there.

Mr. Bopk. Sir?

Chairman LevanD. I know you agree with me. Those are some
bad actors over there.

Mr. Bope. They make my life very interesting always.

So it really depends on the program. We would be pleased to talk
with you about specific information needs that the committee has
and efficient ways of collecting that information.

Chairman LerLanD. Very good.
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Doctor, what imspact will the proposed cuts in the National

Center-for Health Statistics’ budget have on your ability to collect
accurate and timely data on Hispanics? We talked about a need for

‘greater resources. What impact does this have?

_Dr. FEmnwLEiB: The main problem we are having at.the present
time is.with regard to the proposed Third National Health and De-
ficiency Examination.Survey, where we had been hoping to be able
to ‘have a large enough sample size to be able to get subgroups of
the Hispanic population, Mexican-Americans as well as Puerto
Ricans: Under the, current request we will be able to get data on
the Mexican-Americans-and the total Hispanic community, but not
on any-of the other subgroups. . ’

hChairman LerLanND. The total Hispanic community .but not on
the———- -

Dr. FEiNLEIB. The Mexican-Americans as a subgroup but none o
the others: .

Chairman Leranp. Well, the others, by the way, make up a
pretty substantial number of folks. Puerto Ricans represent 12 per-
cent; right?

Dr. Fer . That is correct.

Chairman Leranp. But you have the others. The others would
represent some 19 percent. And if you add in the Cubans, that is
even a higher number—24 percent.

Dr. Femneeis. Of the total Hispanic community, we will be able to
get specific data on the two-thirds that are Mexican-Americans.

Chairman LeLanD. The two-thirds that are Mexican-American..

Dr. FeNLEIB. But not on the subgroups of the other one-third.

Chairman LeLaND. But won’t that hurt us in terms of what we
are trying to determine here?

Dr. FemNLEIB. The information will not be available for the specif-
ic problems of those subgroups.

Chairman LELAND. In turn, it hurts us because we have to have
information in order to resolve the problems that exist. And-again
what happens, the effect is that it becomes even more cumbersome
?nl(lis more near impossible for us to serve the interests of those

olks.

Annual census data collections do not include information on the
total Hispanic population. How does this lack of information re-
strigt ?your collection of data on death rates for the population
group? .

Dr. FEINLEB. Yes, the Census Bureau does provide estimates of
the Hispanic population in the year of the census, but it is more
difficult to get estimates for the intercensal period where it has to
be based on estimates and indirect counts and samples. This means
that we cannot give reliable estimates until we have the counts
from two censuses to be able to interpolate between them, which
means we will be able to provide counts from the 1980 census and
we will have data from the upcoming 1990 cenens. But after 1990 it
will be pretty much guesswork.

Chairman LeLaNp. What incentives can be provided to States to
assure uniformity in the use of Hispanic identifiers for collectin
and reporting information on births and deaths among Hispanics?

Dr. FEinLEIB. Yes. Again, insofar as our resources permit we are
working actively with the States to provide them with materiai
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about the importance of providing this information, the.standard
methods for providing the information, to provide material to.send
out to-morticians and other people who have responsibility for en-
tering this information; and then the States put in their own funds
and resources to make sure that this effort is carried out, also.

Chairman LeLanp. Very good. Now the Chair, .as you have
heard,-has to go vote. I appreciate both of your testimonies. Thank
you: véry much for your continued participation. We will have
other ‘questions to ask you.as we go on with trying to develop some
information on Hispanics for the purpose of serving the responsibil-
ities of this committee.

The Chair will then dismiss these witnesses. I will be back as
soon -as I can make it over to the floor and vote and come back. I
will be right back.

Chairman LeLAND. Dr. Feinleib, let me reconvene for the pur-
pose of the question that you just raised with-me. Reconvene right
away the committee hearing for the purpose of getting your zz-
sponse on the record.

There was considerable discussion about how “Hispanic” is de-
fined for the purpose of gathering this information. Can you give
us your understanding as to how we define “Hispanic,” for -pur-
poses of the record.

Dr Femnpems. Thank you for that question. It is a complicated
one, but very briefly, we do work on a self-reported system. It is
what the respondent to a survey or questionnaire or an informant
with regard to birth certificates or death certificates report as their
race and their ethnicity as two separate items.

In previous years, there have been statistical rules. For example,
for children on the basis of what the reported race of the parents

was as to what the children were. That is no longer being done. We.

decided that creates a lot of problems, and now the data will be re-
ported in terms of the self-proclaimed or self-reported ethnicity.
statusdsof the parent, usually the mother in the case of birth
records.

And the caveat is that we ask the respondents to report their
race or ethnicity as they represent themselves in their communi-
ties. So there is that kind of adjustment system, if you will.

The interviewers, the people who take the data, are usually in-
structed not to make any self-assessment with regard to what the
respondent informs of us.

Chairman LerLanDp. In Puerto Rico, in Cuba, in other countries
where Spanish is spoken, Hispanic countries, if you will, there are
people who are black people. They come to this country, they speak
with an accent when they learn English, they speak fluent Spanish
with t};e different dialects, if you will. How do you report that
person?

Dr. FeinLEIB. We use two separate items.

Chairman LeLanp. Carmen Diaz, for instance, is as black as the
ace of spades, but is of Cuban origin. What is that person?

Dr. FemnpLeiB. We keep them as two separate data items: one on
race and one on Hispanic ethnicity.

Chairman LerLanDp. Now suppose she, being black, decides that
she doesn’t want to be identified with black people, and she says
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that she is Anglo—well, not Anglo, but she is Hispanic and she
doesn’t want to deal with the race issue. What do you do?

Dr. Femncess. If it was filled out that way, race would be reported
as unknown,:and ethnicity as Hispanic.

Chairman LeLanp. What if her father is white? It doesn’t

.matter?

Dr. FEInveiB. We don’t ask about dependents. It is self-reported
by the respondent. .

Chairman LeLaNp. What a dilemma?

Dr. FeiNLeis. Well, for statistical purposes, and for most ol the

programs, we think it is proper that the respondent as they repre-

sent to their community should report the informatien.

Chairman: LeLanD. So, then a Creole in Louisiana, who is. not
Hispanic necessarily but a Billy Tauzin, for instance, who is—well,
as | understand it, if you are black and you are French or you are
of French origin, if you are Franco-Black, Afro-Franco origin in
America, you identify yourself as being Creole. If you are like Billy
Tauzin, you have got a much bigger dose of the white people than

‘you do black people, then you declare yourself as Cajun.

In -your statistic gathering, you don’t necessarily make the dis-
tinction; you allow for that person to make the distinction?

Dr. FeINLEIB. That is correct. We usually have a category
“Other,” if this is doubtful; -and it is not really unknown. This is
ustually a relatively small proportion of the counts in any of our
surveys. .

Chairman Lzranp. Is this the beginning of the amalgamation of
the races in this country and the beginning of the dissipation of the
importance of race in this country?

Dr. Feinceis. I don’t know if I could give you an answer——

Chrairman Leranp. On an official level, though. I am talking
about on an official level.

Dr. FEINLEIB. On an official level, the OMB and the various agen-
cies have responsibility for defining certain subgroups of the popu-
lation as racial and ethnic minorities, so that is already defined by
at least policy. Beyond those groups it is pretty much of a social
problem developing.

Chairman LeLAND. Not necessarily a problem.

Dr. FEmniEiB. Well, that is why I hesitated on the word.

Chairman LeLanp. There is nothing wrong with being Afro-
American or African-American.

OK. Thank you so much.

Dr. FEINLEIB. You are welcome, sir.

Chairman. LELAND. The committee stands in recess.

[Recess.]

Chairman Leranp. We are going to now reconvene the hearing,
and we are very fortunate today to have Agapito, Juanita and Paul
Cortez from San Antonio, TX.

This Mexican-American family has an important perspective to
offer us on the problems they have encountered raising a family on
an income below the poverty level and the difficulties they have
had in accessing food assistance programs. Mr. Cortez is presently
working part time as a custodian, Mrs. Cortez is a food service em-
ployee at one of the schools in their community, and Paul is cur-
rently enrolled in high school.
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The Cortez family is accompanied by Rose Valdez, a social
worker at El Carmen Health Clinic. The clinic, run by the Daugh-
ters of Charity of San Antonio, has been serving Hispanics in the
community for the past 25 years. Ms. Valdez has been working
with the Cortez family over-the past few years in helping them to
access-public assistance programs.

The third witness is Mrs. Nylda Gemple, who is the Director of
the San Francisco WIC Program. She 15 an active member of the
Hispanic community in the Bay Area and heas devoted much of her
time and energy to alleviating hunger amongst hispanics.

I would also like to note that when the select committee conduct-
ed a field hearing in San Francisco in 1984, Mrs. Gemple was kind
enough to arrange for us to visit a WIC nutrition education session,
which was not only a delight for uz to visit but it was also a very
informative session that we had there.

Because of the time that we are faced with, or the problem of
constraints that-we are forced to face now, we are going to also
combine the last panel, and cur.final two witnesses will be Dr. Fer-
nando Mendoza, whe is an Assistant Professor of Pediatrics at the
Stanford University School of Medicine, who I understand has to ,
catch an airplane. Is that correct? ;

Dr. MENDOZA. Y5, sir. :

Chairman LeLanb. I apologize for the lateness of the hour.

He has-conducted extensive research on the health of Hispanic
children. Dr. Mendoza has been of great assistauce to the subcom-
mittee in helping us track the nutritional and health status of His-
panics.

And finally, Mr. Adolf Falcon, who is the Policy and Research
Director of the National Coalition of Hispanic Health and Human
Service Organizations. This group has been a successful advocate
for Hispanic health issues on a local, State and Federal level.

Dr. Mendoza, let me ask you, what time is your flight scheduled
to leave?

Dr: MENDOZA. At 4:45.

Chairman LELAND. Let me ask the other members of the panel, if
you will, to allow for Dr. Mendoza to please present his testimony
so that then he can take leave and catch his airplane.

Dr. Mendoza.

STATEMENT OF FERNANDO S. MENDOZA, M.D., ASSISTANT PRO-
FESSOR OF PEDIATRICS, STANFORD UNIVERSITY SCHOGL OF
MEDICINE

Dr. Menpoza. Thank you. Chairman Leland, I would like to
thank you for the opportunity to testify today. My cvlleagues and I
from Stanford University and the University of California have
been examining the health and nutrition of Mexican-American
children, as well as other Hispanic children. This has been funded
through the Bureau of Maternal and Child Health.

I was asked by your staff to respond to the question: Do we have
enough data on Hispanics to do appropriate health care research? 1
would like to answer that question in three parts. First, by examin-
ing the information we have had in the past; second by evaluatin
the information we currently have with respect to Hispanic; an
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third, giving you my opinion about the type of data that is still
nﬁﬂedde;d to do comprehensive health care research on U.S. Hispanic
c en. :

First, in terms of the historical aspects of data on Hispanics, and
particularly Mexican-Americans, I think we can break down the in-
formation into two basic categories: those studies that were done by
private researchers-and basically without aid from the Govern-
ment, versus those studies that were done by the Government. The
studies done by independent researchers generall%-provided us
with.a picture about Mexican-Americans and other Hispanics that
showed that there was a great deal of poverty. The effects of this
poverty on.Hispanic children were seen in the areas of growth, nu-
trient intake, and health status. However, the problems with these
studies were that they were of very small samples, so that at times
they included only 50 to 100 children. The other major -problem
with these studies was the fact that they were usually done in local
facilities, facilities that were mostly for the poor. At times what we
‘were redlKaseemg from the independent studies were a picture
what-was happening in local poor neighborhoods along the border
or in institutions like public health clinics that were serving the
poor. They did not_provide us with the broader picture of what the
whole Hispanic or Mexican-American population-looked like.

The other methological problem with these studies was that of
standardized methods. With multiple independent studies, every in-
vestigator does not always gather the same information in the
same way so that the information obtained may differ in the types
of measurements. This makes it very difficult to compare different
studies. However, the one thing that seems to be consistent in
these studies was the fact that poverty had a major impact.

If we look at the Government studies, it is interesting to note
that governmental studies have looked at the health and nutrition
of children about since the 1960’s. The first study,.the health exam-
ination survey, was a very complete study in that it looked not
onB{ at growth and health but also school performance of children,
and it was one of -the better studies done by the Government. How-
ever, Hispanics were not identified. Hispanics were lumped with
whites, and therefore they did not exist in that study.

A 10-State survey was done 1968 to look at the problems of mal-
nutrition. For the first time this study, as a Government study,
looked at Hispanics. It looked at Hispanics, Mexican-Americans in
Texas and California and Puerto Ricans in New York City. Howev-
er, one of the major problems with this is that there was no self-
identifiers. One was listed as Hispanic if his name appeared on a
Hispanic surname list. If your name did not appear on that list,
"you were automatically listed as white.

Now the interesting .thing- about this list, is that it has grown
almost twice in size since the late 1960’s. So there was a significant
‘bias in that list against Mexican-Americans and other Hispanics.
Therefore, when the data was collected the sample size was so
small that nobody could make any reliable estimates. So we were
there but we were not there in the 10-State survey.

The other thing that was of concern was that there was no socio-
economic diversity in the sample. The 10-State survey divided
States into high income and low income, but within those States
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there was no assessment of poverty. Why this was of importance
was the fact that in.order to look at the issues of how one culture
differs from another, particularly among Hispanics, one has to take
into account poverty, and poverty can only be examineA if we have
a broad-based sample of individuals. As you know, Mexican-Ameri-
cans have about 25 .percent of families under the poverty line, and
Puerto Ricans have 40 percent. So this was an important factor
that was not measured. )

The other thing I think was missed,.and to the detriment of the
Hispanics, is the fact that there is variation within Hispanic popu-
lations.. There are variations within Mexicans, tor example, that
would be. missed on the basis of just listing people as Mexican or
non-Hispanic. This is the process of acculturation. In Texas, as you
may well know, there are-families that are Mexican-American that
have been there for generations, beicre this cruntry was a country.
So those families could be viewed the same as somebody that re-
cently immigrated in from Mexico, and yet I would venture to say
that those are two different grotgﬁs of people.

Now few investigators have taken that into account. And one of
the problems of this lack of information about acculturation is that
you make everything oné group.and you lose the sensitivity and
abilitg to understand -how these factors affect health care delivery,
health behaviors and nutritional behavior.

The national health and nutrition examination surveys of the
1970’s, good surveys but they again did not look at Hispanics. Th%y
were not oversampled, so the data there were very small and,
therefore, could not be used. However, the HANES 1I, there was
some listing of self-descriptors for Hispanics and that would help;

‘but, again, the sample size was so small we couldn’t really do very

much with that survey. Moreover, when one does national surveys
it is important to have surveys that are valid for those populations
and for the Hispanic or Spanish-speaking populations none of the
governmental questionnaires were translated into Spanish, and
therefore what that resulted. is information being obtained from
people in a different language that had to be translated somehow,
and usually it was translated at the level of the interviewer or
sometimes by a family member that just happened to be around.
Without that standardized translation of qu _stionnaires, we could
not be sure that the reliability of the data was there.

The major study by the Governraent to use self-identifiers and to
try to make some attempt to look at the health of Hispanics was
the national health interview survey. This survey, as you may
know, is an assessment, by home interview, of health care status.
This survey actually has provided the only, or one of the major
publications dealing with Hispanics in this country. The Federal
Government prior to that had not published anything that listed
Hispanics or concentrated on Hispanics. This publication was enti-
tled The Health of Hispanic, Black and White Americans and was
done by Trevino and Moss from the National Center for Health
Statistics.

The important aspects of this study was: one, it showed that His-
panics had indicators for health and health care services that were
quite different for whites and blacks and also that, more impor-
tantly, within Hispanic subgroups, Mexicans differed from Puerto
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Ricans and they differed from Cubans. This is a very important
factor. I would like the committee to understand that Hispanics are
not all one group but are quite different, and they have significant
differences in their health care indicators and health care status.
The problems, again, with the health interview survey was the fact
that they were not translated into- Spanish, so the reliability of
that data was in doubt.

Moreover, Mexicans particularly, and Puerto Ricans also, have a
lower usage of health care services,.so that since this information
is based-on whether a physician has told that person whether they
have a health problem there would be a significant bias in the in-
fonlx)llaﬁon*because people would not know that they had a health
problem.

That brings us up to about 1980. One of the things that you
should also note is.that there really was no mortality data on Hi
panics. We did not know and we still do not know I think reliably
what Hispanics are dying of. We don’t know what children die of
that are Hispanic. We don’t know what elderly Hispanic individ-
uals die of. ' We have some views of it, and one of the interesting
findings that was mentioned earlier was infant mortality.

California has had data that Williams, et al., have looked at, and
one of the interesting findings there is the fact that women that

are born in Mexico have better infant mortality and low birth

weight infants than Mexican women born in this country. What
that tells us is that there is some factor that may have cultural im-
Ezicaﬁons.. This factor may not onl;ll‘ affect the pregnancy but may
buffering the effects of poverty. This is a very important finding
that we need to pursue to determine its validity and meaning.
However, the information is not currently available to do that.

One of the major studies on Hispanics to come into existence is
the Hispanic HANES. The first national study on Hispanics, and
this was' on Mexican-Americans, Puerto- Ricans, and Cuban-Ameri-
cans. The Hispanic HANES tended to overcome many of the prob-
lems of the previous studies, and I think has done an excellent job.
We have been analyzing that data over the. last 2 years, and I
would like to relate very briefly just two major findings that has to
do with poverty and culture.

Poverty has a continued major effect on the growth of children,
particularly in their stunting. When we look at children under 12

ears of age, poverty is the major factor that determines their

eight. If kids are equalized in terms of socioeconomic class with
other white children, they grow as well. But if they are poor, they
grow less well. For adolescents this seems to be a problem, but not
as much. There seems to be other factors there.

One of the other interesting findings is that obesity is becoming
a major concern among Mexican-American children. People may
say obesity is not a sign of hunger, but I think it is a sign of malnu-
trition or overnutrition. And that is an area that needs to be

looked at because obesity is linked with subsequent cardiovascular

disease and diabetes,

The other interesting findings I think were the fact that chronic
conditions or chronic medical disease was really about the same
level as that of the U.S. norm, and not much affected by poverty.
But when one asks the questions to the individual subjects, in this
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case mothers of children and the children themselves, how do they

-feel about their health, there is a-dranatic difference between the
‘health status perceived by the physician and that perceived by the

Mexican<American family. Physicians perceived 1 percent of the

Mexican-American children in poor health, mothers perccived 15

percent;'and children, from 15 to 20 percent.

One of the very important findings was that poverty and culture
or acculturation have major impacts on this health perception.
Mothers that were Spanish speaking considered 25 percent of their
kids to be in poor health. Mothers that were English speaking only
T percent. The adolesceirt that was Spanish speaking, 35 percent of
that group considered'themselves to be in poor health. The adoles-
cent that was English speaking, 15 percent considered themselves

t0 be in poor health. This would suggest that there is something

there that has to do with culture that we need to examine.

The problems with the H-HANES are, I think, not many. Howev-
er, I would list the sample for Cuban-Americans as one. Second,
and perhaps more importantly, is that the H-HANES was able to
identify only those Hispanics that had a perman.at residency, so
that those people that were migrant, or in the case of adolescents
that were out of the house were not identified. Those are high risk
groups that we need to have information about. Third, there was
no comparison groups, therefore we couldn’t really compare with
black or whites. Fourth, we had limited information on acute ill-
ness, and acute illness I think in poverty has a major impact. I
know from my clinical experience with children that recurrent ill-
nesses are important factors in poverty, and I think the next sur-
veys that are done should assess this aspect. .

But perhaps more importantly for me, being a pediatrician, is
the fact that none of the H-HANES data has any information, or
really significant information on the function of the child. We do
not know how well Hispanic children are functioning. We may
know what the height of the child is or what the hemoglobin value
is, but we don’t know how the child is performing in school, how fit
is the child, and overall what is happening with the child. There-
fore, I would make the following recommendations to your commit-
tee. .

First, it is vital that we obtain accurate mortality data for His-
panics. Currently we don’t have any information on this, and with-
out that we won’t know what Hispanics are dying of.

Second, national surveys need to include Hispanics and be able
to identify major Hispanic subgroups. Again, Hispanics are not all
the same. We need to acknowledge that. This means having ade-
quate sample size for Hispanic subgroups in order to obtain reli-
able estimates. Where this plays a major role, as you know, is in
HANES III where decreasing the sample size will basically elimi-
nate all information on Puerto Ricans that will be useful. We need
to have black and white subject samples in the same survey. We
need to look at the level of acculturation, make sure thc measures
of the survey are valid.

And again, for children, we need to look at function. Funciion is
important. We need to know how well those children are 1going to
be able to function and what is the likelihood that they will ke able
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to do better. Particularly for poor children, what the likelihood will
be that they will be able to leave poverty.

The third recommendation would be that we do nof. only national
surveys ‘but surveys on those that are mobile; that is, those who
don’t have permanent residences and would be lost by the Census’
way of assessing people. We should try to look at the homeless mi-
grants, and those perhaps should be done on a State level.

Fourth, I think that it is important that we go beyond cross-sec-
tional studies such as H-HAI and move on to longitudinal stud-
‘fes as well."One of the factors-for children is that they are growing
and they are changing over time. We can look at them at one time
but we don’t know anything else about what is happening over
time unless we do longitudinal studies. If we are interjecting nutri-
ticnil programs and health programs to make children better, we
need to know if these prograins are having an effect. We currently
dor’t know:tkat. We can only say that there is an association. So
the longitudinal aspects of studies need to be looked at.

Fifth, funding needs to be available for the national surveys so
that we are not cutting back on samples.

And last, I think there needs to be funding by NIH, Maternal
and Child Health and other groups to independent investigators in
the university communities because I think in that way we can
share the responsibility of looking at this data.

Thank you.

Chairman Leranp. Thank you very much, Doctor. Let ine sug-

' gest that I did have some questions, but what we will do is submit

them in writing and ask you to respond. Then we will enter your
responses into the record.

Dr. MEnpozA. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Mendoza appears at the conclu-
sion of the hearing, see. i_.n125.]

Chairman Leranp. I know you have a plane to catch, so why
don’t we excuse you now.

And I understand also that we have another panelist who has a
plane to catch at 5 o’clock. We are going to impose on our panel-
ists. Why don’t you proceed?

STATEMENT OF NYLDA GEMPLE, DIRECTOR, SPECIAL SUPPLE-
MENTAL FOOD PROGRAM FOR WOMEN, INFANTS AND CHIL-
DREN (WIC), SAN FRANCISCO, CA

Mrs. GempLE. ‘Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am Nylda Gemple. 1
am so pleased to have come again before you and this comiittee to
share my concerns about hunger in America.

I work for the San Francisco Department of Public Health, and
mg concerns are twofold: one as a health professional, and the
other one as a concerned American citizen of Hispanic descent—at
least until we started discussing Hispanic descent 2 or 3 hours ago.
For the last 20 years I have been employed as a professiorial in the
area of public health, and for the last 8 years as the Director of the
WIC Program in the San Francisco Department of Public Health.

Before I describe my concerns about Hispanic women and their
access to health care and public assistance programs, I would like
briefly to discuss the data that we have collected in California.
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There is a table that has been provided for you, and in that table it
will reflect that—I am going to make this brief in the iaterest of
time. In that table it does reflect that of the 280,259 participants
that we have in California, 157,362 were of Hispanic descent. That
amounts t0°56.1 };)ercent of the population.

As we further break down the total into categcries of women, in-
fants and children, the Hispanic participation becomes more em-
phasized. The total for women was 94,117, with Hispanics amount-
ing to 56,011 or 54.5 percent of the population; infants totaled
108,557, with Hispanics accounting for 65,128, or 59.9 percent, and
Z}éi%dren to:aling 71,585, with Hispanics amounting fo 36,223, or

.7 percent.

In San Francisco for October 1987, our program served only 8,228
participants. Of those 3,594 were Hispanics, amounting to 43.6 per-
cent of the participation. The table again reflects the Hispanic par-
ticipation by categories. I would like to bring to the attention of
this distinguished committee that Hispanics are not a majority of
anything in the city and county of San Francisco. Qther cultural/
ethnic groups, especially Southeast Asians and blacks, aggressively
see enrollment in the WIC Program and compete for the same
services.

Today I will be addressing the importance of proper nutrition in
pregnancy, the shortcomings of programs such as AFDC and why
the WIC Program is needed to insure both nutritional adecallxacy
and, hopefully, prenatal care for California’s low-income mothers.

Studies have repeatedly shown that inadequate diets during
pregnancy result in increased pregnancy complications and an in-
crease in low birth weight infants. Conversely, proper diet can and
does play a role in alleviating pregnancy complications, including
low birth weight babies.

The nutrition needs of pregnant and lactating women and in-
fants are greater than any other group due to rapid physiological
growth. Dietary requirements are increased for all nutrients above
the normal recommended dietary requirements. It has been well
documented that a women's nutritional health before she becomes

regnant has a significant impact on her pregnancy outcome.

any of the factors which affect birth weight are nutrition related.
These include her weight before she becomes pregnant, which tells
us if she was getting adequate calories, how many times she’s been
pregnant, which may determine her nutrient stores, as well as
whether she has complicating medical conditions such as diabetes,
high blood pressure or simply depleted nutrient reserves due to a
lifelong lack of adequate food,

Low birth weight babies account for over 70 percent of the infant
mortality casualties. These who survive often do so under very im-
paired circumstances, robbed before birth of equality of opportuni-
ty.
Think about how few low-income women consume a high quality
diet before pregnancy and you can begin to imagine the kinds of
problems that we face across the Nation.

The Supplemental Food Program for Pregnant and Lactating
Women, Infants and Children is a USDA program which gives nu-
trition education and vouchers to buy certain foods. Often that pro-
gram has a 3- to 8-week delay before giving benefits. These foods
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contain the nutrients most often lacking in the diets of these
women and:children: calories, iron, vitamin C, vitamin A, and pro-
“tein:

Several evaluations of the WIC Program i have shown that women
‘who receive WIC while pre ant have’ higher birth weight infants.
Because wIC: requires-a physical examination to determine if a
client is anemic, underwelght,,overwelght or otherwise at risk, cli-
ents who.might not otherwise receiv: health care are placed in a
position; where_problems can be iden.ified and proper intervention
applied. This leads to higher than usual enrollment in- prenatal
care, thereby eliminating one of the greatest risk factors in the se:
quence léading to high infant -mortality. The longer ‘the participa-
‘tion in the WIC Program, the better the outcome. Unfortunate
under’ the. current WIC. funding, only 33 percent of the ehglbie
women, infoats and children-are enrolled due to caseload limits.
WIC bent.iits are also associated with greater likelihood of -chil-
-dren having a-regular medical provider and being properly vacci-
=naued They are also associaied-with some evidence of better cogni-
tive ﬁ; ormance.in children. But the bitter irony is that cucrent
enrollment priorities focus on prenatal clients, keeping children
who would otherwise be-eligible from being enrolled.

The long-term consequences of denying proper food to various

generations of Americans is yet to be seen. The short-term conse-
quences are what we deal with daily; that is, anemia, shortened at-
tention spans, fatigue, and lack of interest in Iearmng It is impos-
sible to learn on an empty stomach. Under these circumstances,
equal opportunity is a cruel joke, rather than a reality for-all toc
many.
In San Francisco, we have only scratched the surface of address-
ing the real needs of a community inhabited by recent immigrants
from war-torn Central America.or the refugee camps-of Southeast
Asia. Families with years of inadequate diets imposed by the stress-
ful reality of survival encoiinter new problems in this country:
Language is the most obvious, but by no means the only barrier. to
-getting ahead. Among-other factors-interfering with the accessing
of health ‘and public assistance are those encountered by Hispanic
famﬂles in the areas-of severe. psycho-socioeconomic condltlons It
can be said that Hispanic families rank as the poorest among-the
poor since many of them are not residents of the United States,
and consequently are barred from' receiving public assistance bene-
fits. By nature they are not aggressive seekers, and that com-
pounds their loneliness and isolation.

Many of our Hispanic moms -are single parents and without
friends. Their extended family -concept—so revered by our cul-
-ture—has been cut off. Since a social support network is non-exist-
ent aniong' them, they have become among the most vulnerable
ethnic groups of our society.

As efficient and-cost-effective as.the WIC Program has proven to
be—because of every dollar spent on WIC, $3 is saved on health
care—WIC is not the answer to all our health and hunger problems
for the program only services, as I meantioned before, one-third of
its eligibles, focusmg on prioritizing pregnant women enrollments
first. The prioritizing methods have the effect of precluding chil-
dren access-to-the program as opposed to women and infants. A
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:10ther does-not go-home and eat by herself; what we hear and
know is that she will share her WIC foods with the rest of the
family, which brings-me to another issue that I hope in the future
this committee could address, and it is that of having more support

‘in Congress for breakfast and school lunch programs.

I thank'the committee for giving me the opportunity to come and

-testify again. Thank you very much.

Chairman LeLaND. Thank you, Mrs. Gemple. Let me thank you
for your continued support of the committee by way of your partici-

pation each time that we have asked. I have fond memories of the:

timé when -Sala Burton had initiated a Select Committee on
Henger hearing in San Francisco and you were so kind as to show
us arourd and-to give us the wisdom of your advice. We certainly
appreciate that.

Mrs. GEMPLE. Come back anytime. ,

Chairman LeLanp. We will do that. Aside from that, San Fran-
cisco is-such a lovely place to visit.

Let me thank you again. I know that you have a plaue to catch.
If we have questions, we will submit them in writing and keep the
record open for the purpose of receive of those responses that you
might give.

Mrs.-GEMPLE. Adios.

[The prepared statement of Mrs. Gemple appears at the conclu-
sior: of.the hearing; see p. 146.]

Chairman LeranD. Adios. Hasta luego. Muchisimo gracias.

Bienvenida a familia Cortez.

‘Mr. AgarrTo CorTEZ. Como esta.

Chairman LELAND. Muy bien. Muy bien. We are so glad to have
you here today. I ain going to read the record to find out if our re-
corder speaks Spanish or at least knows how to record Spanish.

We do want to welcome you. Thank you so much. We apologize
for the lateness of the hour. We didn’t save you for the last because
we felt that you were the least of the panelists. We saved-the best
of you, as a matter of fact. Let me say that it is the ordinary citi-
zens who suffer from the many problems of our country who are
willing to come forward and testify before these congressional hear-
ings that give us the impetus to go forward with some times legis-
lation, some times the mandate of policy that protects so many
othér Americans, and we know that it takes a lot for folks like

yourselves to come and tell your story to the Congress of the.

United States.

While there are only two of us who are here present, let me
assure 'you that the many other members of the select committee
will read your testimony and have their staff to analyze the testi-
mony for the purpose of trying to do what it is that we can to re-
solve the many problems that confront us, especially on the issue
that we are concerned about here today.

I also acknowledge the presence of Mr. Falcon, and we appreciate
your being here.

Let me ask now that the Cortez family testify. I don’t know in
what order you want to make your statements, but please proceed
as you wish.
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STATEMENT OF AGAPITO CORTEZ, ACCOMPANIED BY JUANITA
AND PAUL CORTEZ

Mr. Agarrro. CortEZ. My name is Agapito Cortez. I am 48 years
old and I am an epileptic. I hear about these food programs that
are available, and sometimes I hear that they are going to be cut.
A man-in my position with a family, let’s say-that I cannot find a
Jjob and I depend on-these food stamps to keep me going, to keep
my family going, and if they are cut, then what am I going to do.

I tell'my children: You finish school. Don’t drop out of school, so
‘you are not in this position that I am:

When you are an epileptic, you are different in a different world.
You-have to compete-with everybody, everything. You go and apply
for a job and they look at your application, you have all the qualifi-
cations except you are an epileptic; you-are required to do certain
things. The man is there- looking at you, you know. He says,
“Umm. Well; Mr. Cortez, this is good,” you know, “give him a cup
of coffee.” When he gets down to the medical part and the restric-
tions, he goes like that [indicating] and the expression is gone. You
know, yourself, you-are out of a job. He will not tell. you he won’t
hire you, but he will not call you. So I have to go back and get odd
jobs here and there to provide for the family.

For: 15 years-that .is what I have been doing. I managed to get.

two of my oldest boys -through high school and to graduate. I am
working with him [indicating Paul]. After him, I got two_girls left
that I have to still provide for. But if no one is-going to hire me,
how can I survive? Food stamps they give you to buy groceries, but
you need paper, pencil, pens, tennis shoes, clothes for the kids.

If they are all in a program, they come home and say, “Dad,
there is a project at school. I need $10.”

And you look at him, “Oh, that’s right, I know. We don’t have
it.”

Then he comes after a while, he says, “Well, why should I contin-
ue school? I prefer to go to work.”

B‘lit”l try, like with the other ones: “Look, you go and let me
work.

He says, ‘“Well, Dad, you are sick and you are getting old.”

“But still you let me work. You gust go to school.”

So far next year, I hope, he is 18 years old, I hope he graduates. I
tell him, “I don’t care if you are 20, you need to graduate. I don’t
wzla.]nt you to be another Mexican percent that you drop out of
school.

Because I don’t know what you people mean by, you know, His-
panic because I am a Mexican. When I was called before the Draft
Board'I was called as a Mexican. Not as Hispanic or whatever, you
know, but as a Mexican.

So I tell them that, you know, these programs, they will help a
‘lot but yet the programs don’t get to the people. We live in the
little town of Le Soya, right on the outskirts of San Antonio. The
posters that they had a while ago up there, I had never seen them.
There are people out there that don’t have transportation. We
lived 2%—just 2 years without electricity because I could not
afford it.

Chairman LeLanp. How long, sir?
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Mr. Acarrro CorTEZ. Two years because I could not afford elec-
tricity. We -used a lantern every night, and that is how they did
their homework.

But I try, you know, try to make a living as best as I can. I am a
janitor. Been-a janitor for more than 25 years, but due to my epi-
lepsy. nobody. wants to hire me.

The Social Security office says: Yes, you can work. Get a job.

But who is going to hire you?

The doctor-says: “Yes, you are.able to work. Go out and find it.”

But who is going to hire you knowing that you are not going to

be able to work fast enough, there will be days that you are goirg.

to have-to stay home because of your epilepsy, you cannot operate
electrical équipment, you cannot climb a ladder. So most places,
you know, they look at you and say, well. They just won’t call you.
%'ihrey won’t say no because they are afraid to say no, but they won’t
ire you.

* And up to this date, I have not been helped with any kind of pro-
grams. It has just been between me and my wife, and-some times
the kids will get a summer job so they can help out. And you know
I am not getting any younger, so I am going to need some help
pretty soon. :

Food stamps is a good program. The cheese that they give is very

good.

Chairman Leranp. The cheese, you said?

Mr. Acarrro Cortez. Yes. The cheese program is very good. At
least when your food stamps run out you have something to look
forward to.

And the food stamps office, in my opinion, they need, you
know—of course I don’t see it the way they work, but they need
help. Sometimes I think that chose people are overworked because
you go in there and they are crowded, they are tired. If you go
early in the morning, well, they treat you pretty decent. After
lunch, 12 o’clock, they just look at you. All they want to do is-get
-you out of the way because they are tired. And I don’t blame them.
I guess if I was sitting behind that desk I would get tired too. I
have heard from other friends and I have seen it myself, they
might sit there 2% hours waiting for someone to call them. And
you'have got your children there crying and running up and dows,
screaming and all that, naturally.the people that are working
there, they kind of get irritated. I think they do a good job, but 1
think they need a little bit more help, too, so they can be feeling
good when we go there to have some help. Otherwise, when they
are tired they are not going to function right. Just like you, if you
get tired back there, you are not going to be paying attention to
what we are trying to say.

People need to go out and look at the way some of us are living
out there. Not what they read on a piece of paper or by percentage,
they need to go out there and look. Walk and look and see the way
we live. A lot of people are afraid or they are embarrassed to come
and talk about it. But if people would just get out there, take their
Sunday suits off or shirts off and go out there and just spend a
couple of days out in the community, they can see what is happen-
ing.
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All you hear, you- know, whkat we hear from the caseworkers:
“Golly, again!.My taxes again! Golly! What am 1 going to do?” But
-you never hear the man is going to get-an increase in his salary.
ou- never hear about raising salaries. The only péople that get
their salaries are -ones that are way up in the high positions on
their own. But -the working man does not get an increase very
often. All-you-hear is about taxes and taxes. How can we keep up.
with.the tages if we don’t get more money? Because if I don’t get a
raise=let’s say, if T was an employee and I have been with this
.company for 6.years and I get a raise, let’s say, 5 percent every 2
years.. It is already eaten up in taxes. When you go buy your gro-
ceries, you pay.tax.
Nowadays, you pay taxes for everything. So how can the working
man compete if their salaries- are not raised to keep. up with the
taxes and to keep up with the groceries, keep up with the kids, so
you can have time to understand them?
When they come home and say, “Dad, can I have $20 to go to the
movies?” You say, “Wow! Son, Tcad'tand I am sorry.” When I was
growing up, of course, 25 cents, you could go to the movies, buy
-popcorn and g bar of -candy. Now it takes $20 to send the kids to
.the movies. Lake in my position, 1 only make $165 every 2 weeks.
How can I, you know, keep up with these programs? And then you
go ask for help and you don’t get it.

Chairman LELAND. Very good. Mr. Cortez, are you speaking for

your whole family? Senora? i
Mrs. Juantta Cortez. I am Juanita Cortez. I am 48 years old. I
have six children, three girls and three boys. 1.am very proud that
1 had this chance to come here in front of this committee and talk
about how I feel about all this hunger in America.
We live out in the country, La Soya. Our community is pretty
large, and there are a lot of -famillics there that are very muc in
low income. And they are in food programs but they do need a lot
more help than just that. I wish that there were more programs
available for all these .people to survive.

Let’s say that they get some foed stamps for the month, but it
will not go for the whole month. Let’s say that their food stamps
will go only to about the second week of the month. Now what are
they going to do for the next 2 weeks of the month? They will just,
you know, struggle day by day to see how they are going to get it.

In the programs for the school, there are a lot of students that
don’t want to go to school because they are embarrassed of the way
they -are dressed to go to school, you know, in front of other stu-
dents who can look better than they do. They just don’t want to go
no more. I wish that there would be, you know, some kind of a fi-
nancial—I think that when 1 say financial 1 mean moneywise, you
know, to help these people to buy other things than just food. Like
to go to the doctors and buy their medicine, buy other things. I feel
that there could be other means of financial aid.

We have a lot of people out there that doesn’t have any bath-
rooms inside their houses; they have to still go outside in the out-
house. A lot of them doesn’t have electricity. Old people that

capnot afford to get on that. That is why I am saying maybe there
could be another financial help.
Chairman LerLanp. Would your son like to make a statement?
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Mr. PauL CorTez. I am Paul Cortez, I g0 to Southside High
School in San Antonio. I am a junior.

I kind of thought of dropping out of school to ‘help my parents
out -because I knew we had problems, but I realized that if I did
drop out of school I wouldn’t be able to get a job because I wouldn’t
have an éducation. I'try to help out_as much as I can during the
suminer. I worked and ‘with the money I got from there I gave it
all to my-dad to help build the house, to help pay the payments,
and for the food. <

But I guess I kind of feel down too because nobody would hire
him use he was epileptic. I think there should be a job at least
for people who have epilepsy to be hired and they could have
money to support their families.

Chglrman LeLAND. Ms. Valdez, would you like to make a state-
ment?

STATEMENT OF ROSE VALDEZ, SOCIAL WORKER, EL. CARMEN
: CLINIC, SAN ANTONIO, TX

Ms. Varpez. Hi. T am Rose Valdez, I am going to give you a little
bit of background about E] Carmen and Le Soya, It actually is not
?palincorporated area. It is part of the city of San Antonio’s territo-
rial areas.

Mare specifically, El Carmen Clinic is a member of the national
health.system of the Daughters of Charity.. We are also incorporat-
ed in Texas through the Daughters of Charity Services of San An-
tonio, and this is something brand-new. There are three other
Places like. us. The Daughters also are in charge of the health care
for the homeless, so-their emphasis is on health care.

The people who use our services-come from four .census tract
areas: 5019 is 92 percent Hispanic and 40.9 percent of those people
living \in- that census tract live under -the poverty level, and that
same is.true for the other four. There i8 not a big difference there.
The educational level is about 63 percent of the people in our area
over 25 do not have a high school education.

We have approximately 22 percent of our homes in that area
that do not have indoor plumbing. They use outhouses, and you
can derive from that the health problems that are possible in a sit-
uation like that. .

I think most importantly is that thiz area is very much a forgot-
ten area, and it is not unique, fortunately, in the State of Texas.
ﬁnd I think that families like the Cortez ive day to day in surviv-

I bear to differ with the gentlemen who were speaking up here
earlier. I have been working in El Carmen Clinic for 2 years, and I
started with one particular family, trying to get food stamps for
this family and they got them in January, and I think that really
says a lot about redtape. It says a lot about the fact that the De-
partment of Human Services is willing to go the extra mile. I don’t
see that outreach is being done.

And there are emergency food stamps for people. When Mr.
Cortez lost his job about 6 months ago he came to me and said, “I
don’t know what I'm going to do.”

And Isaid to him, ¢ Well, what are your options?”’
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' “h}ille \ga.id, “Well, I'm going to get workmen’s compensation for a
while.

1.said, “Well, then don’t go apply for food stamps because it’s a
waste of your time.”

And, as far as the family is concerned at this point, their finan-
cial situation is that they probably could qualify for food stam
financially. However, Mr. and Mrs. Cortez over the last 15 to gg
years have been purchasing a piece of land. It is 12 acres out in the
country.. That is'where their homemade—their own-built house is;
they built -it themselves. And because of that reason they do not
qualify-for food stamps, and I think that these are the people who
fall through the cracks. And, unfortunately, these are the people
that T work with on a day-in and day-out basis, so I really feel like
we need to begin to address those people, the working people.

In the past couple of years—I am still a student, so I have done a
lot of reading. In the past couple of years, I have read a lot about
the cycle of poverty and the very most frightening thing to me is
that neighborhood or the area of El Carmen where for the most
part people work even if it is picking cucumbers a dollar a bag or
working in a restaurant a dollar an hour, I see these people more
and more relying-on State aid, and I think they need to know that
that is there to support them.

However; what scares me is that this cycle is beginning out
‘there, :and it scarés me that many of the families that I see are
afraid to challenge what could be theirs. Be it work programs, be it
WIC, be it Social Security—they are not willing to fight for that
everjn1 though they have it coming to them, and they are a silent
people.
~_And when you talk about Mexican-Americans and Hispanics, I
think for the most part in my own past, in my own family history I
think many of them will do without before being pushed around
and bruised by the system. So I think that is why many times the
numbers-aren’t there. That is why there is 11 percent Hispanics
using_ the food stamps system, when there are countless numbers
just in our area who could qualify.

I guess I feel right now the programs as they exist under the cur-

rent-administration are hurting the working man and woman, they
" ar< unot helring them. They are not supporting them, but rather
pun. hing them because they are working, and that is even more
frightening.

Chairman LeLanp. Thank you.

Mr. Falcon.

STATEMENT OF ADOLF FALCON, POLICY DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
COALITION OF HISPANIC HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES OR-
GANIZATIONS (COSSMHO)

Mr. Farcon. Congressman Leland, Congressman Penny, first of
all, I would like to thank this committee for the leadership it has
offered on bringing this problem too light, and especially for con-
centrating on the problem of the lack of Hispanic data. You have
my written testimony. I am just going to briefly touch on a few
points that-I think should be highlighted.

Chairman LeLanD. Thank you.
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Mr. FaLcon. The-first of those is, Why collect Hispanic data? We
have heard the problems the Cortez family has had with receiving
the type of services they need. However, without data collecting
.and our national heaith data collection systems, those problems
remain invisible. They are very real, they are very serious prob-
lems: But as far as the service providers, they don't exist if they
-don’t exist in our-data-base. .

Part- of the ‘reason they don’t exist may be that for quite som:>
time it-has been assumed that Hispanics were covered under the
category of “‘ie;neral population” or the experience of the black
community, which is used as a proxy for the experience of the His-
panic community in a minority model. As we learn more we know
it is inappropriate.

The second point I would like to touch on js.just a quick over-
view of the‘inajor national health data colleci.on systems. First of
all, Hispanics are not oversampled for in any of the health data
collection systems, except for the National Medical Expenditure
Survey which just started this year. Without that oversampling, we
have no real data on the healtl}; status of the Hispanic community.
All we have are special-and regional studies.

That is especially serious under two systems, the first of which is
the National Health Interview Survey. For over 25 years this
survey served as the cornerstone for those involved with health
planning, and it has provided continuous information on the health
status of America. We have no information for Hispanics under
that surveg save for a special s.ady done with data aggregated be-
tween 1978 and 1980. That data has already been proven to be out
of date with initial findings we are finding from the Health and
Nutrition Examination- Survey done for the Hispanic community.
Under that second system, the Health and Nutrition Examina-

tems, the Natioral Health Interview SurvEeg' and National Health
and Nutrition Examination Survey (HANES) are the major health
data -collection systems for this Klation. Since we don’t exist in
f)lllose health data systems, once again our problems remain- invisi-

e.

And the third major area of concern is the ce'lection of vital sta-
tistics records, death and birth information.

If I could just move right now to what I see as scme of ths needs
for Hispanic health data collection and how some of the prcblems
we have been talking about today could be solved. Very simply, the
first thing that has to be done is to oversample for Hispanics under
our national Health data collection systems. With that type of in-
formation we could get the first real data on the status of Hispanic
health. An example of just how far we are from that point, howev-
er, comes under the HIS survey that is going to be fielded next
year. Under that survey there is going to be a special su;iglement
focusing on diabetes As I am sure you are aware, for the ispanic
community diabetes 1s some three to five times more prevalent
than it is in non-Hispanic white communities. We will not be over-
sampled for in that diabetes supplement.

The. second area that needs to be dealt with is the arca of vital
statistics. For the first time Hispanic-identifiers are being included
on the model birth and death certificates that were released late
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last'year. The problem with that identifier is that proper technical
assistance is. not being provided NCHS to.the people that have to
use that identifier. If that identifier is not'.used properly, we arc
not going, to get real mortality.or fatality information.

In the area.of nutrition, we have some information that is sitting
there.. There has been no-monéy made for analysis for it, and that
is underthe Hispani¢ Health -and Nutrition Examination Survey.
The dietary tapes have been released for that survey. Very little
money has been given toward analysis for that survey, and that is
my-fourth point. )

Under :analysis, a lot of data is collected in this country. Very
little of it is analyzed, unfortunately. In the two major. health re-
ports, Health United States and the Report to theé President and
Congress on-the Status of Health Personnel in the United- States,
Hispanics .are not mentioned and, as Congressman Richardson
mentioned: before, only briefly in the Health Professional Report,

and-in Health United States there is not one.single mention of His-

Vg, <

-panics. .

If I.could just also speak to some of the answers you received
from NCHS which were inappropriate. You were given figures for
birth rates for the Hispanic ‘community. Those ‘are not national
birth: rates. Those are-birth rates for a selected number of States
and aren’t a' nationally representative samplé You were given a
level of chronic and acute conditions for the Fiispanic community.
That data does not exist per se; it comes from the 1980 HIS data,
which we found is not appropriate to what is going on today. For
instance, the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation has conducted a

survey of access to health care. They conducted it in 1982 and 1986.

In that 4-year span they-found a 50-percent rise in the level of un-
insurance among Hispanics. You were- given death rates for His-
panics. I think the most powerful thing I could say about the status
of ‘health data collection in this country is that I cannot sit here
today and tell you how many Hispanic men, women, and children
die in this country-every-year.

If you have any-questions, I would be happy to answer them.

Chairman-LeLAND. Thank you very, very much. I want to thank
all of you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Falcon appears at the conclusion
of the hearing, see p. 154.]

Chairman LeLAND. Let me ask my colleague, Mr. Penny, if he
would have any questions.

Mr. Penny. I have a few for the Cortez family. Mr. Cortez, you
indicated you get jobs as you can, and then later on in your testi-
mony you mentioned an income of $165 every other week?

Mr. Acarrro Cortez. Yes. That is part time that I work, 3 days
out of the week.

Mr. Penny. Three days a week for which firm?

Mr. Acarrro Cortez. I work at El Carmen Clinic. They give me
the job to clean up—mop and sweep in the evenings.

Mr. PENNY. It is maintenance work or janitor’s work?

Mr. Acaprto CorTEZ. Janitor’s work.

Mr. PENnY. And where do you hold that job at?

Mr. Agarito Cortez. At El Carmen Clinic.
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ered PENNY. At the-clinic. Oh! At the clinic where she is em-
ployed: .

I'don’t want the clinic to be embarrassed by this. But what is the
hourly wage:there? Do the numbers for me quick.
- Mr. Acarrro CorTez. About $5 an hour.

Mr. PENNY. About $5 an hour? And that is.the only job—how
long have you been working at the clinic on a part-time basis?

Mr. Acarito CorTez. I was working there, first it was just, you

‘know, helping them out and then——

Mr. PENNY. Yes.

Mr. Agarrro Cortez. I wouldn’t have the exact date right now
but it has been more than 2 or 3 months, I guess.

‘Mr. PENNY. OK, for the last few months anyhow.

-And prior-to that what kind of employment did you have?

Mr. Agarrro CorTEZ. I was working for Goodwill Industries.

Mr. PENNY. Same kind of situation?

Mr. Acgarrro CortEz. Yes. I was there, since I knew a lot about
janitor work they had me teaching the other group that was
coming in, with alcoholics and people that were drug addicts and
things like that. I was trying to teach them a trade.

Mr. PEnny. And for'the last 15 years—it has been 15 years since
you had a steady permanent job?

Mr. Acarito-Cortez. Well, it is always 2 or 3 years, and then the
?;‘St time that it slows down, well, you know, since I miss a lot out

-£0.
Mr. PENNY. OK. But over a 15-year time period it has been kind
of a sporadic employment history?

Mr. Agarrto CorTE2. Yes.

erl:’ PeNNy. Stretches of time when you haven’t been employed
at all?

Mr. Agarito Cortez. Right. Usually it takes me before I—last
time I got a-job with Goodwill it took me.8 months.

Mr. PENNY. Without any job at all until you got that one?

Mr. Acarrro CorTez. The one at the heaith centers, I finally
went and told them, well, either you give me a job or I am going to
go out there and rob a bank and get thrown in jail, and then my
family can qualify for food stamps and welfare, you know, t! ‘ngs

.ike tnat.

Mr. I enny. During those time periods when you haven’t had a
job at all where did th~ support from the family come from?
Mr. AcAriTo CorTzz. She works.
Mzr. PenNy. You work as well?
Mrs. JuaNiTa CorTEz. Yes.
"Mr. Acarrro CORTEz. She works.
Mr. Pen:;y. You work now?
Mrs. Juanrra CorTez. I am working right now at Southside High

* School. I am a cook .there. I work 6% hours a day and =~ 9

months.

Mr. PENNY. You have ‘been there for 9 months and you work
every day except weeltends?

‘Mrs. Juanrra Cortez. I work 9 months out of the year.

Mr. PENNY. Nine months out of the year. OK.

Mrs. JuaNiTa Cortez. I have been working there for 10 years.
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Mr. PenNy. Oh; you have. And that brings in a little extra
family cash then.

Do you grow.produce on your 12-acre farm?

Mr. ‘Agarrro CorTEZ. No. Because there it is very dry.

Mr. PENNY. Oh, it is. And so it is mostly just a home site?

-Mr. Acarrro CorTez. Yes, it is:

Mr. PENNY. So you have-got some land for yourself and a home
" for yourself.

_ Mr. Acarrro-CoRrTEz. It is a home site. Like the older one wants
. to build a house, the land is there for him to build a house. He

doesn’t have to worry. about finding a house to buy.

Mr. PenNY. You have two boys who are already out of school?
Mr.-AcAprro CORTEZ. Yes..
Mr. PENNY. They have both got their-degrees.
Mr. Acarrro Cortez. They have right now. One of them was sup-
.posed to have gone and I'hope he got hired as a fireman.
- ‘Mr. PENNY. As a fireman?
Mr. Acarrro CorTez. He did it on his own.
Mr. PENNY; And he is living in the San Antonio area?
Mr. AGgarrto CORTEZ. Yes.
Mr. Penny, He'is on his own, he is not living with you?
_ Mr. Acarrro CorTez. He is not with us. He is on his own.
Mr. PENNY. Has he had any other job or is this his first job?
! Mr. Agarrro Cortez. Well, he is working for Universal Counter-
: tops. That is where he is working.
Mr. PENNY. And he is now trying to get hired as a fireman?
Mr. Agarrro Cortez. Yes. Because he graduated school and he
can do better ‘than just making countertops.
Mr. PENNY. And how about the other boy?
Mr. Acarrro Cortez. He is right now trying to get a job as assist-
ant manager for Wendy'’s.
Mr. PENNY. How long has he been out of school?
. Mr. Acarrro CorTEZ. Well, he is 27.
Mr. PeNNY. So hée has been out for some time. And he has had
v other jobs during this time period?
: Mr. Acaprro CorTEz. Yes.
¢ Mr. PENNY. And he has lived on his own most of this time?
‘ Mr. Acarrro CorTEZ. Yes. .

Mr. PENNY. So getting that high school degree did make a differ-
ence for those two?

Mr. Agarrro Cortez. It did make a difference, and I am very
proud of them. At least they were able to get something that I only
dreamed of getting. And that is why I keep telling him, you know,
to stick with it. Look at your brothers. Slow but, you know, it will
come.

Mr. PEnNY. And you are not on any public assistance right now?

Mr. Acarrto CorTEZ. No.

Mr. PENNY. During the last 15 years what kind of public assist-
ance have you received?

Mr. Acarrro Coktez. The last time, it was 7 years ago that I
went to the Food Stamp Program. They told me, since I had 12
acres of land and I had money to pay for that land, I had money to
buy groceries.
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Mr. PENNY. So the last time you checked into any public assist-
ance was 7 years ago? How about unemployment compensation or
workmen’s compensation?

Mr. Agarrro Cortez. Well, I got that for about 8 or 4 months—4
months, 'because they told me that it was running out. When you
go to unemployment, they give you a piece of paper and you have
to go and get at least 6 or 10 people to.sign.that. You go to a place
of business and they are not iring, vzou say, “Will you please sign
here that I was -here?” They say, “Well, we don’t Rave the time.”

Mr. PENNY. But you haven’t been on unemployment——

Mr. Acarrro Cortez. I think I just gave it up about a month ago

‘because thty told me it was running out.

Mr. PENNY. So over the last 15 years you have been on unem-
ployment periodically?

Mr. Acarr Cortez. Off and on.

Mr. PenNy. Off and on, but not for very long stretches?

Mr. Agarmro CortEz. My biigest place that I stayed the longest
was the University of Mexico here in San Antonio. But since they
had their problems, too, with devaluation- of the Mexican money,

they were forced to let me go.

Mr. PENNY. What about the food distribution program? I think
we call it TEFAP, although it may be a food shelf program down
Your way, I am not sure. It is handled differently. It sounded to me
i}l:e you have had access to that. That is where they give you
cheese.

Mr. Agarito Cortez. Well, I go and bring i, see.

Ms. VaLbEz. He does our transport for us.

Mr. PENNY. You get some of that as fart of your payment for
handling the program?

Mr. Acarrro Cortez. No, I don’t get paid for that.

Ms. Vavrbez. No, no, no. Not at aﬁ.

Mr. PENNY. I mean, I wouldn’t object tc that. I am just asking.

Ms. VaLpez. No.

Mr. AGAptT0 CorTEZ. I do that in my own pickup truck. Because
they claim they can’t afford to buy a truck for that, so I do it on
my own pickup truck.

Mr. PENNY. Well, do you get any of that produce yourself?

Ms. VALpez. He has just qualified. We just submitted an applica-
tion, so he starts in April.

Mr. PENNY. He qualifies now. He is working at the center, he is
h}elalping with the distribution program, and he qualifies for some of
that.

Ms. VALDEz.. Yes, he now quelifies for it.

Mr. PENNY. Are you basicaliy getting cheese down there or do
you have some bread products as well?

Ms. Vaipez. We are getting cheese, some butter, some honey,
rice, flour—

Mr. Agarito Cortez. Powdered milk.

Ms. VALDEZ g:ontinuing]. And powdered milk.

Mr. PENNY. Can I ask, Paul, in your neighborhood is your family
situation pretty typical?

Mr. PauL CORTEZ. l\'g neighborhood?

Mr. PenNY. Yes. The people that live in your neighborhood
there, are there a lot of other families kind of in the same situation
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your family is where mom and dad both work, neither maybe have
the best-paying jobs around but they are somehcw—or maybe there
is a’lot ¢ families that are worse off in terms of no jobs at ail?

Mr. PacL-CorTez, Well, I have a-couple of friends that are cer-
tainly, where their dad is the same way and they are the same way
as us. They are suffering just like us.

Mr. PENNY. What is the employment situation in the San Anto-
nio area? I mean, is it an economy with growing job opportunities?
Because I don’t know: Texas. 5
_'Ms. VAubEz. Yes. It.is an.econory with growing job opportuni-
ties. However, they are very skilled jobs, high tech jobs, and what
is happening-is most of the people just don’t have skills so thxr are
not taking on these jobs.

~ M. PeNny. It was mentioned earlier I think by Rose that 60 per-
cent of the pogulatlon in your community—is it El Carmen?—
didn’t.have high school diplomas. Are-things getting better in this
generation? Are we seeing more graduates in this current genera-
.tion than the general population?

Ms. VALDEZ. Yes, we are. The graduating class of 1987 of South-
side High School, two-thirds of them completed their education.

Mr. PeNNY. So it is better but it is not a heck of a lot better?

Ms, Varoez. It is not wonderful; no.

Mr. PENNY. In your case; I mean you have certainly been per-
suaded .that sticking with school is the smartest thing to do, and
apparently it has helped your older brothers get into the work
force, but what is happening to some of the kids that drop out? You
certainly must know some that have already dropped out.

Mr. PauL Correz, Well, some.

Mr. PENNY. Where are they at? I mean, are they getting jobs? Is
it really a rewarding thing for them to get out of school?

Mr. PauL CortEZ. Some of them just want to get out just-because
they don’t want to go to school.

Mr. PENNY. Get cut for the sake of getting out. So it isn’t a given
that if they drop out of school they are going to find a job and help
their families?

Mr. PauL Cortez. Well, they can’t find a job if they drop out.

Mr. PENNY. I mean the odds are. But that would be part of the
motivation for them, I would guess, though, is to help the family,
a?d yet once they get out they may not be offering much help at
all.

Can you think of anything that could be done to provide a
stronger incentive for students to stay in school? I mean, what
would help you to decide to stay in school besides your dad telling
you that you had to?

Mr. PauL Correz. To get a degree.

Mr. PenNY. How can we reinforce that, though? I mean, how can
we make an impression on the other 33 percent of these kids that
are leaving school that that is not a very smart thing for them to
do? What 1s it that we could do, or what is it that teachers could do
at the school to make a better impression on these kids that it is
worth it to stick with it? Tou%P to say?

Mr. PauL CortEz. Talk to them.

Mr. PenNY. Is it better to have someone like you talk to them or
can older “~lks have an impression on them?
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Mr. Paur Ccrtez. In a way. They probably wouldn’t listen

anyway.

m Penny. They may not listen anyway. But that is really, I
mean, that is a tragedy when you iave got that many young people
leaving high school. I mean, the odds are in today’s economy that
without at least a high school degree you are just assigning your-
self to unemqloyment for the rest of your life, or at least at best a
sporadic.employment situation. Your brothers have already proven
that with that degree you have got a better chance of keeping some
tm of job. It may not be the best job around but at least some-

thing

Well, I appreciate your being here. As the chairman said at the
outset, this kind of testimony is more meaning;ll to us than all of
the statistics that can be dumped on us. You know, statistics don’t
tell us about what is really ﬁomg on out there. I mean, it is easy to
depersonalize the debate when all you are looking at is numbers.

r. AcAaprro Cortez. But if they would only go and visit the
schools, talk to the kids, visit the neighborhoods, and really see for
themselves what is cut there, and not reading them percen-

ewise.

r. PENNY. That is precisely why your being here is so valuable,
because it humanizes the issue for us. I will give our chairman
credit. That this is one committee that gets out of town and travels
to various locations around the country to see for firsthand, and 1
think that is a valuable thing for us to do.

Mr. Acarrro CorTEZ. In our opinion, too.

Mr. PEnNY. We also appreciate those of you who take the time to
come here.

Mr. Acarrro Cortez. We, ourselves, did not have city water
there, but we finally got' it. Took us 20 years almost to get city
water, but we got city water. It cost us a good penny. I, myself, had
- to pay $1,700 to tie into the main water line.

r. PENNY. Oh, you do?

Mr. Acarito CorTEZ. Yes, sir.
Mr. PeEnNY. That is a pretty penny.
.dl\gr. Acarrro CorTEz. Everything we do is for the future of our

Mr. PENNY. Well, I thank you for being here.

Mrs. Juanita CorTeZ. Sir, going back to encoursging the kids to
stay in school, I think that the kids would stay in school if they
had better e(illlipment and materials to work with. At Southside
High School they don’t have all the materials that they need. They
need a lot of materials to work with. For instance, I think that
every year it is getting harder and harder on the kids to stud
their studies, They had a research, not recently, maybe a mont
back, on English research, and to do that they needed special t
writers, they needed special books to work with, which the school
didn’t have. And the branches that are out there of libraries, they
didn’t have it, so they had to go to the main library up in town,
which some families do not have the transportation to go and take
the kids to that main library. So I think that if they would have
the equipment to work with I think that would help them a lot.

Mr. PEnNY. I appreciate that suggestion. I am on the Education
and Labor Committee as well, and the issue of dropouts is some-
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" thing we dre working with.over there and trying to identify poli:
" cies of-types of assistance that we can.provide the'local school dis- ,
Peoe tricts to-help:them*keep these kids in-school. It is again one of the :
valuable dimensions-of this comm1ttee that it'is a select-committee, :
which allows.us to look at the:broad issues: relating to hunger. And. .
all of usserve on other. committees’ like-Agriculture-and Education :
and Labor, and we ‘can take ‘back some of what we ‘hear in- this :
cominittee and’ try to mcor;iorate that into the.policiés we adopt in
those other committees. So apprecmte your advice in that respect.

““Mrs. JuantTa CortEz. Yes: Because:there are a lot:of students
there that:do want:to get-up there; you-know, to-have better of ev-
erything. but if they don’t have the materials. to work with, how %
are- they going to.do.it? I know that Paul -said: “Well, I am not N
going ‘to- do-it-because. I don’t have, you know, the- thmgs to work
witly;.80' T am-going to.gét a flat zero on’it.”

hMr "AGAPITO CoRTEZ. So we got him the books. We took him out

-there.

Chairman-LerLanD. Very good.

Mr. Acapiro CorTez. We had a hard time proving, so we could
) get a-library card, because we live on' a route number. If you arein
: the city_ i o have a- regular' address: Qut there two or three fami-
T Iles get their mail- in ‘one box. We tried to prove to'the library, you
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Chalrman LELAND. So you don’t have an address?
: Mr. Agarrro Cortez. We have an-address. But let’s say my ad-
H il’re’ss:i (1)% Route 7, Box 400. Also, the people in front of us is Route T,
- - PBox
‘Chairman LeranD. I am also the chairman of the Postal Oper-
ations Subcommittee.
Mr. Acariro CorTEZ. You know, everybody is going to get their
mail in one box.,
Chairman LeLaND. You are testifying for a lot of different rea-
sons, and we appreciate it.
‘Mr. AcarrTo CorTEZ: If you go to look for me, you know, you look
at the map, La Soya is not on the map, so don’t look at the map.
Chairman LeLanp. We also understand the problem of cluster
boxes, and so-forth, too.
Mr. PENNY. You can’t find my hometown on the map, either.
[Laughter.]
Chairman LeLAnD. Except you ask where he is from, everybody
knows where he is from.
Let me ask a few questions, if I might. And I know that the hour
is late and ‘you are anxious to leave. You have been very patient
and you have been here for a long time. Are you going back to San
Antonio tonight? ..
Ms. Varpez. No. )
Mr. AGAPITO CorTEz. Tomorrow. .
Chairman LerLanp. Tomorrow. So you will have a chance to see
Washington, I hope.
Mr. Agarrro Correz. Well, we hope so.
Chairman LeLanp. Well, T hope you don’t leave too quickly then.
Did you get a chance to tour Washington a little bit? :
Mr. Acapiro Cortez. No. We just got off the airplane and came E
straight over here.
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-~ “Chairmén LeLanp, Is this your first w ip to Washington?

§ Mr.-AgariTo CorTEz. First trip to Washington. :
¢ * Mr. PenNy. What time is your flight tomorrow? T
Ms: VALDEZ:'5:35. :
- ‘Chairman LELAND. Oh, jou have got plenty of time. Very good. -
o And you;don’t have to go-to school, so you are happy about that, l
o aren’t.you? - -
_ Mr. Agarrio Correz. I-think his history teacher is going to quiz
him on-what he heard here. ° i i
*Chairman -LeLAND. Certainly, if you need some assistance in get-
ting:into.places,and/or some advice about where to.go, please feel
free to.call-on-c ur-offices. We are very happy. to be a le-tO'provide
: that for you. We_.iington is an invaluable experience. I don’t know
1 how many-times you get a chance to leave Texas even, but Wash-
ington is your Nation’s Capital and there are a lot of beautiful o
> things to-see. You are not going:to be able tc see them all in one
; dﬁy, but certainly. you will get a chance to see a lot. We appreciate
that. )
y 7 ‘Let me pursue some questions, if I can. Of Kour family income,
: %’g&r" monthly income, approximately how-much of that is spent on

Mr. Agarrro Cortez. Well, there -are weeks that I will sit down 3
and spend: half the night trying to think, and then my wife says: :
2 “What is the matter? You don’t love me anymore. You don’t pay
attention to me.” Say I try, you know, first from about $64, some-

times $27 Lecause-I'still have to pay my bills.

! " Chairman’ LEL.ND. On food?

: Mr. Acarrro CorTEz. On food. Our main diet is mostly of beans,
potatoes and rice, and day-2ld bread.

Chairman LELAND. Beans, potatoes, and rice. And you drink a lot
of water?

Mr. Acarrro CorTEz. And day-old bread, because day-old bread is
easier to buy. We buy from H.E.B. :

Chairman LeLAND. You <aid that for 2 years you went without :
electricity. ;

Mr. Acarrro CorTEZ. Yes.

Chairman LeLanp. Was that a choice because you just didn’t
have the money to afford the electricity and you needed money to
buy food and other things?

Mr. Acarrro Cortez. Well, I wes building the house at the time
and I needed a septic tank system, and it cost $2,500 and the:
wanted cash. You know; because I didn’t have credit, so I couldn’t
get it with credit. So we had put most of the plumbing in the
house. We just made us a big hole, we covered it up, and there is
where the waste went to. Then after 2 years calling City Public
Service, you know, I finally got my electricity, and it only costs me
$68. But the first time they said it would cost me $1,500.

So after we got our electricity, well now, you know, at least the
kids can see television. Because they used to tell me every day:
When, Daddy, are we going to be like the rest of the families that
have a television?

Chairman LeLaND. I am struck by the circumstance of your life
and the vibrancy that I feel that you have about your responsibil-
ity to support your family, both you and Mrs. Cortez.
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Mr. Acarito Cortez. Well, when we got married, we said “I do,”
and we still do. [Laughter.]

Chairman-LeLaND. Forever, huh? And you have five children?

Mr. AcariTo CorTEZ. Six.

Chairman LELAND. Six children. Three boys, three girls?

Mr. Acarrro CorTEZ. Yes.

Chairman LELAND. And you have got three away from home and
three at home?

Mr. Acaprro CorTEZ. Yes.

Chairman LeLanb. Do your kids who are away from home still
help you at all? .

" M. Acarrro CorTez. Oh, they do,-but I cannot depend on them.
They have their own, you know—— -
airman LELAND. amilies and other things.

Mr: Agarrro Cortez. I tell them, “Look. Fellows, I need some
money.” Like we can make this trip over here and I told Leonard,
mykson, he was the only one available, “I just have $9 in my
pocket.” .

He said: “Dad, I can only give you $20.”

I said: “Give me the $20. At least we can buy a souvenir.”

Chairman LeLaND. Let me say to Paul—Paul, do you feel good
about being able to get a job in the summer and helpin%1 your
family? Are ggu the oldest of the children who are leit at home?

Mr. PauL CortEZ. Yes.

Chairman LELAND. You have two?

Mr. PauL CorTEz. Sisters.

Chairman LELAND. Two sisters at home, and you pretty much
take care of them. You look after your sisters?

I feel that you really understand the value of being in school. Did
you drop out at all before?

Mr. PauL CortEZ. No.

Chairman LeranD. You haven’t dropped out? And you expect to
graduate after next year; right?

Mr. PaUL CorTEZ. Yes, sir.

Chairman LELAND. Have you ever really wanted to go to college,
to community college or some other school after you have graduat-
ed from high school?

Mr. PauL CorTez. Well, I want to go to a vocationhal college.

Chairman LELAND. So you can learn a trade or develop a skill.

Mr. PauL CORTEZ. & am taking a claas for it right now in school.
u CI;airman LELAND. Are you in wkat is called distributive educa-

ica?

Mr. Pauz CorTEZ. Building trades.
thCl})airman LeLaND. Yes, something similar. Yes. And you like

at?

Mr. PauL CorTEz. Yes, sir.

Chairman LEI AND. So you really believe now that you are going
to stay in sc*ool in order that you can help your folks. Well, that is
admirable. Let me say that I hope that you do. Sometimes you
might find that even though you have very little, whether you
have the books and the typewriters ard things like that available,
sometimes even if you work hard at it you can do a lot with very
little, and particularly given the.responsibility knowing the circum-
stance of your father, in particular, who has had a hard time be-
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c}a:use of his particular illness: You can g0 a long ways to help
them. .

And if we can say anything here, and I know that my colleague
feels the same way, as he has said, we hope that you -wiil be in-
spired at least,.you know, to some extent to g0 on and finish school,
get a degree, so that indeed you can get the kind of job that you

‘want, something that.you might have a greater opportunity facing
you than what you might eéven imagine right now. So we are .in-
-spired by your coriing here to spend some time with us.

You have:a lot of responsibility .on your shoulders as a young
man who'is in school. Not only a young man who grew up in a situ-
ation -where you have a ve difficult time in life, but you are also
an Hispanic. Hispanics in thi country have suffered a lot of prob-
lems because of poverty and because of a lack of educational oppor-
tuml%m Growing up-in the barrio is not the easiest thing in the
world.

I grew up in the ghetto, if you will, in the barrio of the black
community. My mother reared two boys by herself and had to
struggle along like your-mother and father did. And those two boys
‘that my mother reared—well, she had it easier because she only
had two boys. She had it a little more difficult, though, because she
didn’t have. a husband around. But both of those boys are pharma-
cists and one is a Member-of Congress.

But I can tell you that I am not much different—my circum-
stances were not much different than yours. When I was growing
up I had. the same kinds of problems. I never had to want for any-
thing. We might not have been able to eat all we wanted. By the
way, there were no food stamps at that time. No public assistance
programs that my mother could go to get. We were fortunate in

hat we grew up in my grandmother’s house, so therefore, we
didn’t have to pay any rent, but we had to pay for everything else,
My mother was a short-order cook in- a pharmacy, in a drugstore.
She worked at night and went to school, Tegas Southern Universi-
ty, during the day. She took us with her. We were little boys. She
had started all over when I was about 7 or 8 years old. My brother
was a year younger than me. She made it. We watcher her—we
went to her graduation. She was very proud. And then she got two
mﬁstelr’s degrees and now she is the principal of an elementary -
school.

But I can only say to you, Paul, that if you work hard at it you
can make it, too. You don’t have to stop with Jjust trade school. You
don’t have to stop at high school, that is for sure. There is a lot out
there for you.

I know that your Congressman, who has shown great interest in
all of you, will be glad to help you in any way that he can. Al is a
grea_tpman;"ﬂAfld he is the son of migrant workers—migrant farm-

We appreciate your contribution today. We will have to submit
some questiors to you in writing, and we will keep the record open
for your responses. And again, we want to make sure that you
enjoy yourself, .00, while you are here. Come to the office tomor-
row and we will be glad to give you some guidance as to where you
might want to go and provide you with some tickets and passes, if
you will, to go into the Congress and see what we do. You might
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gﬁt«aflg more-confused about what this is all about by going to see -
:all of that.. i

Mr. Agarrro CorteEz. Well, you know, this is something similar -
to where:we went when we were fighting to get our city water.. 3
£ Chairman LELAND: Oh, yes; at city council. 5
r . Mr. Agarrro Cortez. You know, we had to get in there and I
> mean-you had to dig in.there. Otherwise,.they would have passed .

you by and:you wouldn’t be heard. -t
Chairman Leranp: I can tell that you feel very comfortable .
about challenging us, and that is really good. [Laughter.] )
: Mr.. Agarrro CorteZ. Well, I-got my experience, you know, over ol
§ 15-years. ‘At first we didn’t know how to approach and how to do, ?
and still I am a man that doesn’t know how to read and write but I -

do understand a lot of things.

Chairman LeLanDp. How far did you go in school?

Mr. Acarrro Cortez. Well, they just kept passing me because I
was a Mexican.-At that time Mexicans were not liked in the Allen- :
dale district where I used to go to school. By the time I was 16, I :
was in the eighth grade. So I really never did. They just kept pass- ;
ing me‘on. :

Chairman LELAND. So you did go to the eighth grade.

Mr. Agarrro Cortez. Yes, that is as far, seventh or eighth grade.

"Chairman LeLAND. That is as far as you went?

: How ibout you, Mrs. Cortez?

N Mrs. Juantta CorTEZ. I went up to the ninth grade and then I
had to quit school to help my family. I went to work. But then
about, it has been about maybe 5 years ago that I got my GED.

Chairman LeELAND. Five years ago?

Mrs. JuanrTa CorTEz. Yes.

Chairman LeLaND. That is incredible.

Mrs. Juanrta CorTez. I think it has been about 5 years,

Chairman Leranp. That is incredible. So you don’t have any
problems reading and writing?

Mrs. Juanita Cortez. Well, I still don’t understand, you know,
big words. I have to get my dictionary out. But I did accomplish a
lot by getting .ny GED. I merely went to get it because I wanted
him t;,o,(giet it. See he went for the GED, too. But he didn’t pass it
andT did.

Chairman LeLAND. But he did take the test?

Mr. Acarrro CortEZ. No, I never got as far as the test. Every
time that I would try and concentrate I would start having prob-
lems with my epilepsy, so I just gave it up.

airman LELAND. Your concentration sometimes causes the sei-
zures? Well, that is a change.

Mrs. Juanita Cortez. So I got to know what it is to walk down
the aisle besides the aisle of marriage.

; Climlairman LeLanp. Well, that must be a source of pride for your
amily.

Mrs. Juanita Cortez. Yes.

Mr. Acarrro Cortez. Well, she is the one that writes the checks.
I just try to get the money in there. [Laughter.]

And every time we go buy something, both of us sit down and
discuss-it—well, what do gou think—you know.

Mrs. Juanrra CorTez. Don’t do no inore.
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Mr. Agarrro CorTez. Don’t do no more. I will tell her when I

‘think it is enough, no more. We do share all of our problems. We.

have to-sit down and-discuss:it. We do get angry at-each other be-
cause, I mean, you know; every family gets to-a point. But either
‘she steps out or I step  out, then we-cool off and we get after it
again, so we can iron out things together. .

-Chairman. LeLanD. USDA; the people who you heard-from—the
Assistant ‘Secretary, Mr. Bode, you heard him testify today. His or-
‘ganization, his agency is talking about stopping the distribution of
‘{)wne'y and rice. Do you get honey and rice—I know you don't,

ut——

Mr. Acarprro Cortez. Well, they do get some. Not all the time.
When I go to pick up thé commodities, I don’t know what I am get-
‘ting. .

Chairman LerLanb. I understand. But you know how valuable
that is to the people who get that, how helpful that is. .

Mr. Acarrro CortEz. It is. If you have nothing to eat but bread
and honey, it tastes good. If you are-hungry and got nothing else to
eat.

Chairman Leranp. Well, they are talking about stopping the
honey and rice after this month.

Mr. Acarrro CorTez. Well, I don’t see how could they stop it be-
cause, you know, that could mean—I don’t see that very much, but
once in a while.

Chairman Leranp. Well, they are also talking about not having
any dry milk after May and no cheese after June. What is going to
?i%gen to those people who are not going to be able to get that

00d?

Ms. VaLpez. They are going to lynch their socialworkers if that
is going to happen.

Mr. Acarrto CorTEZ. They almost did that last time.

Ms. VaLpez. They almost did that last time.

Chairman LeLaND. They think it is your fault.

Ms. VALpEz. Yes.

Mr. Agarito CortEz. They will tell me: “ Well, why didn’t you
bring it?” They will get on me. Say, “Probably you left it some-
place else.”

Chairman LeLAND. Or you take it home, huh? [Laughter.]

Mr. Agarito CorteEz. You know, I only have a small pickup
truck and whatever they give me, my truck is always overloaded. I
only got stopped once by the highway patrolman, but since I ex
plained the situation, he says, “OK, be on your way but next time
don’t overload.” But if I do, say, leave a case of cheese, that means
there are six families out there that don’t get cheese. So I try to
pack whatever I can on the truck. I mean, all of it, and just tie it
down the best way I can and take off. It is an old truck but it gets
me where I am going. Just take it easy with an old truck, it will go.
It is better than the new ones that are coming out.

Chairmaa LeLanD. You have been absolutely wonderful. Thank
you very much for your testimony.

Mr. Acarrro Cortez. I appreciate your listening to us, and I hope
you all can, you know, try and do something. I know this cannot be
done overnight, but, you know, for the future of the kids.
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‘Chairman LELAND. Well, let .me t... you that when Paul is 48
years old, at some point in the future people in the Congress are
going to look back.at these records that we are compiling today
and see your-téstimony and try to-continue to do what we can,
those who will be there-——maybe it is-Paul, himself—to see what he
or she can do to help-save the situation. "This ‘history is all - about
that we develop.'Not to.say that we are not going to try immediate-
. ly to solve the probléem. There are many- problems that confront us
today, budgetary interests and so forth, but in the long-term what
you do here, what you have done here today will help us tremen-
dously-to sort out all of those problems. Postal problems, «ducation
problems—all of those problems.

‘Mr. Acarrro Cortez. Well, that is the reason I always say that
people ought to go and.visit the communities.

Chairman LeLanp. And we will. We have seen communities like

yours, believe me.
: Mr. Acarrro CorTez. Get in there and mingle with the kids, and
[ sit in there and listen to what they have to say. Because, you know,
sometlmes we .don’t understand the pressure they have, them-
selves, in the school system.

Chalrman LeLaND. Comprendo. Muchisimo gracias.

Mr. Acaprro Cortez. Muchas gracias por la ayudar.

‘Chairman LerAND. Hasta luego.

Ms. VaLpEz. Mr. Leland, before we go, I have a brief by Dr. Urby
on the hunger emergency.

‘Chairmian LeLAND. Is Dr. Urby here?

Ms. VaLpEz. No, he is not. He was not able to.

Chairman LeLAND. He didn’t come. OK. We will be glad, without
: objec}:}:ion, to enter Dr. Urby’s brief into the record. 'Chank you very
: muc

[Whereupon, at 5:30 p.m., the select committee was adjourned, to
reconvene subject to the call of the Chair.]

[Material submitted for inclusion in the record follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF HoN. BILL EMERSON, A REPRESENTATIVE 1N CONGRESS
FrOM THE STATE OF MISSOURI

A NATION'S FUTURE LIS WITH ITS CHILDREN. THUS, THE HEALTH OF
OUR NATION IS A MATTER,OF FUNDAMENTAL IMPORTANCE TO ALL SOCIETIES.
TODAY, THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON HUNGER WILL HEAR TESTIMONY
CONCERNING THE NEEDS OF THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY. THERE IS MUCH TO
SAY AND HEAR ‘ABOUT THE ISSUES AND THE NEED FOR MORT ACCURATE
DATA COLLECTION. THE HEARING THIS AFTERNOON WILL FOCUS ON WHAT WE po

KNOW AND WHAT WE SHOULD KNOW ABOUT THE HEALTH STATUS OF OUR HISPANIC
AMERICANS. .AS WITH ANYTHING, BECOMING AWARE OF THE PROBLEM IS THE

I

FIRST STEP TOWARD FINDING THE SOLUTION.
EVIDENCE SUGGESTS THAT THE INFANT MORTALITY RATE IS HIGHER AMONG

RNz

THE HISPANIC POPULATION. SINCE THE INFANT ‘MORTALITY RATE HAS

¢ LONG BEEN A PRIMARY INDICATOR OF QUR NATION'S OVERALL HEALTH STATUS,
IT IS EXTREMELY IMPORTANT THAT IT CONTINUE IN ITS DECLINE. FIRST, IT
‘ TENDS TO BE CLOSELY ASSOCIATED WITH ACCESS TO FOOD, SHELTER,

; ZDUCATION, AND HEALTH CARE. SECONDLY, IT'S RELATIVELY EASY TO MONITOR
WITH BASIC VITAL STATISTICS. THE Uy.S. INFANT MORTALITY RATE, HAS
DECLINED AND THE MORTALITY RATE OF CHILDREN BETWEEN | AND 14 YEARS HAS
ALSO DECREASED. ONE CANNOT DISMISS THE THE IMPORTANCE OF THLCSE GAINS.

Rty ST )

SIMILARLY, THE ABILITY TO MAKE INFORMED DECISIONS PLAYS A
. SIGNIFICANT ROLE IN INFLUENCING THE OVERALL HEALTH STATUS OF

LR

AMERICANS. HEALTH EDUCATION HAS BEEN AN EFFECTIVE TOOL IN INCREASING
PUBLIC AWARENESS ABOUT ACTIONS INDIVIDUALS AND COMMUNITIES CAN TAKE TO
ENHANCE PERSONAL HEALTH. EVIDENCE HAS SHOWN THAT NUTRITIONAL
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EDUCATION IS EFFECTIVE IN REDUCING THE COST OF HEALTH CARE. FOR

o

JINSTANCE, THE. TREATMENT OF DIABETES -- WHICH HAS BEEN ESTIMATED TO BE

5

e 56 Pt A ¢

¥

(OF HIGH. INCIDENCE AMONG HISPANICS -- HAS IMPROVED THROUGH

P

SELF-MANAGEMENT SKILLS BROU.dT ABOUT DUE TO 'NUTRITIONAL EDUCATION

PROGRAMS.. -THESE PROGRAMS ARE PARTICULARLY CRITICAL AND NEEDED

N e e Ty

WHERE THE .IMPACT ON HEALTH 1S GREATEST, ESPECIALLY WITH DIABETES,
‘OBESITY AND HEART DISEASE, ALL VERY PREVALENT AMOLG HISPANIC

* AMERLCANS.
‘FURTHER, THE-FOOD AND NUTRITION SERVICE BRANCH OF USDA IN

COOPERATION WITH STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, PROVIDES FOOD ASSISTANCE
AND NUTRITIONAL EDUCATION FOR THOSE IN NEED. THESE PROGRAMS WERE
.CREATED TO IMPROVE THE NUTRLTION OF LOW-INCOME HOUSEHOLDS WHILE
CREATING A MEANS EY WHICH TO IMPROVE NUTRITICNAL KNOWLEDGE.

1 AM PLEASED THAT THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON HUNGER TS HOLDING A
HEARING ON THE -IMPORTANT SUBJECT OF THE NEEDS OF THE HISPANIC
POPULATION. I LOOK FORWARD TO HEARING THE TESTIMONY FROM OUR
WITNESSES AND THEIR ASSESSMENT OF HOW THESE NEEDS CAN BEST BE MET.

o
o
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FroM THE StaTE oF NEW MEXICO

PREPARED STATEMENT oF Hon. BILL RICHARDSON, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CoNGRESS

MR, CHAIRMAN, -AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE, THANK YOU FOR
THE OPPORTUNITY TO ADDRESS ‘A CRITICAL ISSUE FOR MY DISTRICT AND
THE HISPANIC -COMMUNITY IN GENERAL -~ THE LACK OF HEALTH DATA ON
THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY, SPECIFICALLY AS IT RELATES TO HISPANICS
IN THE HEALTH PROFESSIONS, ’ '

THI2 QUALITY OF HISPANIC' HEALTH DATA IN GENERAL IS ABYSMAL,
WE DO_NT-KNOW THE' HEALTH STATUS OF THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY,

"EITHER -IN COMPARISON TO OTHER SEGMENTS OF THE POPULATION, OR FOR

DIFFERENT TIME. FRAMES. WiTHOUT SUCH _INFORMATION, HEALTH
PLANNING BECOMES IMPOSSIBLE. FURTHERMORE, WE DO A GREAT
DISSERVICE TO' THE HISPANIC _COMMUNITY,

__THE .HARD "FOUGHT .FOR- HISPANIC SAMPLE IN THE HEALTH AND

‘NUTRITION EXAMINATION SURVEY OF 1982 PROVIDED US WITH THE FIRST

PICTURE OF THE HEALTH OF THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY, HOWEVER, FOR A
NUMBER OF REASONS, THIS SAMPLE ONLY GAVE US 'A LIMITED VIEW OF THE
HEALTH'OF “THE YISPANIC COMMUNITY. FIRST, THE SAMPLE DID NOT
COMPARE HISPANICS ‘TO OTHER,GROUPS IN THE POPULATION. SECONDLY,
BECAUSE IT WAS A ONE TIME SAMPLE, IT DOES NOT PROVIDE A TIME
CONTINUUM: THEREFORE-WE CANNOT DETERMINE WHETHER THE HISPANIC
COMMUNITY'S-HEALTH IS IMPROVING OR WORSENING,

. I AM PARTICULARLY CONCERNED WITH THE LACK OF DATA ON THE
HEALTH NEEDS OF THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY. WE.DO NOT KNOW THE
EXTENT OR NATURE OF OUR OWN HEALTH PROBLEMS, WE DO NOT KNOW THE
NUMBER -OF HISPANIC DOCTORS,. NURSES, OR OTHER ALLIED HEALTH
PROFESSIONALS OR WHETHER THEY ARE SERVING THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY
OR"OTHER COMMUNITIES. WE FRANKLY DON'T KNOW WHAT THE HISPANIC
COMMUNITY NEEDS NOR WHO IS FILLING THAT NEED,

AS A RESULT, I AM INTRODUCING' LEGISLATION TO ADDRESS THE
NEED FOR HEALTH PROFESSIONALS TO DELIVER APPROPRIATE CARE TCG THE
HISPANIC COMMUNITY. ONE OF THE MAJOR LIMITATIONS IN PREPARING
THIS LEGISLATION HAS BEEN THE LACK OF DATA CONCERNING THE
SPECIFIC HEALTH PROFESSIONAL NEEDS OF THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY, IT
HAS BEEN ESPECIALLY DIFFICULT TO DETERMINE THE EXTENT OF THE NEED
FOR HEALTH PROFESSIONALS DELIVERING CULTURALLY AND LINGUISTICALLY
APPROPRIATE CARE TO THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY.

FOR -THIS REASON, MY LEGISLATION NOT ONLY SEEKS TO INCREASE
THE NUMBER-OF HISPANIC PHYSICIANS PRACTICING IN MEDICALLY
UNDERSERVED HISPANIC COMMUNITIES BUT ALSO PROVIDES FOR AN
ANALYSIS OF THE HEALTH PROFESSIONAL NEEDS OF THE COMMUNITY .

IT IS MY FIRM BELIEF THAT THE REPORT TO THE PKESIDENT AND
CONGRESS ON THE STATUS OF HEALTH PERSONNEL IN THE UNITED STATES,
AS MANDATED BY SECTION 708 OF THE PUBLIC HEALTA SERVICE ACT
SHOULD CONTAIN THIS TYPE OF INFORMATION SO THAT HEALTH PLANNERS
CAN EVALUATE THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY'S CURRENT AND PROJECTED NEED
FOR HEPLTH PROFESSIONALS, AND MORE EFFECTIVELY ALLOCATE EXISTING
HEALTH PROFESSIONAL RESOURCES AMONG HISPANIC COMMUNITIES,

SUCH IS NOT THE CASE. THE LATEST REPORT, ISSUED IN 1986,
CONTAINS NO INFORMATION ON THE NEED FOR HEALTH PROFESSIONALS IN
THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY BY SPECIALTY OR GEOGRAPHIC LOCATION. THE
ONLY INFORMATION ABOUT HISPANICS IN THIS REPORT IS A MINOR
INCLUSION ON HISPANIC ENROLLMENT IN MEDICAL SCHOOLS AND SCHOOLS
OF OSTEOPATHY AND DENTISTRY. MY LEGISLATION WOULD ASSURE THAT
CRITICAL INFORMATION BY BOTH SPECIALTY AND GEQOGRAPHIC LOCATION
WOULD BE INCLUDED FOR HISPANICS AND FOR OTHER MINORITY GROUPS
IN THE REPORT ON THE STATUS OF HEALTH PERSONNEL.

IN CLOSING, I AM CONFIDENT THIS HEARING WILL SHED LIGHT ON
THE UBIQUITOUS DISREGARD OF THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY THROUGHOUT
OUR NATIONAL HEALTH DATA COLLECTION AND ANALYSIS SYSTEMS., I
BELIEVE THIS ATTITUDE IS THE MAJOR CONTRIBUTING FACTOR TO THE
CURRENT LACK OF HEALTH SERVICES FOR THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY,
FURTHERMORE, IT DEMANDS IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. I APPLAUD THE
LEADERSHIP OF THIS COMMITTEE FOR BRINGING LIGHT TO AN ISSUE WHICH
HAS BEEN DARK FOR TOO LONG.




Pru:mnxn STATEMENT oF HoN. ALBERT G. BUSTAMANTE, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
NGRESS FROM THE STATE oF TEXAS

MR CHAJRMAN, “THANK YOU.FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO TESTIFY BEFORE
THIS COMMITTEE ON- THE HEALTH AND NUTRITION OF HISPANICS.

‘I’ WOULD LIKE TO TAKE ‘A FEW, BRIEF MOMENTS TO RECOGNIZE
- SEVERAL INDIVIDUALS-AND THANK THEM FOR THEIR CONTRIBUTION TO
{« . .THIS HEARING.

- SAN’ ANTONIO, TEXAS, FOR 'AGREEING TO SHARE THEIR LIFE

P - I, WOULD LIKE TO THANK MY CONSTITUENTS, THE CORTEZ FAMILY OF
‘ ‘EXPERIENCES. WITH THIS COMMITTEE.

[\ OF WRITTEN TESTIMONY ON HISPANIC HEALTH ‘ AND POVERTY. DR.
* ‘URBY: IS THE DIRECTOR OF THE "EL CARMEN CLINIC." HE TOOK TIME
) OUT OF HIS BUSY SCHEDULE TO PUT INTO WORDS HIS INSIGHTS ON
N THE HEALTH PROBLEMS OF LOW-INCOME, HISPANIC .PATIENTS HE
. TREATS DAILY IN SAN ANTONIO.
¥

- ALSO, I WOULD LIKE TO THANK ROSE VALDEZ, FOR HER INPUT INTO
: THE, OVERALL_ SITUATION OF THE CORTEZ FAMILY, AS THEIR
e DEDICATED AAND KNOWLEDGEABLE SOCIAL WORKER. EACH OF THESE

INDIVIDUALS' TESTIMONY WILL ASSIST THIS COMMITTEE TO GAUGE
‘ THE SEVERITY OF THE PROBLEMS WE ARE HERE TO ADDRESS.

. I WOULD LIKE TO BEGIN TODAx BY PROVIDING THIS COMMITTEE WITH
A BRIEF SOCIAL PROFILE OF HISPANIC AMERICANS, THEN PROCEED TO
K -EXPLORE PREVELENT HEALTH PROBLEMS  THAT EXIST 1IN THIS
‘ ENVIRONMENT, MOST OF THE STATISTICAL INFORMATION I WILL
Y PROVIDE, HAS BEEN RETRIEVED FROM' TWO SOURCES: ONE, "THE TASK
FORCE REPORT ON BLACK AND MINORITY HEALTH OF THE SECRETARY OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES"; AND TWO, "THE AGING SOCIETY
PROJECT, HISPANICS IN AN AGING SOCIETY."®

IN 1987, THERE WERE APPROXIMATELY 18.79 MILLION HISPANICS IN
. THE UNITED STATES. THIS CONSTITUTES 7.9 PERCENT OF THE TOTAL
U.S. POPULATION. ., MEXICAN AMERICANS COMPOSE 66 PERCENT OF
THAT HISPANIC POPULATICN., SINCE 1970, THE HISPANIC
POPULATION HAS GROWN BY OVER 60 PERCENT, CONTRIBUTING TO 23

PERCENT OF THE TOTAL GROWTH OF THE U.S. POPULATION FROM 1970
¢ TO 1980.

’ THE HISPANIC POPULATION IS EXPECTED TO CONTINUE THIS HIGH
. RATE-OI' GROWTH BECAUSE OF TWO DEMOGRAPHIC FACTORS. FIRST,
THE HISPANIC POPULATION IS YOUNG AS COMPARED WITH THE GENERAL
POPULATION. A LARGE SHARE OF THE HISPANIC FEMALE POPULATION
IS CURRENTLY EITHER UNDER AGE 15 OR IN THE REPRODUCTIVE YEARS
OF AGES 15 TO 44. THIS YOUNG MEDIAN AGE CONTRIBUTES TO THE
HIGH FERTILITY RATE OF HISPANICS, WHICH IS EXPECTED TO
CONTINUE WELL INTO THIS CENTURY.

SECOND, THE IMMIGRATION OF THIS POPULATION INTO THE UNITED
STATES IS EXPECTED TO CONTINUE AT HIGH RATES DUE TO THE

UNCERTAIN ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL SITUATIONS OF MANY LATIN
_AMERICAN COUNTRIES.

~ A .
DESPITE THEIR INCREASING NUMBERS, HISPANICS HAVE NOT
‘ BENEFITED FULLY FROM MEDICAL ADVANCES MADE 1IN THE LAST 50
YEARS. TODAY, MINORITIES IN THE UNITED STATES CONTINUE TO
EXPERIENCE A GREATER INCIDENCE OF MANY DISEASES ~- INCLUDING
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GALLBLADDER CANCER, TAY-SACHS DISLASE AND SICKLE-CELL ANEMIA
-- THAN. DOES THE GENERAL POPULATION. ESPECIALLY DISTURBING
IS THE HIGH INCIDENCE OF DIZBETES AND DIABETES RELATED
‘LLNESSES . .

ACCORDING, TO THE REPOFT- ON MINORITY HEALTH, THERE EXISTS A.
PERSISTANT DISPARITY "IN THE BURDEN OF DEATH AND ILLNESS
EXPERIENCED BY MINORITY AMERICANS AS COMPARED WITH OUR
NATION'S POPULATION AS A WHOLE." THE REPORT STATES FOUR
SOCIAL CHARACTERISTICS WHICH ARE BELIEVED TO SIGNIFICANTLY
INFLUENCE ‘MINORITY HEALTH STATUS IN THE UNITED *STATES TODAY:

ONE, DEMOGRAPHIC PROFILES; TWO, NUTRITIONAL STATUS AND
DIETARY PRACTICES; THREE, ENVIRONMENTAL AND OCCUPATIONAL
EXPOSURES; AND FOUR, STRESS AND-COPING PATTERNS.

A GENERAL PRCFILE OF THESE FACTORS IS NECESSARY ‘TO UNDERSTAND
HOW EACH OF THEM AFFECTS "HISPANICS., BEFORE I UNDERTAKE THIS
PROFILE, HOWEVER, I WOULD LIKE TO EMPHASIZE HOW INSUFFICIENT
HEALTH DATA ONLY MAKES IT DOUBLY DIFFICULT TO RESOLVE THE
HEALTH PROBLEMS OF HISPANICS. .

ONE PROBLEM 1S THAT THERE ARE NO STANDARD PRACTICES USED BY
ALL THE STATES FOR INCLUDING ETHNICITY IDENTIFIERS 1IN
REPORTED DATA. ONE OF THE MOST GLARING DEFICIENCIES IS THE
LACK OF NATIONAL MORTALITY DATA FOR HISPANICS. SUCH DATA IS
USUSALLY OBTAINED FROM DEATH CERTIFICATES; BUT FOR HISPANICS,
ETHNICITY IS NOT UNIFORMLY RECORDED IN EVERY STATE. IT SHOULD
ALSO BE NOTED THAT MORTALITY DATA IS USUALLY NOT RECORDED FOR
SUBGROUPS OF NATIVE AMERICAN AND ASIAN/PACIFIC HERITAGE.

FURTHERMORE, FEDERAL IDENTIFIERS THAT ARE REQUIRED BY OMB
CLASSIFY RACE AS POLLOWS:

1, AMERICAN INDIAN OR ALASKAN NATIVE
2, ASIAN OR PACIFIC ISLANDER

3. BLACK

4. WHITE

ETHNICITY IS DEFINED AS: OF HISPANIC ORIGIN, OR, NOT OF
HISPANIC ORIGIN.

THESE CATAGORIES ARE TOO GENERAL TO PERMIT DELINEATION WITHIN
SUBGROUPS. MANY STATISTICAL FILES AND DATA BASES FALL SHORT
OF MEETING EVEN  THESE REQUIREMENTS, PARTICULARLY
ADMINISTRATIVE RECORDS, SELF-REPORTED HOSPITAL FORMS, AND
SOME SOCIAL SECURITY CLAIMS. EVEN WHEN A MORE SPECIFIC
BREAKDOWN OF RACE AND ETHNICITY IS USED, THE INFORMATION- MAY
EVENTUALLY BE LUMPED TOGETHER AS "OTHER". THIS HAS MINIMAL
IF ANY VALUE TO HEALTH RESEARCHERS, WHO ARE IN CONSTANT NEED
OF ADDITIONAL DEMOGRAPHIC DATA.

ANOTHER CONCERN IS THAT DATA COLLECTED FROM NATIONAL SURVEYS
USUALLY MEASURE MINORITIES IN PROPORTION TO THEIR PRESENCE IN
THE U.S. POPULATION. THEREFORE, THE LESS NUMEROUS A MINORITY
GROUP IS, THE LESS INFORMATION THERE WILL BE AVAILABLE ON
THEM.

ONE OF THE SPECIAL NEEDS OF HEALTH SCIENTISTS IS INFORMATION

R
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WHY IS THERE SUCH DISPARITY IN EDUCATION LEVELS?

4 ONE 'REASON MY BE DUE TO THE TYPICAL SIZE AND INCOME OF
HISPANIC FAMILIES. HISPANIC FAMILIES AVERAGED 3.85 PERSONS.
MEXICAN-AMERICAN FAMILIES WERE FOUND AMONG THE LARGEST,
: AVERAGING 4.09 PERSONS. THIRTY PERCENT OF ALL HISPANICS WERE
LIVING BELOW THE OFFICIAL POVZRTY LEVEL IN 1982, AND 13.8
= PERCENT ‘WERE UNEMPLOYED. IN THE LAST 10 YEARS, THE INCOME
AND POVERTY LEVELS OF HISPANICS HAVE GOTTEN WORSE. IN TEXAS,
- WHERE OVER 20 PERCENT OF THE POPULATION IS MEXICAN AMERICAN,
Lo CLOSE TO'ONE-HALF OF THE POPULATION AGE 55 AND OLDER ARE AT
{ THE 125 PERCENT POVERTY LEVEL.

DUE' TO “THESE TYPICALLY LARGE FAMILIES AND THE SMALL. AMOUNT OF
INCOME COMING INTO THE HOUSEHOLD FOR ESSENTIALS, MANY
i YOUNGSTERS, AND IN SOME CASES, PRETEENS, DECIDE THAT IT IS
i BETTER FOR THE FAMILIY IF THEY DROP-OUT OF SCHOOL TO HELP OUT
: FINANCIALLY. EVEN AT THE FAMILY'S URGING THAT THEIR CHILDREN
: STAY IN SCHOOL, HISPANIC YOUTH BELIEVE IT IS BETTER TO HELP
THEIR FAMILIES FINANCIALLY. THAN REMAIN IN SCHOOL, HOWEVER,
IT IS GENERALLY ACCEPTED THAT WITHOUT A HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA,
IT IS NEARLY IMPOSSIBLE TO OBTAIN WORK WHICH OFFERS JOB
SECURITY AND EARNINGS ABOVE MINIMUM WAGE. THIS 1IN TURN
i FOSTERS ANOTHER GENERATION OF UNDEREDUCATED, UNDEREMPLOYED
: KISPANICS.

A TRULY UNIQUE AND DIFFUCULT LIFE-SITUATION IS CREATED HERE.
ONE OF STRESS AND ANGER. THIS UNIQUE PATTERN OF EXFOSURE TO
o STRSS AND THE WAYS OF DEALING WITH THE STRESS AND ADVERSITY
. IN MINORITY GROUPS MAY PLAY A CRUCIAL ROLE 1IN HISPANIC AND
MINORITY HEALTH. IT HAS BEEN SUGGESTED THAT “THE WAYS AN
: INDIVIDUAL COPES WITH STRESS AND THE RESOURCES AVAILABE TO
’ RESOLVE STRESSFUL SITU..LIONS, RATHER 'THAN THE STRESSOR
ITSELF, PLAY THE MORE IMPORTANT ROLE IN HEALTH OUTCOME. IN
SOME MINORITIES, TRADITIONAL FOLK BELIEFS AND CULTURALLY
‘SPECIFIC FAMILY PATTERNS MAY AFFECT THEIR ABILITY TO
WITHSTAND SOCIAL, ECONOMIC, AND PSYCHOLOGICAL STRESSORS."

. WHERE SUFFICIENT DATA IS AVAILABLE, WE SEE MINORITIES MAY

d HAVE PROBLEMS DEALING WITH STRESS. TAKE FOR EXAMPLE ALCOHOL
ABUSE. IT'S STRONGLY SUSPECTED THAT ALCOHOL ABUSE IS ONE OF
THE LEADING CONTRIBUTORS TO THE HEALTH DISPARITY 1IN
HISPANICS, BUT WE SIMPLY DO NOT HAVE THE DATA TO VERIFY THAT

' SUSPICION. WHAT DATA DOES EXIST COMES FROM A FEW STUDIES IN
THE SOUTHWEST.

ACCORDING TO HHS, HISPANICS ARE OVERREPRESENTED IN THE
MORTALITY STATISTICS FOR ALCOHOL-RELATED CAUSES. STILL, AS
HHS HAS REPORTED, "LITTLE IS KMNOWN ABOUT THE HEALTH
CONSEQUENCES OF ALCOHOL USE AMONG HISPANICS IN THE REST OF
THE U.S." THAT'S WHY I APPLAUD YOUR EFFORTS, MR. CHAIRMAN,
TO REQUEST MORE DATA ABOUT HISPANIC HEALTH AND NUTRITION.
SUCH INFORMATION IS NECESSARY IF WE ARE TO DEVELOP A NATIONAL
POLICY ON MINORITY HEALTH.

DRUG ABUSE HAS BEEN ANOTHER HEALTH PROBLEM IDENTIFIED AMONG
HISPANICS. THE INABILITY TO OVERCOME SOCIAL PRESSURES GIVES
RISE TO UNHEALTHY BEHAVIOR® SUCH AS DRUG ABUSE.
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WHY IS THERE SUCH DISPARITY IN EDUCATION LEVELS? .

ONE REASON MY BE DUE TO THE TYPICAL SIZE AND INCOME OF
HISPANIC FAMILIES. HISPANIC FAMILIES AVERAGED 3.85 PERSONS.
MEXICAN-AMERICAN FAMILIES WERI' FOUND AMONG THE LARGEST,
AVERAGING 4.09 -PERSONS. THIRTY PERCENT OF ALL HISPANICS WERE
LIVING BELOW THE OFFICIAL POVERTY LEVEL 1IN 1982, AND 13.8
PERCENT WERE UNEMPLOYED. IN THE LAST 10 YEARS, THE INCOME
AND- POVERTY LEVELS OF HISPANICS HAVE GOTTEN WORSE. IN TEXAS,
WHERE OVER 20 PERCENT OF THE POPULATION IS MEXICAN AMERICAN,
CLOSE TO ONE-HALF OF THE POPULATION AGE 55 AND OLDER ARE AT
THE 125 PERCENT POVERTY LEVEL.

DUE. TO -THESE  TYPICALLY LARGE FAMILIES AND THE SMALL AMOUNT OF
INCOME COMING INTO THE HOUSEHOLD FOR ESSENTIALS, MANY
YOUNGSTERS, AND IN SOME CASES, PRETEENS, DECIDE THAT IT IS
BETTER FOR THE FAMILIY IF THEY DROP-OUT OF SCHOOL TO HELP OUT
r "NANCIALLY., EVEN AT THE FAMILY'S URGING THAT THEIR CHILDREN
S!AY IN SCHOOL, HISPANIC YOUTH BELIEVE IT IS BETTER TO HELP
THEIR FAMILIES FINANCIALLY THAN REMAIN IN SCHOOL. HOWEVER,
IT IS GENERALLY ACCEPTED THAT WITHOUT A HIGH SCHOOL UIPLOMA,
IT IS NEARLY IMPOSSIBLE TO OBTAIN WORK WHICH OFFERS JOB
SECURITY AND EARNINGS ABOVE MINIMUM WAGE. TH1S 1IN TURN
FOSTERS ANOTHER GENERATION OF UNDEREDUCATED, UNDEREMPLOYED
HISPANICS.

A TRULY UNIQUE AND DIFFUCULT LIFE-SITUATION IS CREATED HERE.
ONE OF STRESS AND ANGER., THIS UNIQUF PATTERN OF EXPOSURE TO
STRESS AND THE WAYS OF DEALING WITH THE STRESS AND ADVERSITY
IN MINORITY GROUPS MAY PLAY A CRUCIAL ROLE IN HISPANIC AND
MINORITY HEALTH. IT HAS BEEN SUGGESTED THAT "THE WAYS AN
INDIVIDUAL COPES WITH STRESS AND THE RESOURCES AVAILABE TO
RESOLVE STRESSFUL SITUATIONS, RATHER THAN THE STRESSOR
ITSELF, PLAY THE MORE IMPORTANT ROLE IN HEALTH OUTCOME. IN
SOME MINORITIES, TRADITIONAL FOLK BELIEFS AND CULTURALLY
SPECIFIC FAMILY PATTERNS MAY AFFECT THZIR ABILITY TO
WITHSTAND SOCIA', ECONOMIC, AND PSYCHOLOGICAL STRESSORS."

WHERE SUFFICIENT DATA IS AVAJLABLE, WZ SEE MINORITIES MAY
HAVE PROBLEMS DEALING WITH STRESS. TAKE FOR EXAMPLE ALCOHOL
ABUSE. IT'S STRONGLY SUSPECTED THAT ALCOHOL ABUSE Iy ON% OF
THE LEADING CONTRIBUTORS TO THE HEALTH DISPAR1Iy IN
HISPANICS, BUT WE SIMPLY DO NOT i;nVE THE DATA TO VERIFY THAT
SUSPICION. WHAT DATA DOES EXIST COMES FROM A FEW STUDIES IN
THE SOUTHWEST.

ACCORDING TO HHS, HISPANICS ARE OVERREPRESENTED 1IN THE
MORTALITY STATISTICS FOR ALCOHOL-RELATED CAUSES. STILL, AS
HHS HAS REPORTED, “LITTLE IS KNOWN ABOUT THE HEALTH
CONSEQUENCES OF ALCOHOL USE AMONG HISPANICS IN THE REST OF
THE U.S." THAT'S WHY T APPLAUD YOUR EFFORTS, MR. CHAIRMAN,
TO REQUEST MORE DATA ABOUT HISPANIC HEALTH AND NUTRITION.
SUCH INFORMATION IS NECESSARY IF WE ARE TO DEVELOP A NATIONAL
POLICY ON MINORITY HEALTH.

DRUG ABUSE HAS BEEN ANOTHER HEALTH PROBLEM IDENTIFIED AMONG
HISPANICS, THE INABILITY TO OVERCOME SOCIAL PRESSURES GIVES
RISE TO UNHEALTHY BEHAVIOR SUCH AS DRUG ABUSE.
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‘DRUG ADDICTION 1§, A HISPANIC RESPONSE TO. "ACCULTURATION."
*THIS ' TERM I§ 'USED BY HEALTH SCIENTISTS TO REFER TO THE
PERSONAL AND _FAMILY STRESSES ARISING FROM THE CONFLICT
BETWEEN THO OR -MORE COMPETING CULTURAL VALUES WITHIN' A
"SINGLE, LARGE ‘COMMUNITY.

FOP HISPANI” AMERICANS, THE CENTRAL CONFLICT AT ISSUE IS THE
CLASH. OF ANGLO-AMERICAN CULTURE WITH. HISPANIC CULTURE, THE
FORMER: TRACING- ITS ORIGINS TO THE INDUSTRIAL REVOLUTION OF
LATE 18TH' CENTURY .ENGLAND, WHILE THE LATTER HAS ITS ROOTS IN
THE "AGRARIAN.CULTURE OF THE NON-DEVELOPED THIRD WORLD.

TO ‘NON-HISPANICS, IT MAY SEEM- A TRIFLE BIT STRANGE, IF NOT
INCOMPREHENSIBLE, “TO SEE "HOW A.MERE'CULTURAL CLASH CAN GIVE
‘RISE TO SUCH' UNHEALTHY BEHAVIORS AS -DRUG ADDICTION. BUT TO A
FORMER MIGRANT FROM SOUTH TEXAS, LIKE-MYSELF, IT COMES AS NO
SURPRISE TO SEE HOW THAT CONFLICT CAN TAKE SUCH A DREADFUL
TOLL OVER THE HISPANIC COMMUNITY.

TO BEST UNDERSTAND HOW "ACCULTURATION" WORKS IN PRACTICE, I

WOULD LIKE TO SAY A BRIEF WORD ABOUT “INHALATION" ABUSE AMONG
HISPANICS.

IN THE" TECRNICAL LITERATURE, INHALATION-IS DEFINED AS "THE
DEL1BERATE INHALATION OF VOLATILE SOLVENTS, SUCH AS GLUE,
LIGHTER: FLUID, AND GASOLINE." THIS PROBLEM IS PARTICULARLY
SERIOUS AMONG MEXICAN AMERICAN ADOLESCENTS.

FOR EXAMPLE, "A 1979 STUDY OF MEXICAN AMERICAN CHILLREN AND
ADOLESCENTS 1IN LOS ANGELES BARRIOS FOUND PREVALENCE OF
INHALANTS 14 TIMES THAT OF THE GENSRAL POPULATION."

WHAT COULD POSSIBLY DRIVE SO MANY ADOLESCLNT HISPANICS
INHALE CHEMICALS WITH SUCH POTENTIALLY LETHAL EFFECTS?

TO

AN ANSWER TO THLT QUESTION IS HINTED AT IN A RECENT STUDY OF
INHALANT ABUSE CONDUCTZD BY BONNHEIM AND KORHAN, "FAMILY
INTERACTION AND ACCULTURATION IN MEXICAN AMERICAN INHALANT
USERS." FOR THIS STUDY, TWO SETS OF TEN fAMILIES WERE
INTERVIEWED; ONE SET WITH A CHILD INHALANT ABUSER IN EACH
FAMILY, AND THE OTHER; WITH A NON-INHALANT ABUSER. EACH OF
THESE TWO SETS OF FAMILIES WERE "MATCHED ON ETHNICITY, INCOME
AND AGE OF CHILD."

THE STUDY SHOWED HOW AN INHALANT CHILD STRUGGLES TO COPE WITH
THE EXTERNAL SOCIAL ENVIRONMENT, WHERE -- BE IT BECAUSE OF
PREJUDICE OR BIAS HE FINDS HIMSELF SHUT OUT FROM
ANGLO~AMERICAN  CULTURE. TURNING TO HIS FAMILY FOR
REASSURANCE, THE RESEARCHERS FOUND THAT THE CHILD OFTEN FINDS
HIMSELF ONLY MORE CONFUSED BY THE MALADAPTIVE BEHAVIORS OF
OTHER FAMILY MEMBERS, MOST OF THESE FAMILY MEMBERS,
PARTICULARLY THE PARENTS, ALSO FIND IT DIFFICULT TO ADJUST TO
WHAT THEY PERCEIVE AS AN ALIEN CULTURAL ENVIRONMENT.
INCIDENTALLY, I SHOULD NOTE THAT THIS IS ESPECIALLY TRUE OF
RECENT IMMIGRANT FAMILIES. OUT OF DISPAIR, THE CHILD TURNS
TO INHALING EASILY ACQUIRED BUT HARMFUL SUBSTANCES, WHICH
ONLY SERVE TO IMPAIR HIS HEALTH AND TO ACCELERATE THE
CISINTEGRATION OF HIS FAMILY'S EMOTIONAL STABILITY.

Q
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BY COMPARISON, FAMILIES WITH -NON-INHALANT ABUSERS WERE FOUND
TO EXERCISE MORE COOPERATION IN-COPING WITH STRESST. THESE
FAMILIES. WERE MORE UNITED AND SUPPORTIVE OF INDIVIDUAL FAMILY
MEMBERS UNDER® STRESS. THEY EXHIBITED AN ABILITY TO
COMMUNICATE "THROUGH EFFECTIVE USE OF HUMOR, WHICH SEEMED
MORE CONSTRUCTIVE -THAN THE USE OF CRITICISM BY" MEMBERS OF
THE FAMILIES WITH INHALANT ABUSERS. BY WAY OF CONCLUSION,
THE RESEARCHERS CONCLUDED THAT "ONE MIGHT REASON THAT 'THE
MORE DISSIMILAR AN INDIVIDUAL OR FAMILY IS FROM THE DOMINANT
CULTURE IN WHICH THEY LIVE, THE GREATER THE STRESS IN
ATTEMPTING TO COPE EFFICIENTLY WITH THE DOMINANT SOCIETY."

ALTHOUGH I AM‘ NOT READY AT THIS POINT IN MY LIFE TO TRADE MY
CARRER AS LEGISLATOR POR THAT OF SOCIAL SCIENTIST, I THINK WE
WILL AGREE THAT THE NOTION THAT HISPANICS, WITH STRONG
CULTURAL VALUES BASED ON THEIR HISPANIC HERITAGE, HAVE
TROUBLE ADJUSTING TO ANGLO-AMERICAN CULTURE, PROBABLY- COMES
AS NO SURPRISE TO MOST OF US. WHAT PROBABLY DOES COME AS A
SURPRISE IS HOW DEVASTATING THAT CULTURAL CONFLICT CAN BE ON
THE HISPANIC PYSCHE. IT CAN DESTROY A FAMILY AND LERD AN
ADOLESCENT TO ‘DRUG ADDICTION. AND NO MATTER HOW ILLUMINATING
SCIENCE CAN BE ABOUT SUCH SAD FACTS OF LIFE, THERE IS NO
GETTING OVER OUR PAINFULLY SUBJECTIVE RESPONSE TO A
"BRAIN-DEAD" ADOLESCENT AND GASOLINE INHALER.

ONE RECENT HEALTH PROBLEM THAT STEMS FROM DRUG ABUSE IS AIDS.
HISPANICS ACCOUNT FOR 14 PERCENT OF ALL REPORTED CASES OF
AIDS. THIS 1S LARGELY BECAUSE HISPANICS CONSTITUTE 10.8
PERCENT OF INNER CITY POPULATIONS. "URBAN AREAS HAVE
RECORDED A CONUENTRATED DRJG ABUSE PROBLEM, INDICATING THAT
HISPANICS MAY BE AT SOMEWHAT GREATER RISK OF DRUG ABUSE AND
ITS CONSEQUENCES," HHS REPORTS.

THE 1984 DRUG ABUSE VWARNING NETWORK DATA ALSO SHOW THAT "42
PERCENT OF HISPANICS AS COMPARED WITH 40 PERCENT OF WHITES
ADMINISTER COCAINE BY INJECTION." THIS DATA IS SUGGESTIVE OF
THE GENERAL TENDENCY OF HISPANIC DRUG ADDICTS TOWARD
INTRAVENOUS DRUG ABUSE.

INTRAVENOUS DRUG ABUSE, THROUGH THE SHARING OF "DJRTY
NEEDLES," IS ONE OF THE MAJOR FORMS OF EXPOSURE TO A.YS,
WHICH EXPLAINS THE HIGH INCIDENCE OF THE DISEASE AMONG
HISPANICS.

IT 1S PREVELENTLY KNOWN THAT NUTRITION PLAYS A MAJOR ROLE IN
OUR HEALTH. HISPANICS GENERALLY RELY ON BEANS, GRAINS AND
OTHER STARCHES. IT IS NOT SURPRISING THAT THIS HIGH CALORIC
DIET LEADS TO OBESITY AMONG HISPANICS AND THAT THE FOREMOST
NUTRTION-RELATED DISEASE AMONG HISPANICS IS DIABETES MELLITUS
OCCURING FROM OVERNUTRITION.

HISPANICS HAVE A HIGH INCIDENCE OF DIABETES, ALTHOUGH THE
DISEASE IS ALSO PREVALENT AMONG BLACK AMERICANS, NATIVE
AMERICANS, AND PACIFIC/ASIAN ISLANDERS. THE MOST COMMON FORNM
OF DIABETES AMONG HISPANICS is NON~INSULIN DEPENDENT
DIABETES, WHICH REPRESENTS 95 PERCENT OF ALL REPORTED CASES
OF THE DISEASE NATIONWIDE. FOR THAT REASON, WHEN I MENTION
THE WORD "DIABETES," I AM SPECIFICALLY REFERRING TO
NON-INSULIN DEPENDENT DIABETES.




ERI

67

OF ALL HISPANICS, MEXICAN AMERICANS ARE THE MOST SUSEPTABLE
TO DIABETES, WITH. A RATE OF INCIDENCE THREE TO FIVE TIMES
HIGHER THAN THE GENERAL POPULATION. AMONG THE COMPLICATIONS
ARISING- FROM DIABETES ARE AMPUTATIONS, BLINDNESS, KIDNEY
FAILURE, ‘HEART DISEASE, AND STROKE. BY AVOIDING OBESITY,
-MOST HISPANICS CAN: ‘PREVENT THEIR CONTRACTING THE DISEASE.
THIS -IN:TURN WILL PREVENT -THEM FROM SUFFERING THOSE OTHER
MORE- SEVERE -COMPLICATIONS SUCH AS HEART STROKE.

FOR THOSE WHO ALREADY HAVE DIABETES, WE NEED TC =NSURE THAT
THEY RECEIVE. THE NECESSARY MEDICATION TO CONTROL THEIR
DISEASE. UNFORTUNATELY, THE DISEASE TENDS IS OFTEN
ASYMPTOMATIC, SO MANY PEOPLE.DO NOT KNOW "THEY. HAVE THE
DISEASE UNTIL THEY DEVELOP SEVERE COMPLICATIONS. ONCE THE
COMPLICATIONS OCCUR, NO MEDICATION CAN ORDINARILY PREVENT THE
ONSET -OF BLINDNESS OR THE NEED .FOR LIMB AMPUTATION.

AS A NOTED DIABETES RESEARCHER, DR. MICHAEL STERN, WROTE IN A
LETTER ADDRESSED TO ME:

"EVEF AMONG DIABETICS WHO HAVE BEEN DIAGNOSED, MEXICAN
AMERICANS APPEAR TO BE NOT AS WELL CONTROLLED AS NON-HISPANIC
DIABETICS, THAT IS, THEY RUN HIGHER BLOOD SUGARS. WHETHER
THIS IS BECAUSE THEY HAVE LESS ACCESS TO MEDICAL CARE, LESS
SATISFACTORY CARE OR -BECAUSE THEY TEND TO FOLLOW THE
PRESCRIBSD MEDICAL REGIMEN LESS ADEQUATELY IS NOT KNOWN."

DR. STERN IS AN EXPERT ON DIABETES, WHO CONTRIBUTED A
MONOGRAPH ON THE SUBJECT THAT WAS INCLUDED IN THE SECRETARY'S
TASK FORCE REPORT ON BLACK '‘AND MINORITY HEALTH. HE CONDUCTS
HIS RESEARCH AT THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS HEALTH SCIENCE CENTER
IN SAN ANTONIO.

IN RESPONSE TO THE HIGH INCIDENCE OF DIABETES AMONG
MINORITIES, I INTRODUCED, IN SEPTEMBER OF LAST YEAR, H.R.
3259, THE "DIABETES PREVENTION ACT OF 1987." THIS BILL IS
INTENDED TO REDUCE THE PREVALENCE OF DIABETES AMONG MINORITY
POPULATIONS AT SPECIAL RISK. 1 SUBSEQUENTLY CONVENED A
MEETING ON MY BILL HERE IN WASHINGTON. AMONG THE INVITEES
WERE THE DIABETES PROGRAM DIRECTOR FOR THE CENTER FCR DISEASE
CONTROL, AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM THE AMERICAN DIABETES
ASSOCIATION AND THE NATIONAL DIABETES ADVISORY BOARD.

I WOULD LIKE TO CONCLUDE MY REMARKS WITH A FEW
RECOMMENDATIONS, WHICH ARE LARGELY BASED ON DR. STERNS
SUGGESTIONS ON MY DIABETES INITIATIVE. HIS RECOMMENDATIONS
ARE, HOWEVER, GENERALLY APPLICABLE TO THE GENERAL HISPANIC
HEALTH DISPARITY WE ARE SO CONCERNED ABOUT.

I WOULD LIKE TO SUGGEST, FIRST, THAT THERE IS A NEED FOR
COMMUNITY~BASED, MULTI-MEDIA  HEALTH EDUCATION PROGRAMS
TARGETING THE HISPANIC POPULATION AND INFORMING THEM ABOUT
PROBLEMS SUCH AS: DIABETES, DRUG ABUSE, AND AIDS -- AND WHAT
STEPS CAN BE TAKEN TO DEAL WITH THOSE PROBLEMS.

AS DR. STERN HAS ALSO NOTED: “PRIOR EXPERIENCE WITH OTHER
PROGRAMS ADDRESSING PRIMARILY HEART DISEASE HAVE MADE USE OF
ONE-MINUTE PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENTS ON RADIO AND
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TELEVISION." HE -NOTES THAT SIMILAR PROGRAMS CAN BE USED ON
¢ SPANISH LANGUAGE TELEVISION, WHICH USE 5 TO 10 MINUTE PUBLIC
INFORMATION FORMATS.

SUCH ANNOUNCEMENTS SHOULD INCLUDE INTERVIEWS WITH DOCTORS,
DIETICIANS, AND OTHER HEALTH CARE PROFESSIONALS.  IT WOULD
‘ ALSOBE HELPFUL TO HAVE "TESTIMONIALS FROM ROLE MODELS AND :
; 'COMMURITY LEADERS, WHO HAVE TAKEN THE RECOMMENDED STEPS TO .
SAFEGUARD ' THEIR HEALTH.

- HEALTH EDUCATION PROGRAMS SHOULD PRESENT AN OVERIVIEW-OF THE
L "MAJOR CHRONIC DISEASES OF HISPANICS. THE INFORMATION SHOULD
: .INCLUDE EXPLANATIONS OF 'RISK FACTORS AND CHRONIC DISEASES
;- SUCH AS: AIDS, DRUG USE, FAMILY HISTORY, ALCOHOL ABUSE,
OBESITY, MALNUTRITION, DIABETES, INFANT .MORTALITY, AND <
‘UNINTENTIONAL INJURIES. ’

THOSE SAME PROGRAMS SHOULD BE' AIMED AT INFORMING PEOPLE OF
WHAT AVAILABLE DIAGNOSTIC SCREENINGS ZXiIST FOR THOSE RISK
e "FACTORS AND DISEASES AND HOW THEY CAN REQUEST THOSE SCREENING
: TO BE PERFORMED.

WE ALSO -REQUIRE CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAMS FOR HEALTH
. PROFESSIONALS, INCLUDING MAKING PHYSICIANS MORE RESPONSIVE TO
’ "THE HIGH INCIDENCE OF CERTAIN DISEASES SUCH AS DIABETES. TOQO
MANY PHYSICIANS ARE NOT AWARE OF THE HIGH INCIDENCE OF
DISEASES -LIKE DIABETES, EVEN THOUGH THEY TREAT PREDOMINANTEY
HISPANIC PATIENTS.

BUT MOST OF ALL, WE MUST SEEK TO ACQUIRE MORE DATA ON THE
HEALTH STATUS OF HISPANICS. I BELIEVE YOU HAVE GREATLY
ASSISTED US IN THE TASK BY REQUESTING THE GENERAL ACCOUNTING
OFFICE TO SURVEY THE AVAILABLE DATA ON HISPANIC NUTRITION AND
HEALTH. I HOPE TO CONTINUE WORKING WITH YOU IN THE FUTURE TO
. ADDRESS THESE CONCERNS. AGAIN, MR. CHAIRMAN I WISH TO THANK?
YOU FOR YOUR THOUGHTFUL INVITATION TO TESTIFY BEFORE YOUR
COMMITTEE.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. SoLoMoN P..ORTIZ, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
FroM THE STATE OF

Mr. Cha’rman, I welcome the opportunity to speak to you
< today on the.nerious natter of poverty and hunger among
Hispanics. As a cepresentative of an ;rea of the country which
suffers an extremely high unenmployment rate, I receive numerous

inquiries from individuals asking for public assistance.

: An essential means of feeding the hungry is through the
Temporary Emergency Food Assistance Program (TEFAP). It has
recently come to my attention, however, that certain commodities
will no lornger be available from the TEFAP, particularly cheese.
This reduction in cheese to needy families an my district will
have a devastating effect. The amount of persons receiving food
conmodities under the TEIAP program is staggering. I have
received nuperous letters from individuals in my district
pleading that this prograr be continued. This program is vital
because it is a direct and visible means for a3ssisting poor

people.

The persons who receive these food items are a diverse group
of needy individuals. Sone are elderly, single heads of
households with little formal education, large families, widows,
persons with little formal education, disabled, unemployed or any
- combination of these descriptions. Many of these individuals

would like to see stricter qualifications for those receiving

commodities and food stamps.
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According to Mr. Wayne Kuykendall, Director of the Food
Distribution Program in Texas, 501,620 families participated in
the TEFAP in December of 1987. This translates to approxirately
two million individuals who received commodities under this
program for that month in December. It is my understanding that

the number has been increasing in 1988.

The reduction of commodities available through the TEFAP
program will be noticeably =zissed. In many cases, these items
are a much-needed supplement to social security benefits and food
stamps. In some cases, these commodities serve us a substitute
for applying for food stamps or as the sole source of public

assistance.

lumerous individuals have expressed theix concern that other
countries receive priority in the distribution of surplus
commodities available through the federal government. If this is
tru2, than the priority thz United States exhibits must be

changed.

It is my opinion that we as a government must have a caring
attitude for those less fortunate in our society. We as
government leaders must have accurate and complete information
from which to adcpt a national policy which addresses the
concerns and needs of the indigent. 1In this regard, hunger in

the U. S. should be considered a major domestic priority.
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RISPANIC °0PULAT10N.DEHOGRA?HICS

Accerding ©o an August 1987 Current Populaiion Reporis Populaticn
Characterics hispanics comprise 18.5 m:llion of the total population
of the Unize. Stzzes. This is an increase oI 700,000 persens in the
Eispanic popu.zzion since 1985. According to the same repcr:, the
Eispanic populzzion has increzsed by 30 percent (or br 4.3 million
civilians) since 1280.

Pover:y among the Rispanic population has not improved over the past
few vears. As indicated oy 2 recent Census advance Report, the
poverty zate Zor Bispanic Zazmilies has been fluctuating In 1981 the
pcvesty rate was "5.5%; the rate rose to 27.2% in 1982 ané nes
steadiiy declined to ics current level of 24.7%. (1)

MARCE 1987

Percent oI

Hispanic Population Number in U.S. ¥isp. Pop.(1)
Mexicen crigin 11.8 =illion 63.0%
Puerto Ricazn origin 2.3 illion 12.0%
Cuban origin 10 5.0%
Central ané South*

Andericaen origin 2.1 million 11.0%
1.6 million §.0%
Hispanics Non Hispanics

1987 1982 1987 1982

Population(2)
{in thousanés)

Totzl persons 18,790 15,354 21¢,99¢ 212,014
% of total pop. 7.¢ 5.5 g2.1 23.1
Puerto Ther

Mex. Rican Cuban  C&S smer. Hisp.

“
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$19,326 814,584 <3 824,240

75 $19,602
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* Frop here on Central and South American will appear as C & S
American.

Sources:

Y. U.S. Departmen: o Tommerce. Bureav of the Census. Current
Population Reports- Population Characterics. The Hispanic Populaticn
fn the United States March 1986 anc 1987 (Acvance Report).
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Rispanic Origin Poverty Data(a)

Poverty Rate for Families 1981 1982 1983 1584 1985 1986
Hispanic Origin 23.5  27.2 26.0 25.2  25.5 26.7
Not of Hispanic Origin 10.2 1.4 11.5 10.7 10.4 9.9
i Hispanic Peerso Cés Other
Craracteristic TO=. DOD. Mex . Ricen  Cuban Amer. Hisp
Below Poverty Level in 1986(3)
(in thousands)
Tamilies 1.085 649 226 39 97 5,140
Fercent 24.7 24.9 38.1 13.1 16.7 2.9
Below Poverty Level in 1981
{in thousands)
Families £75 Le7 222 37 65 55
Percent 23.5 22.3 4104 13.7 17.2 17.5
Hispanic Education Attainment(4)
Puer:to Ocher
Totel Hispanic Mex. Rican Cuban  (C&S Amer. Hisp.
Mecdian yrs of
Schooling, 1987 i2.0 16.8  12.1 12,4 12.3 12.7
Eisoanics Non Hispanics
1967 1982 1987 1982
Education Attainmpent
& vrs. or nmore
o Bigh 3chooi 56.9 L5.4 77.3 72.3
gispanics Nor Hiszanics
1967 1952 1$57 71982
& Or more years
o coliege 8.6 7.7 20.% i8.3

(2) Ascording tec the Census Depariment the Poverty getermiuasicn s
based on casn only income.

Sources:

3. U.S. Depar:iment 0f Commerce, Bureat of the Census. Currenc

Fopulation Reporzs- Populatzion Cnaracterics
in the Un.ced S:iates

4. 1bid.
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Mareh 1986 and 1987 (Advance Report).
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Health Characteristics of the Hispanic Population

1t is difficult to accurately assess the health status of the Hispanic
population because "ethnicity is not uniformly recorded on death
certificates in all states. Also, no national mortality {igures exist
which separate-Hispanics from other whites.” (5)

According to the United States Department of Health and Human
Services, tweaty-six percent of the Hispanic population has no medical
insurance, this is almost three time the rate for whites (9%).

Hispanic Reproductive Health Characteristics

Total

Characteristic  Population Mex.

-Birth -Rate(6) 23.9 24.9

% births to Women:

> 35 years of age 8.3 19.1

< 20 years of age 6.5 6.4

Unmarried 25.6 21.9
% births of low

birthweight 6.2 5.7

Puerto

Rican Cuban C&S Amer.
19.1 1.1 28.7
23.0 11.4 9.0

5.5 7.3 9.2
49.6 15.9 30.2

9.1 5.8 5.6

(5) National Center for Health Statistics. Disease Prevent:on/lealth
Promotion. The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services p.¢19.

(6) Ibid. p.220
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Unlted States
General Accounting Office
Washington, D.C. 20548

Human Resources Divislon

B+230485

March 18, 1988

The Honorable Mickey Leland
Chajirrman. Select Committee on Hunger

The Honorable Albert Bustamante
Chairman., Hispanic Caucus

The Honorable Tony Coelho
Majority Whip

House of Representatives

In your October 28, 1987, letter, you noted that while
Hispanics are the second largest minority group in the United
States, little §s known about their nationwide health and
nutrition status and needs Oor their participation in nutrition
programs, Therefore, you requested information regarding the
collection of health and nutrition data on Hispanics.

You were particularly interested in national health and
nutrition data collected on Hispanics through four surveys:
(1) the National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey III.
(2) the National Health Interview Survey, (3) the National
Medical Expenditures Survey. and (4) the Nationwide Food
Consumption Survey. Interest was also expressed in Hispanic
birth and death data collected from states under the Vital
Statistics program and data on Hispanic participatjon in the
Department of Agriculture's food assistance Progrars.

Specifically, you wanted tO know:

1. What possibilities exist for including an oversample of
Hispanics under the four natjional health and nutrition surveys
conducted by the Department of Health and Human Services and
the Department of Agriculture? If a Hispanic oversample is
not included, what are the reasons, and are there
considerations for its inclusion?

2. Do the Vital Statistics Program's standard birth and death
regis tratjon forms proposed for 1989 provide for the
collection of Hispanic data? If so, what training existr for
the use of the Hispanic jidentifier contained in the forms?
How does the Vital Statistics Program operate--can it require
states to use a Hispanic identifier?
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3. Do data exist oh Hispanic participation in Agriculture's
food and nutrition programs? Are Hispanic data unavailable
for programs in which racial i{nformation is available, and &f
80, why? What steps would be necessary to obtain Hispanic
participation data for these programs if such data are not
readily available?

Oversarpling involves sclecting more respondents from a
targeted low-incidence group than are necessary for estimates
of the entire sampled group of interest. It is a technique
used to permit better estimates of minority groups that would
otherwise be selected in too few numbers to allow separate
valid analyses of their characteristics. The Health and
Nutrition Examination and-the Medical Expenditures surveys
have arranged to oversample Hispanics in order to arrive at
national estimates of the health and nutrition status of
Hispanics. The Health Interview and the Food Consumption
survey:, do not oversample for Hispanics and have no plans to
do £0 at this time, primarily due to the additional cost that
would be incurred.

New standard birth and death registration forms have been
developed for the vital Statistics Program, under which birth
and death information collected by the states is aggregated.
These forms are for voluntary usc by states beginning in 1989
and request identification of Hispanics. A Hispanic
identifier was not included in the carlier standard forms.
Instructions for the use of the Hispanic identifier are
provided through vital Statistics Program materials, such as
train.ng booklets and videos.

All 13 of the Department of Agriculture's Food and Nutrition
Service food assistance programs collect racial and ethnic
data on participants at the local level. Currently, however,
national Hispanic participation information is provided in
published reports for only four of the programs: (1) Food
Stamps; (2) Special Supplemental Food Program for Women,
Infants, and Children: (3) Needy Family Program on Indian
Rescrvations and Trust Territories: and (4) Commodity
Supplemental Food Program. According to program officials,
three more programs have gtudies underway that will provide
nationwide information on Hispanic participation. There was
little nationwide intormation for Hispanic participation in
the other si{x programs. Program offficials indicated this was
due partly to the lack of centrally compiled data about
Hispanic participation {n these programs, the added burden on
local agencies in compiling existing ethnic data, and the
absence of a demand for racial or ethnic data. In addition,
because data are generally unavailable on the number of
Higpanics eligible for these programs, it is both costly and

2
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difficult to estimate possible nonparticipation by eligible
Hispancics.

As your office requested, the draft report was discussed with
cognizant officials of cach of the surveys and food programs,
and their comments were considered in finalizing the report. .
Because of the time constraints placed by your office for
issuance of the report, it was not possible to provide a draft
of this report to either the Department of Health and Human
Services or the Department of Agriculture for review and
comment.

As arranged with your office, unless you publicly announce its
contents earlier, we plan no further distribution of this
report until 30 days from its issue date. At that time, we
will send copies to the Secretary of Health and Human Services
and the Secratary of Agriculture and will make copies
available to others upon request.

Should you need additional information on the contents of this
document, please call me on 275-5451.

¢4M£i:&ziﬁﬁzixziégg_/

Janet L. Shikles
Associate Director

2
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.COLLECTION GF DATA ON HISPANICS®
HEALTH AND NUTRITION STATUS AND
PARTIC

BACKGROUND

Hispanics are the second largest und fastest growing
minority group in the United States today. The 1980 Census set
the-Hispanic portion of the U.S. population at 6.45 percent, or
14.6 million people. According-to Census Bureau.projections, the
Hispanic portion of the population is expected to increase to 9.4
percent, or about 25 million people, by the year 2000.

The three main Hispanic subgroups in the United States are:
Mexican Americans- (59.8 percent of all Hispanics in the 1980
Cengus), who are .concentrated in California. and the Southwest;:
Puerto Ricans (13.8 percent), who are concentrated in New York
and New Jersey; and Cuban Americans (5.5 percent), who.are
located primarily -in Florida. (App. I shows the Hispanic
population for each state.) Research has shown that the health
status of these Hispanic .ubgroups varies significantly and that
sometimes these groups differ from one another more than they
differ from the general population.

Data Collection Systems and Food Assistance Programs

Three of the nationwide health and nutrition ta collection
systems, the Health and Nutrition Examination Swy .y III, the
Health Intorview -Survey, and the Medical Expenditures Survey, are
operated by the Department of Health and Human Services. The
Nationwide Food Consumption Survey is conducted by the De,artumant
of Agriculture. The Vital Statistics Program is also ope.ated ry
the Department of Health and Human Serviceés. These systems are
briefly described below. (A summary chart showing each system's
mandete, objective, users, estimated cost. projectable
populations from its sample, data collection aspects specific to
Hispanicg, survey period, and data availability is included in
app. II.

National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey III,
conducted by the Department of Health aud Human
Services' National Center for Health Statistics and
currently in pretest, will be undertaken as a 6-year
study, from 1988-93, to provide oritical data on the
health and nutritional s .atus of the U.S. population.
Two other’'Health and Nutrition Examination surveys have
been completed since 1970. The survey includes
extensive medical and nutritional examinations, which
allow the discovery of undiagnosed and nonmanifest
diseases and an understanding of the nutritional
qualities of people's diets. The data will be used to
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estimate the prevalence of various diseases and
elucidate the mechanisms of disease development.

In additiqn to these surveys, from 1982-84 1 special
survey of Hispanics was done using the Health and
Nutrition Examination Survey methodology in the
geographic areas of the country where most of the

* Hispanic population is concentrated. Although this
survey was not national in sccpe, it covered about 76
percent of the 1980 Hispznic population in the United
States.

National Health Interview Survey, also directed by the
National Center for Health Statistics, is carried out
annually and consists of two parts: a general health
part that remains relatively unchanged from year to
year and a special studies part that focuses on a
number of topics of interest (usually to a cosponsoring
agency) that vary from year to year. Special topics
for fiscal year 1988 include alcohol consumption, AIDS
knowledge and attitudes, medical device implants,
occupational health, and child health. The survey is
designed to address major national health issues and
can be ugsed to assess the prevalence, distribution, and
effects of illness and disability in the United States
and the services rendered for these.

National Medical Expenditures Survey, conducted by the

Department of Health and Human Services' National
Center for Health Services Research and Health Care
Technology, is done every 8-10 years. The current
survey was begun in 1986 and will be completed in 1989,
Its goal is to obtain and analyze information on health
care costs across the nation. Both the previous and
current surveys are used to address questions on the
kinds and amounts of health care used, their cost, how
they are financed, and the implications of changes in
health policies on all these.

Nationwide Food Consumption Survey is the seventh in a
series of surveys. It is conducted every 10 years by
Agriculture's Human Nutrition Information Service to
assess the nutritional content of diets for policy-
making on food assistance, nutrition education, food
production and marketing, and food safety. Data are
collected on the general population and on low-income
groups, both for individuals and households. The
current survey is being conducted over a 12-month
period that began in April 1987.

The vital Statistics Program is administered by the National
Center for Health Statistics' Division of vitai Statistics, which

6
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aggiegagps vital information--guch as births, deaths. fetal
deaths, marriages. and divorces--coliected by the states. Under
the program, federal program staff and state officials work
together to producs: updated standard data collection forms every
10 years. This year a new form has been proposed for adoption in
1989 by interested states.

Agriculture's Food and-Nutrition Service Programs offer, in
cooperation with state and local governments, food assistance and
nutritional education for those in need. These programs were
created to_improve the nutrition of low-income households,
improve nutritional knowledge. reduce food supply surpluses, and
help strengthen the agricultural markets for products produced by
aAmerican farmers. Eligibility requirements for each program
vary, but usually include income and family size and sometimes
nutritional or-health-need. (Descriptions of the food assistance
programs are provided in app. III.)

.OBJECTIVES, SCOPE, and METHODOLOGY

We examined the sampling plans for each of the most recent
surveys to deternine if thcy included an oversample of Hispanics
that would permit national estimates of their health and
nutrition-status. We examined the Health and Nutrition

. Examination Survey for 1988-93, the Health Interview Survey for

1988, the Medical Expenditures Survey for 1986-89, and the
Nationwide Foed-Consumption Survey for 1987-88. If the survey
did not include an oversample of Hispanics, we asked survey
officials why it did not, what considerations had been given to
possible oversampling., and whether future plans for the survey
included oversampling.

Regarding the Vital Statistics Program, we reviewed
legizlation %o determine the proyram's mandates and guidelines
for working with the states. We reviewed the proposed 1989
standard registration forms for birth and death, determined what
training was planned for the use of the new standard forms, and
iden-.ified which states currently collect Hispauic data.

We also identified the Food and Nutrition Service programs
that collect and report ethnic or racial data on participants and
ascertained, through discussions with Service officials, why some
programs did not publish ethnic and racial data ard what steps
would be necessary for these programs to provide data on
Hispanics.

Our review was done during December 1947 and January 1988 in
accordance with generally accepted government avditing standards.
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FISPANIC OVERSAMPLES IN NATIONAL
UEALTH AND NUTRITION SURVEYS

Until recently, %he sampling-plans of the four national
surveys included too “few members of minority groups to allow
separate national estimates of their health or nutritional
condition. One solution used to overcome this lack of data,
which occurs when attempting to focu: on small minority groups.
has been to oversample.

The current sarpling plans for two of the four national
health and” nutrition. data collection surveys call for
oversacpling Hispan..s. in order-to arrive at national estimates
of ‘their health and'nutrition status. These are the larger and
more cozmplex surveys, t'ie Health and Nutrition -Examination Survey
and the Medical Expendi:ures Survey. The Health and Nutrition
Examination Survey plans to cample a sufficient number of Mexican
Americans--the largest Hispanic subgroup--to arrive at national
estimates for that subgroup. The survey director told us that
funding constraints have precluded. ove;sampling the total
Hispanic population. The Medical Expenditures Survey will
include national estimates of Hispanics in general and, possibly.
estimates of the threz main Hispanic subgrcups: Mexican
Americans, Puerto Ricans, and Cuban Americans.

Since 1985, the Health- Interview Survey has oversanmpled
blacks in order to increase the precision of related estimates.
This survey. however, dces not include a Hispanic oversample, and
the Naticnwide Food Consumption Survey does not oversample any
minority group, primarily due to additional cost. (The Health
Interview Survey did a partial oversample of Hispanics in its
1987 special topic segment on cancer.) Both surveys collect
ethnic data, but do not make nationwide estimates of the Hispanic
population in any one year because the survey samples do not
include enough Hispanics to allow such estimates.

Although Health Interview Survey officials could not
estimate how much 2 Hispanic oversample would cost, they said it
would be a considerable amount. since it would require (1) a
change in sampl;ng strategy related to geographic dispersion
because Hispanics are geographically concentrated and (2) a large
increase in the number of households screened because there are
relatively few Hispanics.

The Health Interview Survey director indicated that the
entire sampling strategy will be open to review in the next few
years and anticipated that oversampling of H;span;cs would be a
topic of cdonsi?..ation. The sampling strategy is usually
reviewed only every 10 years to encourage continuity with the
results of previous years. The last change in sampling strategy
was implemented in 1985. The director pointed out, however, that
the current sampling strategy does not e.imina.e the possibility
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of nationwide.estimates other than those made on 1 year's data
because it allows for the combina..on of several years' data on
Hispanics to arrive at zufficient numbers for a nationwide
estimate. The sampling strategy also provides a capability for
follow-ups on respondents of interest in the years after their
.participation in the survey.

The Nationwide ‘Food Consumption Survey director cited cost
as the main barrier for not adding an oversample of Hispanics to
the survey. He estimated that screening and interviewing
additional households for a Hispanic oversample might add $3
million to the §6 million cost of the survey. Also, the director
pointed out that by law the survey was required to include only
ow-income pecple, not specific minority groups. The Pood

Sa.urity Act of 1985 mandated that “the Secretary of Agriculture
shall, in conducting . . . any nationwide food consumption
survey, include a sample that is-representative of low-in~ome
individuals . . . .* The director believes this coverace of low-
income people addresses nutritional problems in minority groups
with-2 high incidence of poverty, even if the particular
minorities are not singled out.

Neither the Health Intersiew nor the Food Consumption survey
has any plans for including an oversample of Hispanics, and
survey officials pointed out that their primary users have not
expressed a need for such an oversample. The primary users of
the Health Interview Survey are federal health agencies; for the
Food Consumption Survey, Department of Agriculture food and
nutrition agencies are the primary users. According to the
directors of the two surveys, a Hispanic oversample could be
added to the surveys if sufficient interest. and funding were
available. The four national surveys have review processes that
are open to the public for suggestions on inclusion of items.
These suggestions ave reviewed by program staff and various
scientific and agency committees for scientific merit,
feasibility, and other factors befcre final decisions are made.

PROPOSED VITAL STATISTICS STANDARD
FORMS INCLUDE HISPANIC -IDENTIFIER

The Vital Statistics Program's new standard birth and death
registration data collection forms include an item requesting
Hispanic identity. These forms also provide for the collection
of Hispanic subgroup data on Mexicans, Puexto Ricans, Cubans, and
otlher subgroups.

States are not required to use the standard registration
forms. However, federal program officials have worked with the
states to explain their need for data requested in the standard
forms and have provided various training materials and technical
assistance to help in the use of the forms.

Ly
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In 1987, Vital Statistics Program staff discussed the new
forms at the annual necting of “the Association for Vital Records -
2 and Health Statistics attended by state registrars, who ire
. responsible for data collection at the state level. Program N
M st2ff ‘also participated in annual Vital.Statistics Cooperative s
Program workshops held for. all participating state officials an <
three regionsl locations in 1987. *

Additionally, in 1987, program staff distributed booklets to i
states for use in ‘training funeral home divrectors, medical staff,
and others who will £ill out the forms. According to program
officials, training videcs will be distributed to the states in
1988. ' Both the booklets and the videos exphasize the imporzance
.of couect.:lng data on Hispanice and indicate the usefulncss of
{ ‘these data for national planning for their needs. States can :
- also obtain telephone assistance from Frogiam staff in completing -
- and procesﬁ:lng the -forms for-data tape production. -

States normally collect birth and death information for
their own use and then provide a data tape with such inforration
to: the Division of vital Statistics. To offset the cost of
produc:lng the data tapes, states are provided federal funds
through the Vital Statistics Program. The amount of fe‘eral
funding states receive is determined by a formula that considers
state-population and costs relevant to the production of data
tapes-and staff training. Prograrm funding covers about one-third
-of -the state cost to produce the tapes. In fiscal year 1987,
funding ranged from $759.,438 in a very populous state to $55,634 :
in a less populous state. (App. IV shows the funds provided to ;
each state by the Vital Statistics Prograwi: and state costs
related to data tape.production.)
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Because the new standard forrs were distributed in 1987 and -
do not need to be adopted- until 1989, the states are still ‘
deciding whether to use the forns. The chief of the Vital
-Statistic Progriu's Registration Methods Branch said that it was
too early to arrive at a corplete count of the states that will
use the forms. Nevertheless, he said that most states have
indicated their intention to adopt a form that would be
consistent with the stendard forms. In 1987, 23 states, the
, District of Columbia, aid New York City had colletted Hispanic
4 natality and mortality data for their own needs before a federal
. need was expressed, and the chief expected an additional 10
states to collect such information in 1989. (The states that

T ANOE T G Y T

1 collected Hisrunic information in 1987 are listed in app. I.)

] AVAILABILITY OF DATA Of HISPANIC ?
. PARTICIDATION IN DEPARTMENT OF .
- AGRICULTURE FOOD ASSIGTANCE PROGRAMS

: The Food and Nutrition Service collects racial and ethnic
data for its food assistance programs in order to ensure
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compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Such data are
usually collected at the local levels and have not always been
aggregated on a natiorwvide basis. According to the director of
the Food.and Nutrition Service's Civil Rights Office, the data
are periodically reviewed to assure that civil rights goals are
met.

Of the 13-food assistance programs, 4 have produced national
-data on Hispanic participation: Food Stamps {«2 percent of
participants are Hispanic); Special Supplemental Food Program for
Women, Infants, and Children (26 percent); Commodity Supplemental
Food Program (12 percent); and Needy Family Program.on Indian
Reservatjons and Trust Territories (1 percent). According to
Food and Nutrition Service officials, three more programs have
studies underway on nationwide participation that will aggregate
Hispanic data. These could be available during the next year.
The other six programs do not have data available and gtudies are
not planned to complile participation data.

Service officials indicated that creatj :n of estimates on
the number of potentiaily eligible people who could participate
in the various programs would be costly and tiwe consuning
because they would probably require the collection of new data.
No-data base exists that contains data in the gsame form as the
‘varying eligibility requirements for the 13 food programs. For
example, some programs.use health needs as well as income to
determine eligibility. wWhile this type of information might be
available from several data sources, there are no precise counts
available of thoge who match the various eligibil’:y
requirements. These estimates are only as reliable as the
assunptions and data bases on which they are baged.

3 Two of -the 13 programs have developed estimates of the
nunber ‘of potentially eligible pecple who could participate in
the programs. The Food Stamp programs the largest food
assistance program, has used Census Bureau data to arrive at
rough estimates of the general eligible population who micht
participate in the progrum. But this program has not estimated
the number of menbers of racial or ethnic groups that are
potentially eligible.

A study was complated in July 1987 that estimated both
general eligibility aril racial or ethnic eligibility for the
Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and
Children. The study used several data bases to match the
complicated program eligibility requirements and cost $400,000.
There are three facets to eligibiiity in the progranm:
participants must be (1) pregnant, breastfeedfng, or postpartum
women, or infznts and children up to their fifth birthday: (2) of
low inccme, with earnings that do not exceed 185 percent of the
federal poverty level (states can set lower limits); and (3) at
risk that is either medically or nutritionally based. The study
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-used all three criteria-to estimate the number of people
; potentially eligible for the program. The study drew on data
: from several sources: a-special analysis of the 1980 Census
data, an earlier National Health and Nutrition Examination
Survey. the '1980-National. Natality/Petal Mortality Survey, and
state-level vital statistics.

. A key finding of the study published in its first report was
L that of the estimated 7.5 million people in the general
population potentially eligible to _articipate in the program, an
estimated 40 percent participated in iscal year 1984. According
to Pood and Nutrition Service.official., data on the estimated
L nunber of potentially eligible Hispanic s, along with their

M participation in the program, will be published in another report
soon. The Food and Nutrition Service has no plans for further
studies on program-participation or-potentiai eligibility.

e

=y

A e w g

CECRAE

Q
' ERIC
(;d} ' FullText Provided by ERIC

s
3

T




3
2

RN

e

3

APPENDIY I

TOTAL STLTE POPULATIONS AND PERCENTAGE OF HISPANICSa

APPENDIX I

Alabama
Alaska
Arizona:
Arkansas
-California
Colorado
Connecticut
Delaware
D.C.

Florida
Georgia
Hawaii

Idaho
Illinois
Indiana

Iowa

Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maine
Maryland
Massachusetts
Michigan
Minnesota
‘Mississippi
Missouri
Montana
Nebraska
Nevada

New Hampshire
New Jersey
New Mexico
New York
North Carolina
North Dakota
Ohio
Oklahoma
Oregon
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island

LRIC

R I PR R S P T R Rpee e

Percentage

Total of Hispanic
population origin
3,893,888 0.86
401,851 2.37
2,718,215 16.21
2,286,435 0.78
23,667,902 19.20
2,889,964 11.76
3,107,576 4.01
638,333 2.77
594,338 1.63
9,746,324 8.80
5,463,105 1.12
964,691 7.39
943,935 3.88
11,426,518 5.56
5,490,224 1.59
2,913,808 0.88
2,363,679 2.68
3,660,777 0.75
4,205,900 2.36
1,124,660 0.45
4,216,975 1.54
5,737,037 2.46
9,262,078 1.75
4,075,970 0.79
2,520,638 0.98
4,916,686 1.05
786,690 1.27
1,569,825 1.79
800,493 6.73
920,610 0.61
7,364,823 6.68
1,302,894 36.63
17,558,072 9.45
5,881,766 0.96
652,717 0.60
10,797,630 1.11
3,025,290 1.90
2,633,105 2.50
11,863,895 1.30
947,154 2.08

14

Hispanics identified
on birth and death
certificates in 1987

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
YesC
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
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APPENDIX I

Percentage Hispanics identified
fotal of Hispanic on birth and death
population crigin certificates in 1987P
South Carolina 3,121,820 1.07 -
South Dakota 690,768 0.58 -
Tennessee 4,521,120 0.74 Yes
Texas 14,229,191 20.98 N Yes
Utah. 1,461,037 4.13 Yes
Vermont 511,456 0.65 -
Virginia 5,346,818 1.49 -
‘Washington 4,132,156 2.90 -
West Virginia 1,949,644 0.65 -
Wisconsin 4,705,767 1.34 -
Wyoming - 469,557 5.22 Yes

.

O

apata from the 1980 U.S. Census.

bpata ‘from the chief, Registration Methods Branch of the Vital
Statistics Program run by the National Center for Health

Statistics.

CFlorida collects Hispanic birth data but not death data.
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APPENDIX IIX

APPENDIX IX

NATIONAL HEALTH AND WUTRITION DATA COLLECTION SYSTEMS

Key objectives

. <

Legisiative

authorizat iond
National National Health
Health Survey Act of
and 1956
Nutrition
Examination
Survey IIL
Hispanic National Health
Health Survey Act of
and 1956
Nutrition
Exaaination
Survey

O

Provide critical
data on the
health and
autrition status
of the U.S.
population

Obtain data on
health and
nutrition of
Hispanics

16

Total
egtimated

Primary users costs .
=Public health ~Egtimate

agencies unavailable ”
-Agencies that because

cosponsor sample not

collection of finalized ]
data
-Private sector

researchers,

such as

academics

L

=Public health
agencies,
especially those
covering
diseases that
may be
ethnically
related
~Private sector
regearchers,
such as #
academics

$34 million

o
co
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For spucific

geographic
- areas, all
Hispanics,
plus
subgroups:
=Mexican,
-Puetto

Rican, and

=Cuban

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

<ol e

=~Used bilingual Data

interviewers
and medical
staff
~Used Spanish
translation
of survey
~Used
interviewers
specially
trained in
nutrition of
Hispanic diet
and medical
staff trained
in

rudimentary
Spanish

collection
1982 to
1984

S Data Survey or
. Possible collection data
) pqpula:lon techniques collection Data
- projections for Hispanics perio? availability
, En:ire U.S. =Use bilingual 6-year study =Tapes will
. population, intervievers from 1988-93 be sold,
blacks, and staff and donated
Mexican =Use Spanish to schools
Anericans translation of public
~Use staff health
specially =National
N traineu 4n Center for
N Hispanic diet Health
. for nutrition Statistics
aspects of publishes
the survey results in
vital and
Health
Statistics
Series II
and in
Journal
articles

~Data tapes
available
through
sales and
donated to
researchers

=10 of 18
data tapes
are now
available

=-Bibliography
available of
products to
date

APPENDIX IIX




Key objectives

APPENDIX II
Legislative
\ authorization®
National National Health
Health Survey Act of
Inter- 1956
N view
Survey
& ’
National General
Medical althorities
Expen- of The
ditures Assistact
Survey Secretary
of Health
4
£ O
:
-2

[TV

Collect data
on major
national
health icsues

Obtain and
analyze data on
health care costs
for U.S.:

(1) nouscholds
and

(2) Institutions

18

Primacy users

~Federal health
agencies,
egpecially
collaborating
agencies for
topics
-Market
regearchers
=-Schools of
public health

-Congress
-Federal public
peblic health

agencies
~ilealth
professionals
~Insurance Cos.
~Private sector
researchers
=Treasury
-0MB, OTA, CBO
-GAO

‘5
't

R
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Tot al
egstimated
costs

$10.3 nmillion

$55 million
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APPENDIX IX

Data Survey or
Possible collection dara
population techniques collection Data
projections for Hispanics period availability
Entire U.S., <-Use experienced Data ~Data tapes
blacks Census staff collected sold
since 1985 for data continuoucly =-Nat {onal
collection during each Center for
~Use bilingual year since for Health
household 1957 Statistics
nembers to publishes
translate results in
Spanish for various
respondents sources,
including
vital and
Health
Statistics
Series 10
Eatire U.S., ~Use bilingunal -Began in 1986, -Data tapes
blacks, awd, intervievers all data available
in the when requested collection through
household by respondents planned to be sales
component complete by ~Many
only, 1989 analyses
Higpanics planned, but
and possibly survey staff
subgroups: open to
~Mexican, requests for
~Puerto Rican, special
and analyses
~Cuban
19
Ll
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g

vital
Sta-
tistics
Program

Mation~
wide
Food
Con-

sumption

survey

Legislative
authorization?

Key objectives

APPENDIX II

Total
estimated

Primary users costs

Health Services
Research and
Evaluation and
Health Statistics
Act of 1974

Food Agriculture
Act of 1977

Provide national
statistics on
births, deaths,
fetal deaths,
marriages, and
divorces

(from state
data)

Nationwide study
of food
consumption to
asses nutritional
content of diets
for policy-making

on fcod production

and marking, food
safety and food
assistance, and

~Federal
agencies
-Private sector
researchers
~Social welfare
agencies
~Private
dbusinesses
=-Actuarial groups

$10 million
for 1989

-Related federal $6 million

agencies (to add
-Private sector oversample
researchers of Hispanics
=-Private would cost
businesses an additional

$3 million)

nutritfon education

8Legislative citations provided by data systenm staff.

bEstimated costs were based on information provided by survey and program

diréctors.

. ERIC
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APPENDIX II APPENDIX II
’ Data Survey or
Possible collection data
population techniques collection Data
projections for Hispanics period availabilics
Eutire U S., Encourage state Data collected -Data & tapes
. and in 1949, cooperation from states available in
. Hispanics through: annually 1-1/2 years,
plus =booklets published
subgroups? =videos repor.s in 3
~Mexican, ~workshops years froa
—Puerto ~state visits end of
Rican, aad =visit to state calendar
- =Cuban regi :rars' year
< . annt sonference
: ~Technical
assistance
=Federal funds to
buy state data
: tapes
- Entire U.S., =Use bilingual Current =Data tapes
- plus: interviewvers survey 4/87 sold
—~Low-incone in certain to 3/88 =Many
areas (such as analyses
Texas) funded by
NFCS are
done
extrasurally
21
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APPENDIX IIIX APPENDIX IIIX

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FCOD
AND NUTRITION SERVICE PROGRAMS

The Fuod and Nutrition Service operates food assistance
programs for those in need in cooperation with thc states and local
governments. Descriptions of the 13 programs follow.

. .

THE FOOD STAMP PROGRAM

Through a cooperative system, federal, state, and local
governments issue food stamps in order to supplement the food
buying power of low-income households and thereby improve their
nutritional status. The program is administered nationally by the
Food and Nutrition Service and covers all states. United States
citizens and legal aliens are eligible if they meet household
income and asset requirements, meet work requirements, and have a
social security number. The elderly and disabled are permitted
certain eligibility exceptions.

The current Food Stamp program originated in 1964 and expanded -
nat ionwide in 197%. Participation peaks in periods of high
unemployment, inflation, and recession. In 1987, an average of
19.1 million people participated in the program per month, at a
cost of $11.7 billion.

SPECIAL SUPPLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAM .
FOR WOMEN, INFANTS, AND CHILOREN

The Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and
Children is administered by tne Food and Nutrition Service to
provide supplemental foods and nutrition education through local
agencies 1o low-income pregnant, postpartum, and breastfeeding
women, and infants and children up to 5 years of age. To be
eligible, these people must meet income requirements, be determined
to be at nutritional risk through a medical examination by health
professionals, and reside in an approved grant project area.
Supplemental foods, such as infant formula, eggs, cheese, and milk,
are distributed directly to participants. If a local agency
reaches its maximum participation level, it then fills vacancies
with those applicants at greatest nutritional risk.

The Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and
Children began in 1972 and operated at a cost ¢f $1.7 billion in
fiscal year 1987, when average monthly participation was 3.4
million people.

22
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APPENDIX III

APPENDIX III

. COMMODITY SUPPLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAM .

‘The Commodity Supplemental Food Program is a state grant
program administered by the Food and Nutrition Service to provide
supplemental foods to low-income pregnant, postpartum, and
breastfeeding women, infants and children up to 6 years of age, and
the elderly. In some of the 12 states participating, eligible
persons must also be determined to be at nutritional risk.

Although the Special Supplemental Progcam for Women, Infants, and
Children and the Commodity Supplemental Food Program may operate in
the same area, individuals may not participate in both programs.

The program was established in 1969. The program operated at
a cost of $55 million in fiscal year 1987, serving an average of
190,000 people per month.

NEEDY-.FAMILY PROGRAM ON INDIAN
RESERVATIONS AND TRUST TERRITORIES

The Department of Agriculture provides food products to

households on Indian reservations and to Native A.ericans residing
in the Trust Territories of the Pacific Islands.

The Department purchased food for this program at a cost of
$64 million in fiscal ,=2ar 1987, and an average of 150,000 people
. per month participated.

COMMODITIES FOR CHARITABLE INSTITUTIONS

N Provides available commodit® .s for meal service to soup
kitchens and other charitable institutions. The federal cost in
fiscal year 1987 was $158 million.

“‘PORARY EMERGENCY FOOD ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Surplus commodities are distributed by the Department of
. Agriculture to the states under the Temporary Emergency Food
: Assistance Program to help improve the nutritional status of those
in need, as well as to help reduce inventories and storage costs.
The states receive the surplus food based on the number of people
unemployed and the number of people below the poverty level. The
states then distributz the food through local institutions, which
must require a demonstration of economic need from participants.

The Temporary Emergency Food Assistance Program began in 1981.
From 1981 through September 1987, 4.5 billion pounds of commodities
have been distributed (cheese, butter, dry milk, honey, flour, corn
meal, and rice) with a value of $4.8 billion.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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NATIONAL SCHOOL LUNCH PROGRAM

The National School Lunch Program is the largest child
nutrition program run by the Food and Nutrition Service. Through
it, states receive reimbursement for their public, private (if
tuition does not exceed limits), and institutional school lunch
programs if these schools meet requirements. The schools must
serve lunches that meet Department of Agriculture nutritional
standards, provide free and reduced price lunches to the needy
(based on income and family size) without discrimination or
identification, and operate their food service on a nonprofit
basis. ‘

The program subsidizes 24 million lunches each school day in
90,000 participating schools. Federal funding for fiscal vear 1987
was $3.7 billion. .

SCHOOI, BREAKFAST PROGRAM

The School Breakfast Program is ilso intended to improve the
nutrition and dietary pract.ces of ~nildren from low-income
families through school-spot sored ..eals. Schools and institutions
participating in the program must serve breakfasts that nmeet
Department of Agriculture n %ritional standards and must serve
children who meet eligibili.y standards based on income and family
size.

The program began in 1966. It served an average 3.6 million
children per day in fiscal year 1987 at a total cost of $458
million.

SPECIAL MILK PROGRAM

The Special Milk Program is designed to eucourage consumption
cf milk by school children. Schools, if they do not participate in
other Food and Nutrition Service meal service programs, may decide
to offer paid milk or free milk, for which children must meet
family size and income requirements. The program reimburses the
schools for the full cost of the milk distributed without charge,
and part of the paid milk costs.

The Special Milk Program was established in 1954, when funds
from the Commodity Credit Corporation were permitted to be used to
pay for milk. 1In fiscal year 1987, the fedetral cost for the milk
purchased was $15 million.
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APPENDIX IIIX . APPENDIX III

CHIL™ CARE FOOD PROGRAM

The Child Care Food -Program provides funds and foods donated
by the Department of Agriculture to child care _acilities to serve

nutritious meals and snacks. Child care providers are eligible if :
they receive compensation for child care under title XX of the
Social Security Act for at least 25 percent of the children in ;

attendance. Also eligible are Head Start programs, settlement
houses, and recreation centers. Whether the meals are free to the
children or not depends on their family income. Family Day Care
Homes are also eligible, but only the children of the provider of 3
the child care need. to meet an income criteria. Meals in this case

are partially reimbt.:lrsed.

The Child-Care Food Program was authorized in 1978 (after it
piloted in 1968 and operated in the interim). Program costs in
fiscal year 1987 were $548 million, with an average of 1.2 million
children participating each day.

SUMMER FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM

The Summer Food Service Program funds meals and snacks for
children in economically depressed areas when. school 1s not in .
session. Any child up to age 18 may participate, except at
residential camps, where participation is restricted to children
eligible: for free and reduced-price meals.

Until 1975, the Summer Food Service Program was part of the
Special Food Service Program for Children. At that time it was
established as a separate program. In fiscal year 1987, program
costs were §$130 million, with 1.6 million children participating
per day in the peak summer month.

NUTRITION PROGRAM FOR THE ELDERLY

This nutrition program supplements the Department of Health
and Human Services' elderly programs with cash and commodities for
meals. Meals are served either in homes or in senior citizen
centers or other elderly program settings. In fiscal year 1987, an
average of 900,000 people received meals daily at a cost of $139
million.

25
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APPENDIX III APPENDIX III

PUERTO RICO NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Beginning in July 1982, this program replaced the Food Stamp
Program in Puerto Rico with funds provided to Puerto Rico to
operate its own food assistance program targeted to needy
households. In fiscal year 1987, the federal cost was $853
million, with an average 1.5 million people participating each
month. :
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T APPENDIX IV APPENDIX IV .

FEDERAL SHARE OF COSTS TO PRODUCE TAPES
ON BIRTH AND DEATH DATA FOR THE VITAL STATISTICS

e rROGRAM 1 S 1987

N Data tape

$ f production costs

States, Federal
territories, share of State
and cities state costs costs?®

Alabama $136,643 $406,954
Alaska 101,075 300,549
Arizona 113,039 336,137
Arkansas 93,000 276,036
California 759,438 2,275,534
Colorado 176,450 526,147
Connecticut 134,982 401,310
Delaware 56,251 165,780

: District of Columbia 69,253 204,403

: Florida 323,001 967,106
Georgia 167,978 501,508
Hawaii 87,898 206,008

. Idaho 4 74.497 221,279

N Illinois 301,746 901,472
Indiana E 127,757 379,455
Iowa 114,706 340,658
Kansas 119,471 355,494
Kentucky 86,617 256,808
Louisiana 102,221 304,201
Maine 95,554 283,262
Maryland 122,248 366,407
Massachusetts 219,074 654,032
Michigan 305,960 914,115
Minnesota 152,711 454,808
Mississippi 105,967 315,255
Missouri 186,106 555,360
Montana 92,419 274,270
Nebraska 111,879 332,416
Nevada 103,442 307,972
New Hampshire 74,895 221,363
New Jersey 167,977 500,871
New Mexico 92,907 276,033
New York 436,487 1,305,978
North Carolina 179,574 536,114
Noxth Dakota 73,706 217,886
Oh.io 263,243 786,553
Oklahoma 118,258 352,447
Oregon 119,590 356,788
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APPENDIX IV

Data tape
production costs
States, Federal
territories, share of State

and cities state costs costsd

. Pennsylvania 311,177 930,508
Rhode Island 91,466 271,279

South Carolina 173,749 518,885

South Dakota ’ 55,634 164,114
Tennessee 150,848 449,599

Texas 395,181 1,184,027

Utah 102,423 304,165

. Vermont 89,094 264,054
. Virginia 224,628 671,199
Washington 132,505 396,009

West Virginia 77,076 228,356
Wisconsin 192,939 575,199

Wyoming 69,987 206,606

Puerto Rico 60,390 178,463

Virgin Islands 37,837 110,672

New York City 275,754 824,330

Total $8,609,708 $25,670,334

aThe National Center for Health Statistics Vital Statistics

in the production of the data tapes.

(118225)
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registration areas for the production of data tapes providing
birth and death data. The program determines funding by the use
of a formula that covers about one-third of state costs incurred
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF JOHN W. BODE, ASSISTANT SECRETARY, FOOD AND CONSUMER
SERVICES, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Mr. Chairman, aad Members of the Committee, thank you for
the invitation to appear before you today to discuss the role
played by the Food and Nutrition Se.vice (FNS) programs in
meeting the food needs of the poor, including those of Hispanic

Americans.

Mr. Chairman, as you know, our mission is to ensure that
food assistance is available to all needy citizens who cannot
provide for themselves. The President's radget recommendation
submittad to the Congress several weeks ago is the highest

funding request in history for the food assistance programs.

The request also adheres to the Bipartisan Budget Agreement, the
Budget Summit, if you will, which calls for deficit reductions
thatLexceed the requirements of the Balanced Budget and Emergency
Deficit Cortrol Reaffirmation Act of 1987. We plan to live up to

our side of this agreement.
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on a national scale, the scope of FNS' Prugrams is
impressive and varied in nature. FNS administers thirteen food
assistance programs primarily for persons with low incomes.
Total funding for FNS has increased by $10 billion during the
1980s. Special target groups include nutritionaliy-necdy women,
infants, and children, Native americans, the elderly, and schcol-
age children. The largest of the food assistance programs {s ~ .

Food Stamp Program.

Food Stamp Program

Started in 1961 as a pilot project in seven States, the Food
Stamp Program is expected to expend over $12 billion in Fiscal
Year 1988 and to provide assistance during the course of that
year to about 18.8 million persons per month. It is our first
line of defense against hunger. Any household, regardless of
ethnic or racial origin, that meets the following income and
asset ref sirements as well as nonfinancial criteria iz eligible
for food stamps:

o Gross Income at or below 130 percent of the poverty level
(514,570 a year for a family of four).

© Net Income, after deductions, at or below 100 percent of
poverty (511,200 a year for a family of four).

o Asset Limits, exclusive of ho.e, of $2,000, or $3,000 if
the hoasehold contains an elderly person.

As you can see, unlike most welfare programs, where ecligibility
depends on age, disability, or other factors, food stamps are

available to many low-income families.
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Food stamp benefit amounts are based on household siza,
income, and assets; benefits received vary accordingly. Our mo.t
current data (1985) show that almost 11 percent of all
households participating in the Food Stamp Program are Hispanic.
Moreover, low-income Hispanics appear to make the same use cf the
Food Stamp Program as other low-income groups. Although poverty
status is not synonymous with food stamp eligibility, in 1985
households of Spanish origin comprised 11 percent of all poor
households and were 14 percent of the povr households who

reported food stamp receipt.

In order to assist non-English speaking participants, the
Food Stamp Program regulations contain bi.ingual requirements
which are designed to ascist participarcs with application
and certification materials and to provide program information.
For example, the regulations require:

© That the State agency will provide bilingual program
information and certification mrterials in the appropriate
language when an appropriate numbex of non-English speaking
houscholds are located in a project area.

o That the State agency will provide both certification
materials in the appropriate language(s) and bilingual staff
or interpreters for each individual certification office in
areas where larger numbers of low-income, non-English
speaking households are found.

o That in project areas with a scasonal influx of non~English-
speaking households, the State agency will provide bilingual
materials and staff or interpreters during the influx in
areas where numbers of single language minority 1o -income
households are met or exceeded.
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o That the State agency must insure that certification offices
pr¢ride sufficient bilingual staff or interpreters for the
R timely processing of non-English-speaking applicants.

=y

s ¢ That bilingual notices may contain a telephone number to .
call for more information. ¥

N o That pr. 3 releases notifying ineligible households that

' benefits can be restored' and .advising households to contact

N " the local food stamp office for more information will be

translated in bilingual project areas. Upon reguest, FNS ’ ;
will provide Spanish posters and fliers.

o That any responsible member of a household may designate an P
authorized representative to act on behalf of the household
in applying for -benefits, obtaining the food stamps, and
using the food stamps.

As a result of these Federal requirements, several States i
provide the Food Stamp Program application in Spanish (e.g.,
Texas, New Mexico, Floriaa, New York, California, Arizona,

Nevada, Illinois). 4

The Food Stamp Program is also available to Spanish-speaking
retailers who wish to accept food stamps in their food stores,
and many prcgram materials for use by retailers are available in
Spanish. (These are the "Official Focd List" and "We accept éood
Stamps" posters and decals, which are displayed in retail food
N stores and directed toward recipients, and the "Food Stamp
Program Guide for Retailers" and "Tips for Cashiers", which are

educational materials for retailers and store employees.)

In certain cases, al.ens are eligible to receive focd

stamps. For example, if a person is a resident of the U.S. and

e e w7
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an alien legally admitted for permanent residence as an zimmigrant
as defined in sections 101(a) (15} and 101(a) (20} of the
Immigration and Nationality Act, he or she may receiwve food
stamps. Aliens, however, represent a small proportion of the

total food stamp caseload and recipients,

These program efforts assist Hispanics and other etlinic
groups to access the Food Stamp Program more readily and more
easily. I wculé also like to make clear that, the Food Stamp
Program is accessible to people who need 1t. By law, State
agencies must process all applications within 30 days of the date
they. are filed. Aan application does not have to be cermpletely
filled out to be considered filed. 1In fact, we consider an
application filed as long as it contains the applicant’s name and
address and is signed by a responsible household member or an
authorized representative. To meet this s;andard, State agencies
must ensure that eligible households can obtain food stamps by
the 30th day after filing. Some households are Geemed in need of
even faster service and must be given the opportunity to obtain
food stamps by the fifth calendar day after an application is
filed. Expedited service must be provided to households with
less than $150 in monthly gross income and less than $100 in
liquid resources, destitute migrant households with less than

$100 in liquié resources, homeless househclds and households
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whose combined monthly gross income and liquid resources is less

than their rent or mortgage plus utilities. A household does nct

<%

need a fixed address to receive focd stanps.

Child Nutrition Programs ’ ;

In general, funding for Hispanics in the Child Nutrition R
Programs has increased steadily sincé Fiscal Year 1980, from 18.6
pexcent to 21.3 percent of all funding in these programs. 1In
particular, funding to Hispanics in the National Schcol Lunch
Program and the School Breakfast Program has increaseé from $646
million in FY 1980 to $884 million in FY 1987. It is significant
to note that, although Hispanics comprise apprcximately 8 percent
of all children in schools with these two programs, they receive
approximately 21 percent of all Federal funding in these

programs.

The WIC program (the Special Supplemental Food Program for
Womea, Infants, and Children) currently serves approximately 3.5
million pregnant and post-partum wcmen, and children up to age
five determined by a health professional to be at nutritional
risk. In order to be eligible to receive benefits, the househkold
must meet certain income eligibility requirements. In Fiscal

Year 1988, we wil! spend approximately $1.8 billi~n on WIC, more

than twice the 198C level which reflects a participation increase

of over 50 percent since 1981.
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In the WIC Program, overall Hispanic participation has grown
from 18.9 percent in Fiscal Year 1980 to 20.{ percent in Fiscal
Year 1986 of all participation. This constitutes a fairly large
percentage of tot:1 WIC participation indicating good utilization

of the WIC Program by Hispanics.

A related, though smaller program, is the Commodity
Supplemental Food Program (CSFP). It serves low-income'pregnant,
breastfeeding, and post-partum women, infants, children up. to the
age of 6, and elderly participants. CSFP provides USDA donated
commodities which are high in these nutrients usually lackaing in
the diets of the target populations. In CSFP, overall Hispanic
participation has grown substantially, from 8.3 pexcent of
average (both elderly and women, infants, and child:en) CSFP
participation in Fiscal Year 1982 to 11.6 percent in Fiscal —-ar
1986. Applying the average Hispanic participation figures to
total CSFP expenditures reveals that, on average, about $5.5

million were spent on Hispanics in Fiscal Year 1986.

Otker USDA programs available to needy persons include the
Child Care Food Program, the Summer Food Service Program, the
Special Milk Program, and the Nutrition Program for the Elderly.
While we have no data on these programs as to the amount of
Hispanic participation, the programs are, of course, available to

eligible Hispanics.
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For .all the programs I have discussed, there are many

C publications printed in Spanish to provide information to ;
. Bispanic participants. I have brought with me a display of scme
of the various publications provided by FNS to Spanish speaking

participants so that you.can get an idea of their availability.

Summagx

In-conclusion, Mr. Chairman, the Federal government is doing

PR TRIIE

more now than ever before to meet the food assistance neads of
low-income Americans including Hispanics. Morzover, special
efforts are -being made to assure that Hispanics have full access

.2,
to food assistance programs. B

- >

Mr. Chairman, tnat concludes my testimony. I will be happy

to answer any questions.
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ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS FOR JOHN W. BODE '
;o SUBMITTED BY HON. MICKEY LELAND

: ‘Congressman Lelan™: Research conducted by the General

L, Accounting Office ‘indicates three-U.S. Department of Agriculture E
: studies- in progress which will provide national information on :
Hispanic participation. which programs are examined, when were .
these studies initiated, -and when will formal research documents :
be available. -

i Mr.-Bode: As part of its research-agenda, the Food and
Nutrition.Service routinely conducts a variety of studies to
provide detailed information on the programs it administers. The
particular studies referenced by the-General Accounting Office

: provide.such information for the National School Lunch and School i
3 Breakfast Progrrms, the Summer Food Service Program, and the N
Child. care Food- Program. <

RIS

We. recently released the first of these reports, Characteristics
i e Nati chool In Schoo eakfast Pr
- i . It is based on data collected as part of the
National Evaluation of School Nutrition Prograus.

The-other two studies--of the Summer Food Sexrvice Program and the
Child Care Food Program--are still in progress. We expect that
final reports will be available within the next few months.
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COngressman Leland: ‘According to the recent’ GAO report,
USDA-program officials cite the lack of centrally compiled data

.about -Hispanic participation, the absence.of a.demand for racial

or ethnic data, and the burden on local agencies for compiling
ethnic data as_the reasons for the  lack of Hispanic participation
information. How difficult would it be to expand existing-data

/collection systems to. include specific information on Hispanics?

‘Bode; Food and Nutrition Service (FNS) reporting
requirements are tailored to.specific. program needs and-attempt
to be sensitive to- the btirden on. local/state administrators and

ﬂprogram participants. In.general, our efforts. .provide good
coverage -for- the largest. prograns administered by FNS.

Information on ‘Hispanics- is collected either regularly or
periodically as .part.of program evaluations for 8 of the 13 food
assistance programs administered by FNS. These prograams (Food
Stamps; National School ‘ILunch; Special Supplemental Food- Program
for Women, Infants, 'and’ children; School Breakfast Program;

‘Commodity. Supplemental ‘Food Program, Needy 'Family Program on

Indian Reservations and Trust Territories; Summer Food Service;
and- child-care Food) accounted.for over 89 percent of the
benefits provided by .FNS in Fiscal Year 1987. Such information
is not collected for the Nu: rition Assistance Program--which is
administered as a block grant in the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rigo——it is assumed to serve exclusively persons of Hispanic
origin.

The remaining programs (Special Milk Program; Nutrition Program
for the Elderiy, Comnodity Distribution to.Charities, and
Temporary Emergency Food Assistance) provide benefits, in special
settings (food pantries, soup_ kitchens,_ congregate feeding sites)
that lack mechanisms to routinely count participants, let alone
collect information on their detailed characteristics. Bxpanding
data collection on participants to these programs would require
Significant modification to current operating procedures.

Since, in tctal, these programs account for less than 7 percent
of the total benefits spent in programs:administered by FNS, it
does-not seem cost effective to extend-Gata collection on
participants to these programs.




,congressman Yeland: .In your survey to determine
characteristics ‘of food stamp households, how-do you assure a
representative sample of Hispanic participation?

Mr. Bode: Our study of food stamp characteristics relies
exclusively on the sample taken for the Food Stamp Quality
Control system. Each State selects' a random sample of its
caseload every year. The Food and Nutrition Service has provided
extensive guidance -and.-materials- to States and approves each
‘State’s.sampling plan to ensure that the quality control samples.
are selected: in accordance with sound statistical principles.

Our regional offices routinely monitor State implementation of
their approved sampling plans. Rigorous application-of these
principles-ensures the-representativeness of the sample. As a
result, cases with Hispanic members.are chosen in proportion to

their total number in each State.

Congressman Leland: What plans does. the Department have for
collecting,»ana1yzing, and reporting information as to the
reasons for non-utilization of major food assistance programs
among Hispanics? )

Mr. Bode: The Food and Nutrition Service continues to
monitor participation trends in the major food assistance
programs: Our efforts to date have taken a broad view reflecting
our interest in-participation among all <ligibles, not just those
of Hispanic origin. We plan to continue those efforts.

are significantly less likely to participate in these programs
than other low-income Americans. In fact, quite the opposite is
true. For example, the participation rate in the Food Stamp
Program among eligible Hispanics (61 percent) is about the same
as the overall rate (63 percent). ‘

It is important to note that there is no evidence that Hispanics

congressmen Leland: What steps has the Department initiated
to encourage greater food assistance program participation among
Hispanics? .

Mr. Bode: The Department has taken numerous steps to make
our programs accessible to Hispanics (and other minorities). In
my testimony, for example, I describe some of the various
requirements for bilingual materials, applications, staff, and
interpreters contained in Food Stamp Program regulations. If our
civil Rights office determines that there is a language bharrier
that hinders participation in a local office, we take necessary
actions to ensure that the State and local offices eliminate
that barrier. We believe this approach is effective since the
participation rate among eligible Hispanics (61 percent) is about
the same as the participation rate among all eligibles (63
percent).
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF MANNING FEINLEIB, M.D., DR.P.H., DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
FOR HEALTH StATIsTICS, CENTERS FOR Disease CoNTrRoL, Pusric HEALTH
-SERVICE, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

© MR. CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE:

I apprééiate’the,opporiunity to-appear before you today to
- ‘discusa the health of hispnpici. I will be presénting some of
o " the data on Hispanics collected by the National Center for
Health Statistics (NCHS), discussing the adequacy of such data,
and. describing several initiatives we have taken to allow us to
improve. our understanding of the health of the Hispanic d

community.

ﬂCHS, a‘part of the Centers for Disease Control, is the Nation's
principal health statistics agency, with broad responsibility
for moﬂitoring the health of the Nation. 'In carrying out this
responsibility, we make special efforfs to focus attention on
the health of special population groups, such as Hispanics. In
presenting some of our findings on Hispanic health and
nutrition, I will be drawing on several of our data systems,
including the National Health Interview Survey, the National
Health and Nutrition Examination Survey, the Hispanie Health and
Nutrition Examination Survey, and the National Vital Statistics
System. '

Overall, we have found thac the health and nutritional status of
Hispanics is relatively good. Despite our general impression
that Hispanics aie not significantly worse off than the general
population, there are some differences in health ‘4nd the use of
health care that distinguish Hispanics from non-Hispanics, as
well ag differences b?tveen.three primary subgroups of

Hispanics: Mexican Americans; the largest subgroup; P@erto
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: Ricans; and Cuban Americans. I will be referring to the non- 3
§) Hispanic wbite and non-Hispanic "j1ack popuiations simply as :

*“whites" éud "blacks" to afoid repetition, and I will be

s

R TE e ¢

summarizing findings rather than presenting detailed statistics.

o,

DEREETYLErn

) CHARAC STICS O PARIC
. i
Maternal and Child Health: Maternal and infant health '

statistics are among the most sensitive and universally
recognized indicators of yealth status. Approximately 400,000
babies were born to Hispanic mothers in 1985, accounting for
about 11 percent of all U.S. births. Fertility rates fsr
Hispanies are considerably higher than for either whites or
blacks, making Hispanics the fastest growing cthnic group in the
United States even without considering the effects of

immigration. .

Teenage childbearing is relatively common smong Hispanics, and
significant proportioné of births to Mexican Americans and
Puerto Ricans are to unmarried women. Mexican Americané and
Puerto Ricans are considerably less likely to obtain early

prenatal care than whites, and are very likely to receive late

or no care during the pregnancy.

; Despite disadvantages in terms of prenatal care, education,

teenage status, and marital status; Mexican Americans do not

¥ .
appear to differ significantly from whites in birth outcome.
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Low birth weight is about the gsame as among whites, and infant
mortality rates for Mexican Americans are not significantly
different from vhites. .There are no ready explanations for the
apparent\cbntradiction‘between the existence of these magernal
risk factors and these refatively p;sitive birth OUtcome;;
hypothes;s include maternal nutrition and ;eight gain, which
appears tou be favorable among Mexican Americans; and smoking,

where we have found that Mexican Americans are far less likely

to have smoked during pregnancy than whites.

In 1982-84, NCHS administered direct physical examinations of

approximately, 5,000 Hispanic children to obtain information on

their health, nutrition, and development. Among the findings:

. , !

. The prevalence of stunting (low height for age) and wasting
(low weight for height) observed for all three Hispanic
groups does not differ from that observed for whites and
blacks, providiné some reassurance that there is no

widespread problem of malnutrition in Hispanic children.

. Hispanic children may have inadequate intakes of
vitamin A. Our research has shown that diffg;encés in
i vitamin A levels are probably attributable more to poverty

and related environmental factors than to ethnicity.
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. Mexican American children were found to be more likely to

have impaired vision than white children, similar to black

children, but differences were not observed hetween blacki,
whites, and Mexican Americans in hearing tests. For both
i, L

vision and hearing, more impairments were observed among

" children 1iving in. poverty.

. On éhe average, Mexican American children have more decayed
and fewer filled teeth than white children. But, despite
the presence of more decay in Mexican American children, 57
percent were cavity-free at age 9, exceeding the goal of 40

percent set forth in the 1990 Health Objectives for the )
Nation. .

R . Immunization appears to be nearly universal for Mexican

L American children aged 4 to 11, despite some concerns that
immigration status may work against appropriate

immunization.

‘Mo, d Hea tus: In the aggregate, Hispanics do not
appear to differ dramatically from non-Hispanics in level of
illness and disability, with Puerto Ricans faring somewhat worse

L

and Cuban Americans gomewhat better than whites. When poverty

L)

status and age are taken into account, however, Bispaniés are
less likely to suffer from acute health conditions, less likely
to be injured, and less likely to be limited in activity due to

a chronic health condition than are whites. Although comparing

‘
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favorably to whites in these areas, Hispanics are more likely fo

assess their health &8 "falr or poor." However, cultural

differences in the perception of health status make it difficult

to .nterpret this finding.

A number of interesting observations can be made about the

health risk factors of Hispanics:

. Smoking behavior is different than non-Hispanics: about the
a;me proportion of males smoke as do non-Hispanic males,
but they tcnd to smoke fewer clgarettes. Females smoke
less frequently than do non-Hispanic females, and also tend
to smoke fewer clgarettes; however, data from the 0ffice on
Smoking and Health indicate that the rate of smokiag among
Hispanic females is increasing ra idly. As noted earlier,
Hispanics are far less likely to smoke during pregnancy

than non-Hispanics.

. Obesity appears to be a major health problem amons-Mex!can
American ;nd Puerto Rican women. Although ;e found that
Hispanic men are similar to non-Hispanics, we found that 30
percent of'Cuban American women and 40 percent of Mexican
American and Puerto Rican womcn wcre overHefzht, rates

similar te those observed in black women.




. Serum.cholesterol levels for Hispanics tend to be lover
than for whites and blacks. The prevalence of those with
high risk serum cholesterol levels {s 15 percent among
Mexican American, Cuban American, and Puerto Rican men, and
ranges from 11 percent among Cuban women to 18 perc:ht

axmong Puerto Rican women. .

Use of Medical Care and Preventive Services: The clearest

difference between Hispanics and non-Hispanics is in the uge of
medical care and preventive services. chardle;s of age or
poverty status, Hispanics are less likely to see a physician or
dentist, or be hospitalized, than are whites. Problexs relating
to hearing, vision, and dental health in children noted earlier
occured more frequently in‘children who had not received medical
care reccntly..Hispanics are also less likely to have received
routine preventive care. F;r example, they are less likely to
have breast exsms or pap smears, or have their blood pressure
checked. Again, we find differences between Hispanic subgroups,
with Cuban Americans and Puerto Ricans tending to use h;alth

"services with greater frequency than Mexican Americans.

These findings present clear challenges for health care
providers and educators, and further challenges iér us in
identifying barriers to care. Some of our survey data indicate
that differences in health insurance coverage may partially

account for lower use of health services. Mexican Amer’z.zs are
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about three times more likely than whites to have no coverage
from ei;her private insurance or Medicaid, and -‘Puerto Ricans are
about twice as likely to be uninsured - worse than comparable
figures for blacks. Cuban Americans have somevhat better

2
coverage than black:, but still lag behind whites.

Mortality: The leading causes of death among Hispanics are
‘heart disease, cancer, accidents, stroke, and humicide. Since
the Hispanic population is comparatively young, chronic diseases
- such as heart disease and cancer - account for an appreciably
smaller proportion of deaths than in the non-Hispanic
copulation. We can anticipate that these causes will increase
in proportion as we see the Hispanic population age. Even
taking into account the younger average age of the Hispanic
population, homicide pla§s'a far greater role as a leading cause
of death among Hispanics than whites. While this cause ranked
15th for whites, it was the 5th leading cause of death among
Hispanics, similar to the ranking for blacks.
Summary: The complexity of factors influencing Hispanic health
(income and poverty, culture, nutritional habits, health
insurance cover;ge) make summation of the health of Hispanics
difficult. Major differences between subgroups 6¥ Hispanics
further complicate our work. With data we now have available,

we can drav some general conclusions:
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. Cuban ‘Americans resemble white non-Hispanics more closely
than they resemble other Hispanics in terms of health and
use of medical care;

. Evidence for Mexican Americans and Puerto Ricans is "more
mixed, with many characteristics worse than white non-
Hispanics but better than black non-Hispanies. Routine
access to medical care and use of preventive health
techniques appear to be key problens for these groups,
perhaps explained by comparatively low levels of insurance

coverage. N

ACCO SHMENTS ISSUES IN OVING HISPANIC A

EmARAN 3
A

Today's hearing has provided us an opportunity to review our
accomplishments in improving data on Hispanic health over the
last several years. I am encouraged that real strides have been
i made in filling the gaps in our knowledge about the health of
Hispanics, and toward institutionalizing the collection of data

on Hispanics. Some examples:

. NCHS now includes mortality data on Hispanies in its annual .
publication Vital Statistics of the United States, and on

data tapes that are made available to the pt;l;lic. NCHS has

made data or births to ﬁisp‘a;lic‘s available in this manner,
. both in Vital Statistics of the United States and in the
annual publication Births of Hispanic Parentage.
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The National Health Interview Survey (NHIS), NCHS®' largest
population survey, routinely collects a wide range of
information on the health status, illness, and disability
of Hispanics, 2s well as their use of health services.

This data is availabll in both published and electré;ic
form. Due to the size of the NHIS saéfle, analysis of
subgroups of Hispanics is possible, as was done in the NCHS
report Health Indicators fo spanic, Blac

Americans. A recent RCHS report, Health-Promotion and
Disease Prevention, provides detail on kispanic health

habits and risk factors.

NCHS has released 10 public use data tapes from the
Hispanic Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (HHANES),
the first large scale health survey of Hispanics. These
data tapes, along with published articles, presentations,
and reports, are forming an extensive body of knowledge on
Hispanic health ;;d nutrition status, patterns of growth
and development, and the need for trcatment and care. Data
was collected through interviews, physical.examinations,
and laboratory tests on approximately 12,000 Hispanies,
allowing separate analysis of Mexican Americans, Puerto

-

Ricans, and Cuban Americans.

To promote research based on HHANES data tapes by Hispanic
researchers, we have provided funding to the Coalition of

Hispaﬁic Social Services and Mental Health Organizations to
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support investigator-initiated proposals for analysis of
HHANES data. HCHS has also sponsored a series.of technical
seminars. to assist researchers in making use of the HHANES

data bases.

4
2

We are also making progress on further initiatives to improve

data on Hispanics:

NCHS is working closely with the States toward.improved
coverage of Hispanics in the Nation's vital statistics

system, where basic data on dbirth and death are obtained.

NCHS- has recommended that each State include an explicit
Hispanic item on vital registration documents as part of a
revision scheduled t; be implemented by January 1989. We
have seeﬂ encouraging signs that most States are .adopting
this recommendation. As reporting becomes more complete,
apd routine population data become available, major
deficiencies in our understanding of Hispanic mortality can

be eliminated.

We are making final preparations for the third National
Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES III), which
will update data on Mexican Americans obtaiﬁéd as part of
the special siudy of Hispanics. NHANES III will allow for
further investigation of the health and nutrition status of
Mexican Americans as well as providing data to monitor

changes over time.
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ihe NatignaIAngter for Health Services Research and Health

i Care Technology -Assessment is currently conducting the 1987
National Medical Expenditiure Survey (NMES). This survey

- will provide up-to-date national estimates of the use of,

»

and ‘expenditures for, health care services and health "g

insurance coverage, as well as data on.sources of payment, ;
employment, income and asseés, and demographic information.
NMES will cover both the-civilian non-institutionalized
) population and the population vsing nursing homes and
facilities for the mentally retarded, and will provide
2y 'specific information ;n certain minorities. Hispanics will .%
be oversampled, and an estimated 4,700 Hispaniecs will be ‘
included in the survey. Data from NMES can be used to.
exemine .how Mexican Americans, Puerto Ricans, and Cuban i
Americans use health services and study the factors tht may -
be responsible for marked differences in utiIization

patterns by these groups.

Several problems remain that prevent a more comprehensi&e

% picture of the health of Hispanics. First, altﬂough their
numbers are growing, Hispanics still represent a relatively

small percentagé of the national population, necessitating :
costly efforts to oversample Hispanics in populaggon surveys in

order to provide adequate data on subgroups of Hispanics. Such

oversampling is not always possible., For example, we have

recently determined that it will not be possible to produce
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separate estim:tes on the Puerto Rican population as part of
NHANES.III. The.records systems of medical facilities are our
primagy'sourde~of data on.use-of health care; unlike race,
ethnicity is frequently not recorded by medical éractitioners,
making it difficult or impossible to identify Hispanics éirough
thesé records; ‘Finally; apnﬁal.population figures for the
Hispanic ‘population by age, race, anc sex for each State are not
cur;enély‘available, and are needed to provide estimates of the

risk of mortality by cause-of death.

Although dat2 on Hispanics are not yet as comprehensive as we
would like, we feel that a great deal more is known about
Hispanic health than is commonly recognized. The growing number
of NCHS publicatiénswand data tapes available to researchers
reflect encour;éing developments. Ve are proud of the progress
we have made, and remain committed to making further
improvements in our ability to monitor the health of Hispanics.

I WOULD BE HAPPY TO RESPOND TO ANY QUESTIONS.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF FERNANDO_S. MENDOZA, M.D., AssiSTANT PROFESSOR OF

PEDIATRICS, STANFORD UNIVERSITY SCHOSL OF MEDICINE

The Health and. Nutritional status of ﬂexic;n Anerican Children

Chairman Leland ahd Committee Members; I would like to thank
you for allowing:-me to testify to your Committee on the health
and nutritional status of Mexican-American children. My
colleagues and I“have been very interested in this subject, and
for the last three years,;ave been examining data from the
Naticnal Health.and Nutrition Examination Surveys; the NHANES I
and II, and more recently the Hispanic Health and Rutrition
Examination Survey (HHANES). Our work has been supported by a
grant from the Bureau of Maternal and child Health and Resource
Development. The major goal of our project is to develop a
better understanding of the health and nutritional status of
Hispanic children and to examine factors which have-a major
impact on it. )

When we first began our work in.this area in 1985, there
were very few large scale studies published that examined the
health and nutritional status of Hispanic children in the United
States. oOnly the Ten State Survey in 1968 had attempted to
exanmine large numbers of Hispanic children, and these were
primarily Mexican-Americans in Texas and California, and Mainland

Puerto Ricans from New York City. However, this survey examined

86-935 ~ 88 - 5
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only Hispanics that were identified as Spanish-surname and made
assumptions about their ethnic identity based upon geographic
region. fThose living in Texas and California were classified as
Mexican-American and those living in New York City were
classified as Puerto Rican. No attempt was made in the survey to
have subjects self-identify themselves as to their ethnic group.
Therefore, if their name was not on a list identifying Spanish
surnanes, they were not counted as Hispanic but rather as white.
This problem of identification, along with the small sample of
Hispanics, the limitation of sampling to primarily the poor, and
the sampling of only a few states limited our ability to
generalize the :Qrvey's finding to the U.S. Hispanic population.
Furthermore, in addition to the noted survey problems, the Ten
State Survey failed to provide information about the cultural
differences among Hispanics, particularly about whether the
subjects or their families were acculturated into the U.S.
mainstream. This, I believe, is an important factor in
understanding health and nutritional behaviors of Hispanics. For
Mexican-Americans this was of particular importance since
cultural differences existed not only frum one geographic area to
another but also from one generation to another. Some Mexican-
American families had lived in the United States for several
generations while others had recently immigrated.

Yet, given the limitations of the Ten State Survey, it
confirmed the findings of other smaller studies done on Mexican-
American children in the late sixties and early seventies. All

of these studies demonstrated that Mexican-American children
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showed growth retardation, particularly in height, and also had
evidence of nutrient deficiencies, particularly in iron and
vitamin A. However, these smaller studies were usually done in
sites specifically for the very poor and were of small sample

size, therefore again limiting our ability co understand the actual
nutritional and health st~tus of the Mexican-American population
as a whole. Similar types of problems were present for studies
of Puerto Rican and other Hispanic children. The studies
addressing health status and health care access were even more
sparse, and likewise limited in their scope. 1In fact,
information on death rates for Hispanic children were then, and
are still now, relatively nonexistent.

The federal health and nutrition surveys during the sixties
and most of the seventies did not specifically identify Hispanics
as a separate group from whites. In federal publications from
the Health Examination Surveys of the 1960's and the National
Health and Nutritional Examination Surveys I and II in the
1970's, mention of white and black differences in health and
nutritional status are found, but nothing is said about
Hispanics. Although it is possible to identify Hispanics in
NHANES I and II, including Hispanic subgroups in NHANES II, the
sample sizes available for analysis were very small and,
therefore, reliability of the data is a problemn.

However, during the latter part of the 1970's federal
surveys began to include ethnic self-description for Hispanic
subjects, thereby allowing not only for better identification of

the Hispanic subject but also the possibility to identify
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S cultural variability with groups. For example, & Mexican- N

American could identify him or herself as Mexican-American, !

TR A A 7 tte h e > era

5 Chicano, Mexican, Mexicano, or Hispano. These self-descriptions
3

for Mexican-Americans provide insight into how the individual

pETERT

views him or herself in the process of acculturation into the

American mainstream and, as such, are very important in :

S rpe w e
Z

evaluating health and nutritional behaviors. Similar types of

L =

assessments are also important for Puerto Rican and Cuban-

! Anerican subjects. ‘

The first large scale federal health survey to utilize these .

E-rirariery

descriptions was the National Health Interview Survey (NHIS). ;
This national survey provided health status data on Hispanics
based on information gathered by home interviews. This resulted
) in the first federal publication to be directed specifically
toward the health status of Hispanics. This publication was
. entitled "Health Indicators for Hispanic, Black, and White
Americans" (Vital & Health Statistics, U.S. Department of Health .
and Human Services, Public Health Service, National Centexr for ‘
Health Statistics, Series 10, No. 148), and it was the primary '
work of Trevino and Moss from the National Center for Health
Statistics. This study demonstrated not only differences between }

whites, blacks, and Hispanics in areas of health indicators and

health care utilization but also found significant intra-Hispanic
differences among Mexican-American, Mainland Puerto R.can and
Cuban-American children. This re-emphasized the importance of
intra~Hispanic differences. The limitation of this study,

however, was that the information from the NHIS was based on the
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subject's knowledge of his or her own health status. Therefore,
problems of recall and health care access lead to problems of
bias. Moreover, the NHIS was not translated into Spanish, but
relied instead upon interviewer and family members to translate
questionnaire itens.

Therefore, because of this persistent lack of information
about Hispanics at the beginnihg of this decade, persons
concerned about the health and nutritional status of the U.S.
Hispanic population began to work with the National Center for
Health Statistics to develop a health and nutrition survey which
would overcome the previous methodologic problems. This survey
would provide a large sample size, self-descriptors for subjects,
a socioeconomically diverse sample, phys.cal and biochemical data
which was linked with historical information, and questionnaires
which were valid and reliable for the Spanish-speaking subjects
and took into account the intra-Hispanic cultural variability of
language. This effort produced the Hispanic Health and Nutrition
Examination Survey which examined the health and nutritional
status of Mexican-Americans in the five southwestern states,
Mainland Puerto Ricans in the New york City area, and Cuban-
Americans in Dade county. The survey attempted to provide
baseline nutritional information and to target specific health
care problems to determine their prevalence. In addition to
identifying health and nutritional problems, the survey attempted
to assess whether appropriate access to health and nutritional

programs was occurring in order to meet those needs. The survey
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was conductéd from 1982 to 1984. Over the past year NCHS has

begun to release data tapss to the public for analysis.

' our ragearch group has begun to analyze these data,
specifically with regard to the health and nutritional status of
Hispanic children. The initial work has focused primarily on
the Mexican-2merican sample from the southwest, and also inclugdead
an exanmination of NHANES I and II. However, with continued
support from the Bureau of Maternal child Health and Resource
Development, we plan to also examine the health and nutritional
status of Mainland Puerto Rican and Cuban-American children. The
former group will be compared to Puerto Rican children who live
in Puerto Rico. This study will be done in collaboration with
the. University of Puerto Rico.

currengly, our findings have shown that Mexican-American
children identified in NHANES I ang IX, when compared to white
and black children, tend to be stunted in height but have noxmal
weight (Figure 1). However, when socioeconomic status is taken
into account (Figure 2), Mexican-American children less than 12
years do not differ in height from white children. For all
children, white, black, and Hispanic, socloeconomic status has a
significant effect on growth retardation, particularly in
stature. children who lived in poverty were on the avarage
smaller than their same ethnic group who lived above poverty.
This finding has also been documented by Jones et al., who found
lower mean values of growth for both black and white children who
live in poverty (DY Jones et al. "Influences in child Growth

Associated with Poverty in the 1970's: an Examination of HANESI
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and HANESIX, Cross=~sectional US National Surveys," Am J of Clin

Nutr 1985;42:714~724). our findings for the Mexican-American

.- portion of the H-HANES also confirms this. In addition, for
Mexican~Anmericans the greatest degree of stunting gseems to occur

among children 12-18 years of age. This finding has been present

in NHANES X and IX, as well as HHANES. This suggests that the

Mexican~Anerican adolescent may be particularly at risk for

; gro&th retardation. Yet, the data also suggest that for Mexican-

Anerican ckildren there has been a secular trend of increased

height. #hen the Mexican-American children from HHANES are

conmpared to children from the Ten State Survey done in 1968, the

Mexican-arerican children in HHANES are two to three centimeters

taller (Figure 3). This nay imply that eitl. £ Mexican-Anerican
children are having less growth retardation or that our

acsessmant. of the growth status of Mexican-Americans is nore

accurate in HHANES. This improvement in height was also noted by

Jones et al., in their assessment of growth pattern of white and

black children in the United states, even those in poverty. The
presunption is that these improvements in growth among black and
white children are a result of health and nutritional prograns
geared to the poor. This may, likewise, be the case for Mexican-
. American children.

Added evidernce for this improvement is found in the level of
iron deficiency among Mexican-American children. Data £from the
HHANES has shown that less than five percent of Mexican-American

children sampled have iron deficiency anemia. This is

significantly lower than previously reported rates. However, the
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ratez for adolescents still remain high. Likewise, preliminaxy
analysis of dietary intakes suggest that children less than five
years have the most complete diets among Mexican-American
children while Mexican-American adolescents have the worse. We .
are currently investigating whether this is a result of access to
nutritional prograns.

<n the area of health status, data from the HMANES has shown -
that Mexican-Anerican children have about the same prevalence of
chronic medical conditions as U.S. children in general. This
Prevalence of chronic medical conditions.is not modified by
poverty. However, when one exanines the perceived health of
Mexican-American children as rated by their mother and
thenselves, a significantly greater proportion believe that they
2re in poor healtn than that identified by a physician. This
perception of being in poor health among Mexican American mothers
and their children was significantly affected by being in poverty
and being tess acculturated. Those rothers who lived in poverty
rated 20 percent of their children in poor health as compared to
only 10 percent for those above poverty. Those mothers whe only
spoke Spanish rated 25 percent of their children in poor health
while those who spoke primarily English rated only seven percent
in poor health. This same picture was seen among Mexican-
American adolescents. In fact, for Mexican-Anmericans who spoke
prinar{ly Spanish, 35 percent of them consider themselves to be
in poor health. The above should be compared to the physician's
assessnent, which rated only one percent of Mexican-American

children in poor health.
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Clearly, differences in perceived health exist between the
physician and the-Mexican-American family. But, in addition, it
is also clear that poverty and culture have a major impact on

Mexican-American mothers and children, an impact that may not

v

necessarily be assessable-by-our current medical or nutritional
assessments. The state of hunger, for example, may not be
reiigbiy measured if we are expecting to assess it only by
changes in growth or biochemical parameters. children may be
hungry without changes in their variables. The hungry chilg,
however, may do less well in school or physical activity,
v measures that are our current surveys do not assess. The greater
prevalence of poor health perception among mothers that live .in
poverty and are less acculturated may result from integration of
physical and mental health, the latter being influenced not only
by the lack of resources in impoverished environments but also by
the emotional stresses of attempting tc survive in these
enviromments. For those individuals who also have a different
culture from the majority, the process of acculturation, or lack
of acculturation, may likewise color the individual's overall
sense of well being. For children going through physical,
psychological, and social development these factors, particularly
that of poverty, would seem to have a very global effect. An
effect that may not be fully measured by static measures such as
height, weight and biochemical values. It would seem that if we
are interested in the effects of poverty on children we will need
to assess it in much more dynamic terms. Assessments need to

focus on measures of function, measures that will give us an
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" indication of whether children'in‘poverty have an cpportunity to
become successful and useful‘members of our society.
Two clear outcome measures of importance would seem to be
developmental attainment or school performance and physical
These measures for Hispanic children will be vital to
have, for without them.we will be able to go only half way in ouxr
understanding of the effects of poverty and culture on children.
I would, therefore, make the following recommendations to
the Committee with respect to the need for data to target and

increase participation of Hispanics in public assistance

It is vital that we ascertain accurate mortality data
for Hispanics. This important information continues to
be nissing, and without it we will not know of what
Hispanics are dying of in this country.

National surveys need to include Hispanics and be able
to identify the three major Hispanic groups: Mexican-
Americans, Mainland Puerto Ricans, and Cuban-americans.
This means having adequate sample size for each of
these groups to make reliable estimates. In addition,
comparitive groups, whites and blacks, need to be
inclided in the same survey. The Hispanic groups need
to be assessed for their level of acculturation and be
provided noasures that will be reliable and valid for
them. For -children, outcomes that measure dynamic
processes such as cognitive development and physical

fitness need to be assessed in national surveys.
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?. >‘ 3. National surveys based on residency sampling should be

. supplemented by studies that can sample indaividuals and

4 fanmilies that are usually missed by such sampling

¥ techniques. This would include migrants, the homeless,
and adolescents-that live outside of established »é
residences. These are groups most likely to lack
resources and least likely to be surveyed and i
‘use public assistance programs.

4. Lastly, most surveys continue to provide us with only
cross-sectional information about Hispanics. We do not :
xnow what happens to the subjects over the long-term.

For children, this is vital and, therefore, national

C s e e

= surveys of Hispanic children need to develop a

. longitudinal component to allow for assessment of
? i ) changes. This is of utmost importance if we are
: concerned whether public assistance programs are ;
effective. "
. The National Center for Health Statistics is currently .
developing the NHANES III which will meet many of the data needs i
noted above. It is important for the well-being of Hispanics in é
: this country that NHANES III continue the work started by the :

Hispanic HANES.
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ADDI'}‘iONAL QUESTIONS FOR DR. FERNANDO MENDOZA, M.D.

SUBMITTED BY HON. MICKEY LELAND

1. WHAT ARE THE WEAKNESSES IN THE EXISTING DATA COLLECTION M
SYSTEM FOR GATHERING INFORMATION ON HISPANICS? #,

The major weaknesses in the current system of data

collection are: -(1) the lack of self-descriptors for Hispanics
s to allow for subgroup ;dentificatidn (i.e. Mexican-American,
Puerto Rican, cuban-American, etc.): (2) ‘the lack of adequate

R PR A

sample sizes of Hispanic subgroups to make reliable estimates;
o~ (3) the inadequate translation of health questionnaires; (4) the
o limitation of assessing the level of acculturation of the sampled
‘subject; (5) the lack of longitudinal data on Hispanic groups to

P T T S D TTCga

determine health changés over time; and (5) the absence of
mortality data.

vebss on

FOLLOW-UP: HOW DOES THIS HAMPER YOUR ABILITY TO CONDUCT
ADEQUATE AND COMPREHENSIVE RESEARCH ON HISPANICS?

AEY o n o

The above problems involving the data collection system have

v
s p N

S rar

made it difficult ‘even to conduct the most descriptive forms of

-research. Until the Hispanic Health and Nutritional Examination

dgeaey ©
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‘Survey (HHANES), there had not been any federal survey which had
attempted to examine tho health of Hispanics. Although the H

National Health Interview Survey was utilized to describe




139 ' -

:epofted~med;éhl“ccnditions‘among"Higpan@cs! it was only possible
to do so by'éoﬁhining ;averal'YQars of surveys. Even this
peﬁhodoiggy.ﬁaé ihadequate ‘ih some cases, resulting in unreliable
-estimates’ in ‘cértain-irstances: The-pH@NES also has: had problems.
of inadequate sample size, particp}arly for the Cuban-American
sanple.

Therefore, until fecéntly, the inability-of the federal
hedlth survey to idéntify and adequatély sample US Hispanics has
greatly hindéred research on Hispanié health issues. Although
8Some correction: of. that problem has océurired with the HHANES, the
problems-of under .sampling of Hispénics.is still common in most
‘health suiveys. Until the problems of adequate -identificatior
and samplihg are ovércome, the other methodological problems will
be secbndéi& issues.

2. HOW- WOULD YOU' PROPOSE THAT NATIONAL DATA COLLECTED

I -INCORPORATES A SYSTEM FOR MEASURING COGNITIVE DEVELOFMENT

t - .AND PHYSICAL FITNESS AMONG HISPANICS SURVEYED?

; ‘With regard  to cognitive development, I would recommend that
: ‘its éssessmgnt‘ﬁe obtained for schbo; age childrén, 5 years - 18

i years. The National ‘Health Examination Survey of ‘the 1960's

o utilized school test Scores to access the child's cognitive

development. The National Health and Nutritional Examination

Survey IiI (NHANES III) will have an assessment of cognitive
development of school childéen but this will be assessed by the

> survey team rather than the individual school. If the NHANES IIX
is successful in obtaining reifable data in this manner then this

could be the model for other surveys. If not, then access to
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school performance tests should.be sought to evaluate the
cognitive development of schodl ‘children. The types of tests
selected. for this.assessment should-be reliable and valid for the
Hispgnic:pppulgtidp‘anq sensitive to the group's soclocultural
differences.

With regard to physical fitness, measures to determine this

‘have been. varied but one frequently utilized is the exercise

ergometer. This requires'cooperation by the-subject and time to
perform the examinatiun., Both of* these requirements liu.'ts its
ability in a national survey; however, the need for such
Anformation on Hispanics is, I believe, of significant importance
to warrant -the extra cost it would\require. Our research team
has demonstrated an increased prevalence of obesity among
Mexican-American-children as young as ten years. This, with
-other investigatg}s' findings of increased rates of obesity,
cardiovascular-disease and diabetes amon Hispanic adults, would
suggest that obesity, and perhaps poor fitness, may be a major
public he;lth issue for the Hispanic community. The assessment
of fitness for children ten years and older would provide the
research community with the vital data needed to better
understand this lssue.
3. FROM YOUR WORK WITH LOW-INCOME HISPANIC FAMILIES, HOW CAN WE

BETTER TARGET FEDERAL FOOD AND NUTRITIONAL PROGRAMS TO REACH

THIS POPULATION TO PREVENT MALNUTRITION?

Currently, we are examining the use of federal fooa and’

nutrition programs by Hispanic tamilies through data available in
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HHANES. This work -is incomplets, ibut the 'analysis will determine
:uhgp\prppértioﬁ of ﬁoqr‘h;lbanléIAQafticipaéo»in federal food and
‘nq;riQioh‘brggrin-.and also what.proportion of those children
o ylﬁhapopr;gutritional intakes use these services.as well. From
. ij own:clinical experiences, the best way to target federal food
‘and nutritional programs is to provideé excellent outreach. The
use of public health nurses or clinic outreach workers seems:to.
‘be the most gftoétivo:vgy'to»foach those of greatest need (i.e.
béo; fqniiiil vithéut~phoh0l, transportation, televisions, or
other common resources). It will.be the children of families
Q;th the greatest need who will have the greatest risk for
malnutrition. Therefore, our efforts need to be targetad
particularly, at this. group.

Counting numbers and'determining percentagee with regard to
;parﬁicipation in federal food and nutritional program may provide
a false sense of security if. we are hot serving the children with
tﬁq greatest riek for malnutrition. Ahong Hispanics this would
‘be that part of the population which .is poor, unattached to
5, sgcialAgervices, and perhaps also fearful of governmental
intervention. The success of. outreach programs come from their
ability to connect into the social network of these needed
families. The success of this model has not only been
demonstrated in this country but other countries as well, I
. would recommend, tlerefore, that food and nutritional progranms

: have effective cutreach programs.

::’ . o 8§-935-88-6 145
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4. BASED; ON"YOUR'RESEARCH'AND. PRACTICE, WHAT ILLNESSES * 3
ASSCCIATED WITH POOR NUTRITION' ARE MOST PREVALENT AMONG .
* EISPANICS?" ATy LA ‘ i

The ‘most common illness: associated with- under nutrition

among~Rispanic.children would'be failure-to-thrive, the problem. - :

ot-hborvgrohthagithor in weight:or stature. Our:-work with.the »%

Mexican-American sample in: HHANES-seems to indicate that overall

this may:be less -of a problem than it was-a.decade: ago. However,

the. sampling of HHANES. eliminates.those.children who:do not have

entab}ishé§¢relidences and, therefore, a group' that may:be more -

likely to have this problem. clinically, my experience is that . ;

it is still' a:common-problem among poor Hispanic children,
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particilarly-those who-are- first generation.

other problems such as iron deficiency anemia and vitamin A

deficiency seem to have improved over the past decade as

determined by the HHANES. . )

The other  associated issue is that there are diseases which

can lead to poor'nutrition because of the resultant increase: in

metabolic demand, loss of calories, or induced. anorexia.

Childhood diseases-such as gastroenteritis, recurrent otitis

v

media, and.recurrent upper respiratory infection can place a

signifizant: strain on the child's nutritional status. Poor =

children may not cnly be at greater risk for these illnesses but

may also have 'less access to health care services to treat them K

appropriately and, thereby, ‘avoid the resultant nutriticnal

drain. with th- increased risk for malnutrition also comes the ’

increased risk for infection, chus creating a Jdownhill cycle.
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Among; Hispanics, and in-comparison to other-groups in the
country, uoxican-ano;icanl are one of the groups with the highest. i
rate of éornonl without: health inguranc;. Again, being uninsured J
. is most conm;n among the poor and most needy. ' %
5. HOW'CAN WE'BEST REVISE THE DATA COLLECTION ‘SYSTEM TO ACQUIRE

ACCURATE INFORMATION ON HISPANIC SUBGROUPS?

Al noted abovo, the most .mportant issues are lelf-
identification by the sample subject to datornine accurately
Hispanic subgroup affiiiation and adequate sample size to be able
to make reiiabie estimates of prevalences. L

Ona must recognize the heterogeneity of Hig;anics, both as
Hispanics aﬁd as individual Hispanic suggroupa. The
heterogeneity comes from the diversity of the gene pool. The
commonality-among.Hispanics, that which‘ggken the individual :
balong to one group or the other, comes from the cultural i
beliefé, behaviors, and customs. The field surveyor cannot
alvays deterpine Hisﬁanies just by observation. only the
indivi&ual subﬂect has the proper information to correctly
classifty him.of herself. ‘;

The other important methodological iséue is the rcliability
an& validity of survey measures for Hispanic populations.
Whether questlonnaires or standardized tests, these must be i
tested for their reliability and validity among Hispanic
populations.

- ERIC il e
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6. HOW CAN WE BEST IMPROVE THE NUTRITION INTAKE AMONG HISPANIC
CHILDREN? i

: “rhis aucﬁtlphp tirst needs to be answered by determining
n6§6'§ccuia£¢1¥ the nutritional intake of Hispanic children.
This will ‘be accomp;ished by the data rrom the HHANES. oOnce this
is done.then the.next step-will-be to develop recommendations
which will not only improve and correct any deficiencies
determined but do so in a culturally sensitive w;y‘which disrupts
cultural food patterns as mihiia}ly as possible. This, I
believe, will be the most éttécéive Qay to induce change. 1In the
'final\analyiil, the overall improvement of the nutritional status
of Hispanic children will probably come with their improved
socioeconomic status.
7. AS /A-RESEARCHER, HOW ;WILL PROPOSED BUDGET CUTS FOR DATA

COLLECTION AFFECT YOUR WORK?

If budget cuts result in cut backs on data collection on
Hispanics, 1t winl have a major impact on research in this area.
Although HHANES will be a valuable data set for many
investigators, it is really only a preliminary prevelence study
which was made to only scratch the surface of this research area.
NHANES III will have an adequate sample of Mexican-/mericans but
may not have an adequaté sample of Mainland Pusrto Picans because
of budget limitations. Such a limitation on NHANES IIX would
basically eliminate any significant data source on Mainland

\

¢

RIC 148

B Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

S

s e




o

P

-

'k

145

Puerto-Ricans perhaps until the next century. This would be

tragic since among Hispanic subgroups Mainland Puerto Ricans may

have tha worst health status.

Hispanice have-been an overlooked population with respect to

alrost all federal surveys and studies. To say that one study,

the HHANES, is enough to meet the health care needs of this

population would be, I belleve, a disservice to this group of

Anaricans.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF NYLDA GEMPLE, SAN FraNCISCO WIC DirECTOR

MY NAME IS NYLDA GEMPLE. I AM THE JAN FRANCISCO WIC PROGRAM
DIRECTOR. IT IS INDEED AN HONOR TO HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY OF COMING
BEFORE. YOU AND SHARING SOME OF MY EXPERIENCES AS A HEALTH
PRO;ESSIONAL AND AS 2 CONCERNED AMERICAN CITIZEN OF HISPANIC
DESCENT. FOR THE LAST TWENTY YEARS I HAVE BEEN EMPLOYED AS A
PROFESSIONAL IN THE AREA OF PUBLIC HEALTH, AND FOR THE LAST EIGHT
YEARS AS THE D1RECTOR OF THE WIC PROGRAM FOR THE CITY AND COUNTY
OF SAN FRANCISCO. BEFORE I DESCRIBE MY CONCERNS ABOUT HISPANIC
WOMEN AND THEIR ACCESS TO HEALTH CARE AND PUBLIC ASSISTANCE
PROGRAMS, I WOULD LIKE TO BRIEFLY DISCUSS THE DATA THAT WE HAVE
COLLECTED IN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND IN THE CITY AND COUNTY :
OF SAN FRANCISCO. THE TABLE (ATTACHMENT 1) THAT HAS BEEN PROVIDED
TO YOU REFLECTS PARTICIPATION IN THE CALIFORNIA WIC PROGRAM AS
OF OCTOBER 1987. OUR PARTICIPANTS TOTALLED 280,259. OF THAT
TOTAL, 157,362 PARTICIPANTS WERE HISPANICS. THAT AMOUNTS TO
56.1%, OVER HALF OF THE TOTAL PARTICIPATION. AS WE FURTHER BREAK !
DOWN THE TOTAL INTO THE CATEGORIES OF WOMEN, INFANTS AND
CHILDREN, THE HISPANIC PARTICIPATION BECOMES MORE EMPHASIZED.

THE TOTAL FOR WOMEN WAS 94,117, WITH HISPANICS AMOUNTING TO
56,011 OR (54.5%): INFANTS TOTALLED 108,557, WITH HISPANICS
ACCOUNTING FOR 65,128 OR (59.9%) AND CHILDREN TOTAL 77,585 WITH
HISPANICS AMOUNTING TO 36,223 OR (46.7%). i

IN SAN FRANCISCO FOR OCTOBER, 1987, OUR PROGRAM SERVED 8,228
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PARTICIPANTS. OF THOSE 3,594 WERE.HISPANICS AMOUNTING TO 43.6% OF

THE EARTICIPATION.. THE TABLE. AGAIN- REFLECTS THE HISPANIC
'PARTICIPATION BY CATEGORIES. I WOULD LIKE TO BRING TO THE
ATTENTION: OF THIS DISTINGUISHED, COMMITTEE THAT HISPANICS ARE N.T
A MAJORITY -OF WIC PARTICIPANTS IN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN
'FRANCISCO. OTHER CULTURAL/ETHNIC GROUPS, ESPECIALLY SOUTH-EAST
ASIANS, AND BLACKS AGGRESSIVELY SEEK ENROLLMENT IN THE WIC

PﬁOGRA} AND COMPETE FOR THE SAME SERVICES.

TODAY I WILL BE ADDRESSING THE IMPORTANCE OF PROPER
QQTRITION IN PREGNANCY, THE SHORTCOMINGS OF PROGRAMS SUCH AS AFDC
AND WHY THE WIC PROGRAM IS NEEDED TO IWSURE BOTH NUTRITIONAL
ADLQUACY AND HOPEFULLY, PRENATAL CARE FOR CALIFORNIA’S LOW INCOME

MOTHERS.

STUDIES HAVE REPEATEDLY SHOWN THAT INADEQUATE DIETS DURING
PREGNANCY RESULT IN INCREASED PREGNANCY COMPLICATIONS AND AN
INCREASE IN LOW BIRTH WEIGHT INFANTS. CONVERSELY, PROPER DIET CAN
AND DOES PLAY A ROLE IN ALLEVIATING PREGNANCY COMPLICATIONS,

INCLUDING LOW BIRTH WEIGHT BABIES.

THE NUTRITION NEEDS OF PREGNANT AND LACTATING WOMEN AND
INFANTS ARE GREATER THAN ANY OTHER GROUP DUE TO RAPID
PHYSIOLOGICAL GROWTH. DIETARY REQUIREMENTS ARE INCREASED FOR ALL
NUTRTENTS ABOVE THE NORMAL RECOMMENDED DIETARY REQUIREMENTS

(RDA). IT HAS BEEN WELL DOCUMENTED THAT A WOMAN’S NUTRITIUNAL

HEALTH BEFORE SHE BECOMES PREGNANT HAS A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON
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HER ;PREGNANCY OUTCOME. MANY OF -THE' FACTORS 'WHICH- AFFECT BIRTH.

"WEIGHT ARE RUTRITION RELATED. THESE INCLUDE HER -WEIGHT BEFORE

aﬁcox-mic PREGNANT, WHICE' TELLS US- IF SHE ‘WAS GETTING ADEQUATE
CALORIES, HOW MANY: TIMES.SHE’'S BEEN- PREGNANT, WHICh MAY DETERMINE
HER NUTRIENT -STORES, AS WELL AS WHETHER SHE HAS COMELICATING
MEDICAL CONDITIONS' SUCH AS DIABETES, HIGH BLOOD PRESSURE 'OR
SIMPLY DEPLETED NUTRIEN® RESERVES DUE TO A LIFELONG LACK OF

ADEQUATE FOOD.

LOW BIRTH WEIGHT BABIES ACCOUNT FOR OVER 70% OF THE INFANT
MORTALITY CASUALTIES. THOSE WHO SURVIVE OFTEN DO SO UNDER VERY
IMPAIRED CIRCUMSTANCES, ROBBED BEFGRE BIRTH OF EQUALTTY OF

OPPORTUNITY.

TEINK ABOUT HOW FEW LOW-INCOME WOMEN CONSUME A HIGH QUALITY
DIET BEFORE PREGNANCY AND YOU CAN BEGIN TO IMAGINE THE XINDS OF

PROBLEMS WE IN THE WIC PROGRAM ENCOUNTER.

THE SUPPLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAM FOR PREGNANT AND IACTATING’
WOMEN, INFANTS AND CHILDREN (WIC), A USDA PROGRAM WHICH GIVES
NUTRITION EDUCATION AND VOUCHERS TO BE USED IN THE PURCHASE OF
MILK, CHEESE, EGGS, ORANGE JUICE, CEREAL, BEANS AND PEANUT
BUTTER, OFTEN HAS A 3-8 WEEK DELAY REFORE GIVING BENEFITS, IF THE
SITES ARE UP TO CASELOAD. THESE FOODS CONTAIN THE NUTRIENTS MOST
OFTEM LACKING IN 'THE DIETS OF THESE WOMEN AND CHILDREN; CALORIES,

IRON, VITAMIN C, VITAMIN A AND PROTEIN. SEVERAL EVALUATIONS OF

THE WIC PROGRAM HAVE SHOWN THAT WOMEN WHO RECEIVE WIC WHILE
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" 'PREGNANT -HAVE -HIGHER BIRTH WEIGHT INFANTS. BECAUSE WIC REQUIRES-A

PHYSICAL EXAMINATION 'TO DEYERMINE IF THE CLIENT IS ANEMIC,

UNDERWEIGHT; OVERWEIGHT, OR OTHERWISE AT-RISK, -CLIENTS WHO -MIGHT

NOT OTHERWISE -RECEIVE HEALTH CARE ARE' PLACED IN A POSITION WHERE
PROBLEMS CAN: BE IDENTIFIED AND PROPER INTERVENTION APPLIED. THIS
"LEADS TO HIGHER THAN USUAL 'ENROLLMENT IN PRENATAL CARE; THEREBY
ELIMINATING ONE -OF THE GREATEST RISK _FACTORS IN THE éaquancx-:
LEADING TO HIGH INFANT MORTALITY. THE LONGER THE PARTICIPATION IN

THE WIC PRCGRAM, THE BETTER THE OUTCOME. UNFORTUNATELY UNDER THL

" CURRENT WIC FUNDING, ONLY 23% OF THE ELIGIBLE WOMEN, INFANTS AND

' "CHILDREN ARE ENROLLED:-DUE TO CASELOAD LIMITS.

WIC -BENEFITS ARE ALSO ASSOCIATED WITH GREATER LIKELIHOOD OF
CHILDREN HAVING A REGULAR PROVIDER OF MEDICAL CARE AND BEING
PROPERLY VACCINATED. THEY ARE ALSO ASSOCIATED WITH SOME EVIDENCE
OF BETTER COGNITIVE PERFORMANCE IN CHILDREN. BUT THE BITTER IRONY
‘IS THAT CURRENT ENROLLMENTS PRIORITIES FOCUS ON PRENATAL CLIENTS,
KEEPING <CHILDREN WHO WOULD OTHERWISE BE ELIGIRLE FROM BEING
.ENROLLED. THE LONG-TERM CONSEQUENCES OF DENYING PROPER FOOD TO
VARIOUS GENERATIONS OF AMERICANS IS YET TO BE SEEN. THE SHORT-
TERM CONSEQUENCES ARE WHAT WE DEAL WITH DAILY. THAT IS ANEMIA,
SHORTENED ATTENTION SPANS, FATIGUE AND LACK OF INTEREST IN
LEARNING. IT IS IMPOSSIBLE TO LEARN ON AN EMPTY STOMACH. UNDER
THESE CIRCUMSTANCES, EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IS A CRUEL JOKE, RATHER
THAN A REALITY FOR ALL TOO MANY.

IN SAN FRANCISCO WE HAVE ONLY SCRATCHED THE SURFACE OF
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ADDRESSING THE REAL NEEDS OF A COMMUNITY INHABITED BY -RECENT
IMMIGRANTS. FROM WAR-TORN CENTRAL AMERICA OR THE REFUGEE CAMPS OF

SOUTHEAST ‘ASIA. FAMILIES ‘WITH' YEARS OF INADEQUATE ‘DIETS IMPOSED'

‘BY 'THE. .STRESSFUL. REALITY' OF SURVIVAL ENCOUNTER NEW PROBLEMS IN
THIS COUNTRY, LANGUAGE IS MOST OBVIOUS, BUT BY NO MEANS THE ONLY
‘BARRIER TO GETTING- AHEAD. AMONG OTHER FACTORS INTERFERING' WITH

v

~
H
hed
M
4
LY

THE ACCESSING OF HEALTH AND PUBLIC ASSISTANCE ARE THOSE.
ENCOUNTERED BY HISPANIC FAMILIES IN THE AREAS OF SEVERE PSYCHO-

HI

SOCIOECONOMIC CONDITIONS. IT CAN BE SAID THAT HISPANIC FAMILIES'
RANK AS THE. PQOREST AMONG THE POOR SINCE MANY OF THEM ARE KNOT

e .
Woaa v, T

st o8 s o

‘RESIDENTS OF THE UNITED STATES AND CONSEQUENTLY ARE BARRED FROM
RECEIVING PUBLIC ASSISTANCE BENEFITS. BY NATURE THEY ARE NOT
AGGRESSIVE $EEKERS; AND THAT COMPOUNDS THEIR LONELINESS AND
ISOLATION. .

N . . BN

MANY OF OUR HISPANIC MOMS’ ARE SINGLE PARENTS AND WITHOUT "‘
FRIENDS. THEIR EXTENDED FAMILY CONCEPT (SO REVERED BY OUR . »4
; CULTURE) HAS BEEN CUT-OFF. SINCE A SOCIAL SUPPORT NETWORK IS NON-
EXISTENT AMONG THEM, THEY HAVE BECOME AMONG THE MOST VULNERABLE S

¢ E'I'H_Nic GROUP OF OUR SOCIETY.
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AS EFFICIENT AND COST-EFFECTIVE AS THE WIC PROGRAM HAS

o

. PROVEN TO BE, (OF EVERY DOLLAR SPENT ON WIC 3 DOLLARS ARE SAVED <

ON HEALTH CARE), WIC IS NOT THE ANSWER TO ALL OUR HEALTH AND .
HUNGER PROBLEMS, FOR THE PROGRAM ONLY SERVICES 1/3 OF ITS

ELIGIBLES, FOCUSING ON PRIORITIZING FPREGNANT WOMEN ENROLLMENTS

i FIRST. THE PKIORITIZING METHODS HAVE THE EFFECT OF PRECLUDING
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CHILDREN ‘ACCESS,TO THE PROGRAM AS OPPOSED TO WOMEN AND INFANTS. A
" MOTHER DOES NOT GO-HOME AND' EAT'BY HERSELF; WHAT WE HEAR AND KNOW
IS THAT SHE WILL SHARE-HER WIC FOODS WITH THE KEST OF THE FAMILY.

'WHICH BRINGS .MZ TO ANOTHER ISSUE; THE NEED FOR SUPPORT IN

-CONGRESS FOR BREAKFAST AND SCHOOI LUNCH PROGRAMS. IT IS MY HOPE
THAT ‘OTHERS GIVING .TESTIMONY TODAY WILL ADDRESS THOSE ISSUES.

LTy

gt
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IN éONCLUSION, ¥Y GOAL AS A WIC DIRECTOR IS TO PROVIDE

"
e

'ACCESS TO THE PROGRAM FOR THE FULL SPECTRUM OF QUALIFIABLE
'PARTICIPANTS AND THEREBY BRING THOSE PARTICIPANTS INTO THE HEALT:
CARE SYSTEM.
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3 CALIFORNIA WIC PARTICIPATION AS OF 10/87 E
Total W I (o] v
280,259 ’ 94,117 ' 108,557 77,585 ;
; . . S
. Hispanics <
. 157,362 (56.1%) 56,011 (59.5%) 65,128 (59.9%) 36,223 (46.7%) i
- f
‘ —t
s o .
. ) :
SAt! FRANCISCO WIC PARTICIPATION AS OF 10/87 -
Total W I Cc !
8,228 2745 156 2846 8228
; Hispanics .
. 3594 (43.6%) 1169 (42.6%) 1444 (50.7%) 3594 (43.6%)
. Q . ;
i ERIC :




ADDTTIONAL QUESTIONS FOR'NYLUA.GEMPLE

SUBMITTED .BY HON. MICKEY LELAND

X G :
INCREASE PARTICIPATION AMONG-UNSERVED MEMBERS OF THE HISPANIC
<COMHUNITY? i

Increase WIC.caseloads nationally to serve 65¢ of eligibles.

PARTICIPATION:IN THE "PROGRAM ‘BY -HISPANIC HOUSEHOLDS?

* :ALLEVIATE-THE LANGUAGE BARRIER?
¢ is the most preveiling factor. In our program every clinic employs
bicultural/bilingual workers. Materials and parphlets are ‘developed in
Spanish’ (colloquial) -and their contents discussed with the participants
.are made for the clients to'aiicviate’ the anxiety created by non-spanish

.

*CHILDREN IN YOUR PROGRAM? .

BETWEEN THE AGES- OF THREE AND FIVE YEARS OLD?

and by U.S.D.A. relaxing or changing the WIC priority system.

 ERIC ek
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1., .WHAT CHANGES DO .YOU-FEEL ARE NEEDED IN THE WIC PROGRAM TO

2. HOHvSTRON(‘;L‘I\ DOES THE LANGUAGE' BARRIER CONTRIBUTE TO THE LACK

‘', FOLLOW-UP: . -WHAT, S'i‘EPS“HAVE BEEN TAKEN IN YOUR PROGRAM TO

before leaving the clinics, When necessary referral medical appointments

FOLLOW-UP: WHAT SUGGESTIONS WOULD YOU OFFER FOR ASSURING THE
AVAILABILITY OF SERVICES TO. LOW-PRIORITY CHILDREN, PARTICULARLY THOSE

’I‘keghildrenaffectedareﬂaosebetyemﬂxeagesonarﬂS. Again the only
feasible way to serve more children is by Congress appropriating more monies

OF

: 3., . THE COMMITTEE HAS RECEIVED_-TESTIMONY THAT THE WIC FOOD_PACKAGE

{ COULD, BE 'USED MORE EFFECTIVELY IF THE ITEMS ARE NOT ALIEN"TO THE
NORMAL DIETS OF PARTICIPANTS. ‘WHAT CHANGES WOULD YOU RECOMMEND IN THE
" -. . PACKAGE TO ASSURE FULL USE OF  EACH FOOD BY HISPANIC PARTICIPANTS?

ix “In_setving the hispanic population the WIC package needs minimal changes or

5 additions. The population must affected are the Asians.

P, 4.  WHAT ARE, THE MAJOR HEALTH INDICATORS OF MALNUTRITION PREVALENT
: AMONG HISPANIC WOMEN AND CHILDREN COMING INTO YOUR PROGRAM?

Anemia, ‘10w birth veight, gestational diabetes, and poor dental health.

Z"«_ 5. Héw HAS THE PRIORITY SYSTEM AFFECTED 'i'HE PARTICIPATION OF
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ApOLr FALCON, PoLICY DIRECTOR, NATIONAL COALITION. OF- S
Hispanic Heavtr AND HUMAN SERvICES OraaNIzaTIONS (COSSMHO) Sy

R P
"HISPANIC HEALTH DATA COLLECTION NEEDS oo

congressman Leland and members of the Select Committee on
anéet, it is a'pleasure to have this opportunity to discuss the
very vital health data needs- of the ‘Hispanic community and their
‘special impact on the-understanding of hunger in Hispanic

-
America. S
p
:

Health professionals involved with the Hispanic community can
tell you ﬁhat the poverty, lack of access to services, ard lack

of appropriate-preventive care has had a devastating effect in

2 yee sl vas wiis

the Hispanic community. Given that almost one in four Hispa?ic
familins live in poverty and the serious health status of the
Hispanic commuhity, it may seem inappropriate to place such an
emphasis on the collection and analysis of Hispanic health o
data. Certainly there must be more immediate problems deserving ’ :
of attention. The problems which do exist, however, are not ’ R ;
captured through current national health data collection
systens. Without basic mortality and health status data the

Hispanic community and their health problems are invisible.

THE NEED FOR HISPANIC HEALTH DATA
‘Solid drta, Tollectel wlong a continuous time period and with :
reference to other population segments is essential for any

analysis of the health needs of the Hispanic community. If the
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«  “.data. are not collected, then for all practical purposes, neither

1”~-dé;phg\neéggﬁary‘ptoggamé and services exist. pata drive the

‘;ﬁgé@s.gtafemqnﬁs'wh;chyurgegwlegisigtorSfto act. Withoul. data
to support ghe»need,fér'proggams; Hispanics are lefc with-
‘inefficient and ihsufficient health care system.

2
N -

. To often:it is assumed that Hispanics share the characteristics

;< * of other population-groups -in regard to health, -or- that data on

* :the- "general .population” accurately describe Hispanic. America:
. The white community and black community are used as surrogates
for- the Hispanic experience which results in misconceptions that

only reinforce stereotypes.

Those data which are available are the result of special
studies: From this limited data we know that there are
;ignificant differences between Hispanics and non-Hispanic
whites in some health stutus indicators. For example:

o Diabetes is three to five times mcre prevalent among
Hispanics in South Texas than among non-Hispanic whites in
that area.

"o cirrhosis of the liver flyures more prominently for
Hispanics than for non-Hispanic whites in tables of the ten
leading causes of death for the states of California and

**“Texas.
o A special aggregated study of Health Interview Survey data

revealed that there are significant differentials in health
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o services' utilization.

RIS Y S
2.
“
[o]

Use of dental services by Hispanics is much less frequent
“than use by nénrﬂispanic vhites, particularly children.
(jx_ o Preliminary analysis of the Hispanic Health and“Nutrition
Examinaticn Survey reveal that smoking is rising

dramatically among Hispanics, particularly women.

A Rl ¥ LR LT
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.

Data.also suggest marked differences among. the -various groups

that make up ‘Hispanic America - Puerto Ricans, cuban Anmericans,

TN

Mexican.Americans, Central and South Americans, and other

tf' persons of Spanish origin. some of the more pronounced
differentials are in the areas of birth weight, utilization of
medical services, and availability of insurance (including

Medicaid).

o~ et

mid

NATIONAL HEALTH DATA COLLECTION SYSTEMS

SN heeagy Fan

None of the major health data collection systems currently
provide for the sampling of a large enough Hispanic population
to provide national data on Hispanic health and nutrition. Two
ce of those systems are the:

o National Health Interview survey (NHIS), and the

o National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES).
- ®versemplinyg wmier “these—surveys wonld-provide ~valugble Thedlth

status information on the Hispani. community comparable to that

N collected for other segments of the population.
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In the case. of the collection of death and birth certificates,
Hispanic identifiers are being used for the first time on the
recently released model birth-and death certificates.
Preparations) however, have not been made to insure proper use

.of either the identifiers or reporting of the collected data.

In addition to Hispanic health and nutrition status data, there
is no ongoing system for the collection of data on Hispanic
'pgtt%ﬁipation in~or access to the various food and nutrition
programs which have such-a significant impact on the nutritional
status of Hispanic America. The currently collected data
focuses on WIC and the Food Stamp program and is collected only
one month of each year to monitor increasing or decreasing

utilization.

National Health Interview Survey

The Health Interview Survey is the principal source of
information on the health of the civilian noninstitutional
population of the United States. The survey began in 1957 and
has functioned as a continuous survey of approximately 112,000
people per year aé}oss the country. The survey measures both
chronic and acut; conditions, disability days and impairments,

~and -a—nurber of “reatth ~servicesutilization measures.

For more than 25 years the Survey has produced data which has

~
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served as -the cornerstone:of our nation's he. th p'anning. The
E*S produces ‘valuable data by age; sex, and white and black

populations, but not for the Hispanic: community.
National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey

The National.Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (NHANES) is
designed to collect-data that can best or only be obtained from
direct physical examination, clinical and laboratory tests, and
other related measurement procedures. The;NHANES is a prime
national source for disease:prevalence and-health condition

data.

The first picture of the health and nutritinnal status of

Hispanic Americans will be available as analyses of the Hispanic

Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (HHANES) are published.

This one time study involved data collection from 1982-1984 of
Maxican Amerisans in the Southwest, Puerto Ricans in New York,
and Cubans in Dade County, Florida. Consequently, no national
estimates for Hispanics can be drawn based on HHANES £indings.
only regional estimates for the three subpopulations included

are possible.

vital statistics Records

The use of Hispanic identifiers on the national model birth and

death certificates only began in 1988. States may choose,

-5
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however, whether or not to adopt the new model. Moreover, the
ability to .obtain statistically relevant information about
Hispanic-mortality and natality will -depend on the appropriate
use of such identifiers. Not until 1990 will we have any

national Hispanic data resulting from the inclusion of Hispanic

identifiers on the model birth and death certificates.

ANALYSIS

Health Information Survev: one of the most valuable products to
come from a national survey has been a report by Fernando
Trevino and Abigail Moss for the National Center for Health
Statistics, Health Indicators for Hispanic ., Black, and White
Amerjcans. The report aggregated data from the interview part
of .the Health Interview Survey for 1978 through 1980 to get a
large enough sample for Hispanic specific data. one of the most
inportant findings of this report was that one-third of all
Mexican Americans in the United States do not see a physician in

the course of a year.

Obviously, one of the severe limitations of this report is that
it was a one shot effort and does not provide information along
a time line so that health planners would know if the health
status of Hispanic Americans was improving or worsening. The
meed for the vollection of dutn -on 2n -ongoing Yasis was
dramatically provided by the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation

Survey of Access to Health Care for the American People. The
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survey reported that the number of uninsured Hispanics rose
L almost 50 percent in its 1986 survey compared to the figure

reportea in the 1982 survey.

Health United states: This report is the basic document for
health pianners and is probably the nost widely used compilation

of health data. The Health United States 1986 provides

absolutely no information on Hispanics. The National center for

X
]
¢
%
‘
§

Health . Statistics (NCHS) 1s responsible for aggregating the

; data, whicl. come from a variety of sources (see Attachment 1}).

! Although soie data are obtained from surveys conducted by NCHS,
much is also obtained from 6tber agencies. This further
illustrates that the lack of data collection or unclear Hispanic

data is widespread across agencies.

Report to the President and Congress on the Status of Health
Pexrsonnel: This report is the basic document for those involved
with the prcblem of health professional distribution and
projections of community health professional needs. The lack of
., appropriate health personnel is one of the most serious problems

of the Hispanic community, yet in the fifth report only cursory

mention of Hispanics was made. The only information included
was the number of Hispanic applications and enrollments in
medical school and schools of osteopathy and dentistry. Fror a

N Soveral ‘fandred-page ‘Aocunent with over 140 tables, to only have

. 3 Hispanic specific numbars is clearly inappropriate.
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Deaths of Hispanic Origin: This report which is schecluled to
come out later this year is slated to provide information on
3 Hispanic.mortality for 15 states from 1979-1981. The report,
however, has begn‘delaYed approximately two years and

demonstrates the probleﬁs with Hispanic mortality data as it

(T ywwarICe

.currently exists. Many states do:not use a Hispanic identifier

and others use such variances that their data is not usable.

[y
B

For instance, the subpopulations used by New Mexico include a

category "Southwesterner" which is clearly unusable.

15t

t ium: The Consortium is a unique

#

P ———

venture between the.National center for Health Statistics and
the National cCoalition of Hispanic Health and Human Services
organizations (COSSMHO). The Hispanic Health Research
consortium (HHRC) promotes analyses of data from the landmark
Hispanic Health and Nutrition Examination Survey. In addition
to providing research support funds, the Consortium sponsors
quarterly mgetings for fellows and other researchers working in
the Hispanic health field. currently-funded research teams are

located at Boston University school of Medicine, McGill

r

University, USC Cancer Center, University of Texas Medical
Branch at Galveston, University of california at Berkeley,
Western Consortium for Health Professions, Indiana University,
and the Hispanic Health Council. The Consortium is producing
<relweble Tesewrch in whathas proven-to be a-very tost e€ffective
manner. The initial findings of consortium research will be

4 published in a special monograph in late 1988 or early 1989.
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DATA NEEDS
-g!grggmnling: The most immediate need in terms of Hispanic
health data vollection is the oversampling for the Hispanic
community in the national health-.data collection -systens, T
especially the National Health Interview Survey (HIS) and the
National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey (HANES). These
collection syftems are the cornerstone of national health data
and the oversampling of Hispanics would provide health planners
with vital information they have previously lacked.
Oversampling would also provide the ability to compare Hispanic
health ctatus to that of other populations and when continued
over time would provide the opportunity to track improving or

worseniné’health status in the Hispanic community.

»

It is vitél that oversampling provide information for Hispanic
subpopulations as well as the Hispanic community in general.
From the data currently available, it is evident that there are
wide variations in the Hispanic community's health status by

B

subpopulation group.

A special effort needs to be madc to oversample for Hispanics in

the 2989 HIS supplement which will be on diabetes. Pespite the
- Tact thet -dinbetes 4s -one of the Hispanic commmrity*s “wost

serious health problems, we still do not have any solid national

data.
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- vital statistics: -Uniform mortality data, reflecting
standardized data collection procedures in the states, is one of
the most basic.needs. 1In order to ensure that the Hispanic
identifiers-being included on the national birth and death
certificates are utilized appropriately it will be important for
the National center for-Health Statistics to hold technical
assistance sessions-for funeral.home directors and others who
-will be using the identifiers.. It will also be important to
encourage: the utilization of the national birth and death

certificates in as many states as possible.

gg;;i;ign: In che area of nutrition, it is important that a
study be launched of the nutrition components of the Hispanic
Health and Nutrition Examination Survey. Furthermore, a study
of Hispanic utilization of the full range of food and nutrition
programs is necessary to understand the status of nutrition and
hunger in Hispanic America. Such a study should not only
present utilization rates, but also examine the reasons for any

underutilization of various prograns.

Analysis: while it is important to collect Hispanic health
data, it is equally .important to ensure that such data are
appropriately analyzed and distributed so that such information
ic wsed by health professtonais rationaily. Funds-must be
available to undertake research, whether the source be from the

public or private sectors. AL a minimum, Hispanic specific data

=10~
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should:be included in the-national health reports, especially
Heéalth United States-and the Report to the President and
T e < R
- S&g&gﬁ- Farthersore, Hispanic health organizations should be
included ih‘thg‘prbcess of analysis. The-Hispanic Hr “th
Research Consortium-has showh this té-be a fruitful joining of

government. and-non-profit organizations.

Finally, the National Center for Health stati;tics>(NCHS) needs
to-be given more freedom in planning and money for analysis of
collected information. The NCHS should be included as a line
item in our national budget. Currently 30 percent of the NCHS
budget comes -from the "1% tap."™ This tap is a fund paid into by
all Health and Human Services agencies of one percent of their

budgets. The variability of this fund makes planning by NCHS
difficult. For instance, NHANES III was scheduled to sample for
60,000 people, but due to a lack of funds NCHS has had to cut

the sample back to 40,000 people. This will make oversampling

for the Hispanic community very difficult.

Priority setting:

priorities should be a comprehensive Hispanic health research

Guiding the development of these and other

and data collection agenda, developed by leading Hispanics and
Lnon--m'.spanic experts and reflecting the best thinking and
Am@erstending -of current-problens and anticipated needs. “This
agenda would become a powerful tool to use with the nationts

leading research institutions, as well as the federal, state,

_11_
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and’ local -agencies responsible for ‘health data collection,

maintenance, and analysis.

The need for health data is of primary concern to the Hispanic
community. Without such data it is impossible to plan
responsibly for the health needs of ‘the Hispanic community.
Appropriatg data, however, woul. allow_govérnmen;, health

professionals, "the private sector, and othérs to respond to the

.heél;h~néeds~of a growing Hiséanic community. This current lack

Hispanic America can no longer afford. We do not know how wany
Hispanic men, women, and children die in this country every
year. How much longer can we go without even the most basic

public health information?

-12-
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ATTACHMENTS

SOURCES OF DATA

National Center for Health Statistics (DHHS/PHS/OASH)

National Vital Statistics System

-National ‘Survey of Family Growth
National-Health Interview:Survey

-National Health and Nutrition Examin: ion Survey
'National Masiter Facility Inventory '
National Eospital-Discharge’Survey
~Nationa13ﬂuzsing"ﬂ9@e~Su:vey

National Ambulatory Medical-Care Suciey

Health Resources and Services Administration (DHHS/PHS)

EREES

Physig;aﬁ§,5gpp1y Projuctiuns (Bureau of Health
‘Professiohs) " -

Centers for Disease Control (DHHS/PHS)

‘National Morbidity Reporting system (Epidemiology
Program Cffice)

Abortion Surveillance (Center for Health Promotion and
Education)

U.S. Immunization Survey (cCenter for Preventive
-Services)

‘National Occupational Hazard survey (National Institute
for Occupational safety and Health)

National Occupational Exposure Survey (National
Institute for Occupatjional safety and Health)

Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Health Administration
( DHHS /PHS)

National Surveys of Drinking (National Institute on
Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism)

National Surveys on Drug Abuse (National Institute on
Drug Abuse)

Surveys of Mental Health Facilities (National Institute
of Mental Health)

Health Care Financing administration (DHHS)

Tstimates of Watiomal Realth Expenditures
Medicare Statistical system
Medicaid pata System
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‘ SOURCES OF DATA
<3 - {continued) o

PRy

Bureau of .the Censug (Commerce)

4: -
- -U.S. .Cen -us of Population .
’ Current Population Survey 3
Population Estimates and Projections ’

e s e

7

Bureau of Labor Statistics (Labor)

‘Consivner. Price, Index °
Employment and Earnings

30
’r
P
72

Envirdnmental Protection Aaency

National Aerometric Surveillance Network

= . United-Nations- é
Demographic Yearbook . ;

; Alan Guttmicher Fnstitute

Abortion Survey

American Hospital Association

w

Annual Survey of Hospitals

American Medical Association

Physician Masterfile
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ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS FOR ADOLF FALCON
‘Submitted by Hon. Mickey Leland

Question. In your testimony, you note that one of the reasons given to
refute the need for expanded data collection on Hispanics is that "the

.Hispanie population is so diverse and shifting so rapidly that data

quickly becones meaningless and- outdated. What 1s you response to this
statement? .

-Answer. It is xmportant to- oversample for Hispanics on an ongoing basis
so that trends in health status and utilization can be tracked. This

is the only manner in which responsxble health care planning can occur
and efficient and sufficient services ‘developed.

yuestion. what r:commendations sould you propose for crpanding .nformation
avaxlable on Hxspanxc participat.on in Federal food assistance programs?

Answer. I would recommend some studies to determine the extent of His-
panic non-use of such programs among qualified populations. I would also
recommend a-pilot program for the registraticn and distribution of
services, expecially food stamps, by community-based organizations.

Question. How can we expect t..> National Center for Health Statistics
to fund the oversampling of Hispanics in all their suxveys?

Answer. We cannot, some additional funds will be necessary. Before that
-point, however, NCHS needs to take a hard look at their surveys to
streamline them. Currently much of the data produced from surveys is
not utilized and reducing the expanse of the surveys would result in a
cost savings which could be applied to oversampling.

Question. In your opinion what role will increased data collection have
on participation in health and food assistance programs?

Answer. It will allow such programs to be more responsive to the needs
of Hispanics.

Question. Would there be any benefits to collecting standardized data
on a regional level versus a national level?

Answer. Regional data should not be the province of the Federal Govern=-
ment. The Federal Government should be concerned with the collection
of national data. For Hispanics, it is vital that data be broken out by
ma)or sub-populations as there has been great variance found among His-
panic sub-populations in health status and utilization.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF Ropovro M. Urey, M.D, MEDICAL DIRECTOR, EL CARMEN
AN DE PAuL Crinic

HUNGER =~ IN SAN ANTONIO?

A MEDICAL PERSPECTIVE

According to recent governmental stastics, twenty percent
of our nation's children are poor. The prevalence for minority ,
children is approximately twice the national figure. Over 20 .
children die every minute in this world from hunger and related
illnesses, while the world's military budget absorbs 1.3 million
dollars of public funds during thut same minute. In America,

v

according to the Physician's Task Force on Hunger in America,
over 35 million people live below the poverty level. Only a
little over half receive food stamp assistance, and even fewer
receive necessary health insurance such as Medicaid to cover
even the most basic health care needs.

In the four years between 1982-1985, over 12 billion dollars
vas cut from food stamps and child nutrition, including school
breakfast and lunch programs. Here in San Antonio, as a clinic

S v e

physician in economically depressed areas of our city, hunger has
been @ major challenge in the proper management of many of our :

5

patients with cnronic diseases such as diabetes, heart cisease,

o e

obesity, hypertension, and hyperlipidemias (high cholesterol and
triglycerides). Hiinger has many faces and is easily masked in
a society that does not stress preventive medicine, that makes

the root causes of hunger and the political remedies for its
eradication.

In our clinic, we see hunger in our elderly patients who
receive little or no assistarce from governmental programs, nutrition
centers that are overwhelmed with requésts for meals, and living
conditions that rival "lean-to's" in the third world. We see
hunger in the face of our many unemployed and uaderemployed heads of
household, who have to rely on emergency food assistance from our ¢
own food pantries and distribution centers supplie¢ by the
San Antonio Food Bank. The prescription they seek is really a job, i
but we are often faced with the task of finding them food.
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", ' “Thére is hunger in our obese diabetic patient who
suffers from overconsumptive undernutrition, meaning their
caloric intake is high, but the nutritive value of their food
is low because of inadaquate income, They too are malnourished
and -their disease.progresses at an ultimately greater health
care cost for all of society. -
' We ' see hunger in our adolescent prenatal patients who
come from low~income families and consume improper foods for
maintaing a healthy‘pregnancy. The Women, Infants. and Children
Supplemental Nutrition Program reaches less than 20 percent of
.those eligible for food vouchers and important nutrition
education classes that can make a difference between a good or
a bad pregnancy outcome. Many studies have linked poor prenatal
nutritional status with poor pregnancy outcome and much higher
‘health-care costs from neonatal intensive care of »remature ’
infants born to these mothers. The Indigent Health Care Bill
passed by the Texas legislature a few years ago attempted to
adqréss this issue with funding for increased prenatal clinics
in previously underserved counties. The Omnibus Hunger Bill
ulso receﬁtly passed, is attempting to channel more money into
W.I.® and prenatal nutrition to battle the problem of malnutrition
in poor pregnant wémen. We refer aliost all of our obstetrical
patients for W.I.C. assistance, since they almost always qualify.
+ The inadequacies of our system are evident vith a case we had
a few years ago of a 19 year old patient in her 28th week of
pregnancy who presented with symptoms of a urinary tract infection.
Because she was not a resident of our county. she was told she
would be a "full-pay® patient and would have to pay for all
health care "up-front". Being poor, she returned home and
p-omptly went into labor later that evening delivering a premature
infant that required emergency resusitation and approximately
one month of neonatal intensive care that she cannot pay. This
expense is ultimately all of our concern and is wasteful.
For every one dollar we spend on W.I.C., we save three
in long-term and short-term costs on neonatal care according to
a W.I.C. study.
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Ye see hunger in the faces of our pediatric patients

2. who .rely on school breakfast and Junches as their prime source
of proper nutrition (cut under present administration).

.0our children have relative deficiencies of iron causing

&

nutritional anemias, calcium and vitamin D causing inadequate
skeletal qrowth, aud trace minerals Important for multiple

o W ah s M T €L v oy

bodily functions. Many studies document decreased bone

densities from insufficient calcium intake in poor children,

} higher incidence of zinc and iron deficiency in urban poor,

2 and the possible relation between poor academic performance

and nutritional status. Because of the multifactorial nature

of social, psychological, and educational development, it is

\ difficult to quantitate the role of poor nutrition, but the
direct relationship cannot be denied.

. Approximately 90 percent of my palicnts earn less than
the federal poverty guideline for annual iacomwe. As a bealth-
care provider trained in diagnosis and trcatment of discases.

> 1 can never ultimately effectively intervene iu my patient's

recovery from illness unless I address the most debilitating

- " illness that threatens their very survival - poverty. A
prescription to a person who is not on Medicaid is only a

piece of paper with medical scribble- a document and testimonial

Y

to an unfair and inadequate system of incomplete treatments.
A prescription to a person whe does nol qualify for food stamps

because they own more than 4,500 dollars of assets is less

l1ikely to get filled when there is concern with filling stomachs.
Must a person be absolutely destitute and stripp.l of dignity
before he or she can get food stamps? Pride and Hunger are

both very powerful forces, and they often coexist.

The San Artonio Food Bank distributes food to over 200,000
people in the Bexar County and surrounding areas. Approximately
2/3 is "emergency food assistance” to people who .re suffering
from acute shortages of food. YES - Lhere is hunger in San

Antonio and South Texas. Coinciding wicth gicat technological

purkarrtr

advances are great increases in the number of poor in Texas
and across -ur nation.

o~




There is.probably no greater tragedy in medicine than
a totally preventab.e death in the face of totally inaccessible
but available treatments. Hunger and malnutrition are discases
for which there is a cure, but the cure is hidden behind

- curtains of burcaucratic indifference and malignant negligence.

. When therc is enough grain in storage to fced every man, woman,
and child who is hungry in this world for one year, and 11
million children die before their first birthday, and 53 million
tons of food are wasted in Arerica anually, we neglect the

less fortunate of our society and help to create the greziest
H tragedy in the history of medicine.
;- As a physician and advocate, I implore the Senate Committee
) on Hunger to actively lobby for the following:
- Increcase food stamp benefits, alter asset restrictions,

remove restrictive measures that exclude the new poor and
working poor.

- Strengthening school and other meal programs.
- Expand WIC and Medicaid programs, elderly nutrition programs,
unemployment benefits, and AFDC assistance.
- Maintain and cxpand government commodities programs
for emergency food assistance to the poor.
' - Work in unison vith national task forces on hunger in
influencing congress to act favorably to anti~hunger
legislation.

Ending hunger is possible. The food and technology are here.
Our commitment is lacking. Let us remember the finding's of
the Presidential Commission on World Hunger *...the persistence
of hunger reflects a lack of sufficient political will to eliminate
its causes.”
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| TEXAS ASSOC!ATION !

N\
TACAA )} o COMMUNITY s YaENCIES, ING..
?015 1H.3580., Suke 191 Siad Austin,Texas 78741

TEXAS HUNGER FACTH

(fxom the TACAA Food Assistance ““formation Project)

1. More than 4,000,000 requests for Zoud -assistancs were made to
‘fo0d pantries, soup kitchens, and other emergency food providers
in Texas in 1886, more than doublé the number from 1884.

R

3 2. More than 10,000 requests Zor emeryency food go unanswered
every.month due to the lack of resource.

8. A record 1,530,577 persons in 477,800 Texas householas
rrceived food stamp benefiZs in March 1987.

4. More than 30X of thy food stamp recipients live in Harris, N
Hidalgo, or Bexar Counties. Nearly 15% of the statewide caseload
resides in Harris County.

5. An. estimatéd four million Texans are sligible foxr food g
stamps, but less than four iin ten take advantags of them.
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6, Hore than 1.7 million Texas schoolchildren receive a school
lunch each.day between September and May, but Just 40,000 receive
the same servica during the summer.

7. Only 13 of Texas' 1,037 school districts operate a summer
lpnch program.

8, The School Breakfast Program in Texas serves only 17.4% of
the eligible children statewide.

9. As of September 1, 1887, 41 Texas counties did not ¢
participate in the Women, Infants, and Children (RIC) feeding :
program, the largest number of any state in the nation.

10. A total of 79% of the more than 1.1 million Texas wousen and
children at nutritional risk and eligible for WIC benefits do not
participate in the program due to limited resources,

11. HMore than 1.7 million low-income Texans in 500,000 fr..ilies
receive government surplus ,commodities each month under the
Temporary Emergency Food AsSiZténce Program (TEFAP).

~cl CObA VAYIIYBIE
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12.  The Texas Department on Aging estimates that 23,500 elderly .
Texans are in need of home-delivered meals to help them maintain
their independence and avoid institutionalization, but funding is
unavailable to serve them.
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y Povmy progaring in Texas and the levelo: funding are among-
‘lho lowest int nation. o
o ao Texas ranks 45th in per capita Medicaid expenditures.

‘9 We rank 46th in the nation for AFDC grants.

: : o We rank 19% below the national average in food stamp distribution

¥ +-+(29 of 150 hungriest counties are the nation are in Texas).

» ;'f )

':@ Texas provides no siate funds for daycare and family planning ¢
" servioe§ .

'o For the perons eaming minimum vage, $6,968 a year, the cost of
i daycare for two children would be nearly 100% of his/her in.oms.
S

) ,AFDc ’
& Texas only provices an average of the $57 per person pe. ..ith for
‘ women wiht childern (AFDC).

'to Only 25% of Texas' poor children receive AFDC.

.9 When food stamps benefits are added to the AFDC grant the total
. Income is only 48% of federal poverty levels.

- Medicald i
©® Less than 32% of Texas' poor children are covared under Medicaid.

@ Only two states reach a smaller percentage of their below poverty
. residents than Texas does.

@ Passage of the Indigent Health Care bill has extended medical
. . benefits eligibility to all children (and some adults) living at or .
: . below 30% of the poverty line. This still leaves 70% of the poverty :
© .1 population at risk with no health care. ;

‘ o The federal government matches $1.40 for every $1.00 spent on
*HI'Medicald.
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